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2021 2020 Change in %
B —T-_THF & Bt %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET +& 7T
Revenue I 25 73,232 126,834 (42.3%)
From asset management KEEEER 85,450 66,751 28.0%
From investment and financial R B & & & B 7% 7 &
advisory services AR 7 4,030 1,128 257.3%
Sales of goods HEE M 46,509 8,469 449.2%
Gross Profit EF 1,441 73,931 (98.1%)
Net profit (loss) from operations 2R B % 7% % & 7| (&5 18) (107,218) 10,912 (1,082.6%)
Net loss for the year RKEEFEIR (122,622) (19,599) (525.7%)
EBITDA BRAME HME-FTER
#: 35 51 & 7 (EBITDA) (101,146) 17,194 (688.3%)
Loss per share BEREE
— basic (HK cents) —EARCEA) (8.18) (1.69) (384.0%)
Total Asset BEBE 544,669 956,622 (43.1%)
Net Asset BEFE 372,793 495,004 (24.7%)

Revenue decreased by approximately 42.3% to HK$73.23
million (2020: HK$126.83 million), as the increase of income
from asset management, investment and financial advisory
services and sales of goods for the year ended 31 December
2021 offset by loss on disposal and change in fair value on
financial investment amounting to HK$82.13 million.

For the same token, the gross profit for the Year decreased
by approximately 98.1% to HK$1.44 million (2020: HK$73.93
million).

After a provision for post-completion guarantee amounting
to HK$58.57 million, loss from operations for the Year
amounted to HK$107.22 million (2020: profit HK$10.91
million).

For the same token, loss for the Year increased from
HK$19.60 million for the year 2020 to HK$122.62 million for
the year 2021, and the EBITDA also turned around from profit
to loss of HK$101.15 million (2020: profit HK$17.19 million).

Loss per share (basic) attributable to owner of the company
was increased from HK1.69 cents for the year 2020 to
HK8.18 cents for the year 2021.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to our Shareholders the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (“FY 2021" or the “Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services and trading of wines and beverage,
securities trading and investments.

The Group commenced its asset management business in
May 2018 and earned revenue in these segments through
providing asset management services and advisory services
through the expertise of the Group’s investment team with
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
licenses granted by the Securities and Future Commission
of Hong Kong (the “SFC"). Over the past three years, assets
under management (AUM) managed by the Group increased
from US$662 million with 2 funds as at 31 December 2018
to US$736 million with 3 funds as at 31 December 2019,
representing an increment of 11.2% and further to US$824
million with 6 funds as at 31 December 2020, representing
an increment of 12.0%. The AUM as at 31 December 2021
is US$668 million with leveraged AUM amounted to US$924
million and the number of funds under our management
increased to 16. Asset management fee income of HK$85.45
million was recorded for the Year Under Review (31 December
2020: HK$66.75 million) and contributed to a segment profit
of HK$30.48 million (31 December 2020: HK$5.58 million).

After our application for Type 1 (dealing in securities) license
was approved by SFC and the Type 1 license was granted
by SFC on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing of securities to
funds under management.

Investment advisory services fee income amounting to
HK$4.03 million was recorded for the Group for Year Under
Review (31 December 2020: HK$1.13 million).
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHS

Our strategy of developing our asset management and
investment and financial advisory operations is on the right
track as demonstrated by the performance of those segments
which are the main contributors for the Group’s operation
results for the Year Under Review.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$73.23 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$126.83 million. The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to increase of income from asset management, investment
and financial advisory services and sales of goods for the
year ended 31 December 2021 offset by loss on disposal and
change in fair value on financial investment amounting to
HK$82.13 million.

The consolidated net loss of HK$122.62 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$19.60 million). The consolidated losses
from operations were mainly due to the impairment losses in
relation to the fixed income investment in the senior secured
guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited, Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited and the
guaranteed bonds issued by CFLD (Cayman) Investment
Ltd. amounting to HK$17.37 million, reversal of HK$12.66
million and HK$0.14 million respectively (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$2.42 million, HK$1.31 million and
HK$13.07 million) and the change in fair value of investments
amounting to HK$69.50 million loss (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$2.80 million gain) and provision for a
post-completion value guarantee amounting to HK$58.57
million (year ended 31 December 2020: nil).

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control
measures like entry restrictions, compulsory quarantine for
inbound travelers, social distancing practices and restrictions
on group gathering, which have had hindered most of the
consumption activities during the Year Under Review, the
Group recorded a turnover of HK$46.51 million (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$8.47 million) for the segment of
Trading of Wine and beverage. Profit attributable to this
business segment amounted to HK$2.12 million for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$2.95
million loss).
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During the Year Under Review, the Group expanded its wine
product portfolio to a broader range and other beverage
categories to capture the demand of young consumer in
addition to the existing target group of customers. Besides
trading of red wine, trading of white wine, champagne and
sparkling wine, whisky, Moutai and Chinese tea leaf were
recorded in the Year Under Review.

The Group is conducting its sales through three channels: (i)
direct sales; (ii) online sales; and (iii) wholesale. The Group
maintains the alliance with a reputable distributor for sale of
premium wine.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Global economy has been affected by the coronavirus
pandemic for over two years and is still ongoing! However,
economic recovery started from the lows of mid-2020 with
high levels of both monetary and fiscal policy support from
central governments. The world has changed over the
last two years and many economies are still struggling to
readjust. High rates of inflation are an important symptom
of this readjustment process. To a large extent, they reflect a
mismatch between the recovery of demand and supply. We
can see this in disruption to global production and supply
chains but also in labour markets.

Strong growth rates in 2021 are likely to be followed by
only a slight moderation in 2022. The Asian’s economic
dynamism will make for an exciting 2022 after a challenging
2021. Chinese economic stabilisation is likely to benefit many
regional assets while the US region’s economic growth will
slow down in face of interest rise and monetary tightening.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business. The Group targets to structure more
project funds for the asset management business as HKEX's
creation of a listing regime for special purpose acquisition
companies (SPACs) takes effect on 1 January 2022. That is a
good mechanism to facilitate the Group to turn some of these
structured project funds into listed companies. The Group
has submitted an application to HKEX for listing of a SPAC,
named Pisces Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHS

On the other hand, the Group will build up more licensed
business in PRC through strategic acquisition or joint venture
with PRC corporations.

Meanwhile, more resources will be allocated for the
development of Type 1 (securities trading) business as asset
management is our main stream for income generation. We
need to improve our hardware and software for the changing
business environment for this sector.

For trading of wines and beverage, the Group will keep on
with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories.
Management intend to accept crypto currency as one of the
settlement means for trading of wine and other beverages in
2022 and hope that can improve the trading performance.
We expect to keep the same pace of 2021 as the existing
pandemic condition prevail.
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Finally, | would like to extend my greatest gratitude to all
the Shareholders for their continuous support and to our
clients, banks and investors for their trust, encouragement
and recognition. Meanwhile, | would also like to thank all
members of the Board for their contributions and support,
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Jiao Shuge
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REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activities of the Group are provision of asset
management services, investment and financial advisory
services, securities trading and investments and trading of
wines and beverage.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year Under
Review"), the Group focused on the development of asset
management and investment and financial advisory business.
Apart from Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) licenses issued by the Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC”) were granted to the
Group in May 2018, our application for Type 1 (dealing in
securities) license was approved by SFC and the Type 1 license
was granted by SFC on 28 July 2021. Our asset management
business and the financial advisory business target
high-net-worth individuals and institutional investors. The
high-net-worth individuals are individuals or corporations that
have high risk appetite and possess assets which worth over
US$1 million, while the institutional investors comprise banks,
financial institutions, asset management companies and
other investment companies. Over the past three years, assets
under management (AUM) managed by the Group increased
from US$662 million with 2 funds as at 31 December 2018
to US$736 million with 3 funds as at 31 December 2019,
representing an increment of 11.2% and further to US$824
million with 6 funds as at 31 December 2020, representing
an increment of 12.0%. The AUM as at 31 December 2021
is US$668 million with leveraged AUM amounted to US$924
million and the number of funds under our management
increased to 16.

Our wines and beverage trading business turn around as
the Group decided to expand its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories to capture the
demand of young consumer in addition to the existing target
group of customers. Besides trading of red wine, trading of
white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky, Moutai
and Chinese tea leaf were recorded in the Year Under Review.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR @57 7 i

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$73.23 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$126.83 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to increase in turnover from asset management, investment
and financial advisory services and trading of wines and
beverage offset by the loss on disposal and change in fair
value on financial investments amounting to HK$82.13
million (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$2.83 million
gain).

The consolidated net loss of HK$122.62 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$19.60 million). The consolidated losses
from operations were mainly due to the impairment losses
in relation to the fixed income investment in the senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune
Investment Limited, Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited and the guaranteed bonds issued by CFLD (Cayman)
Investment Ltd. amounting to HK$17.37 million, reversal
of HK$12.66 million and HK$0.14 million respectively (year
ended 31 December 2020: HK$2.42 million, HK$1.31
million and HK$13.07 million) and the change in fair value
of investments amounting to HK$69.50 million (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$2.80 million gain) and provision for
a post-completion value guarantee amounting to HK$58.57
million (year ended 31 December 2020: nil).
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REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Management Services

Since May 2018 the Group carries on its asset management
business through providing a range of asset management
services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate and financial institutional professional investors
under Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities by the SFC. After our
application for Type 1 (dealing in securities) license was
approved by SFC and the Type 1 license was granted by SFC
on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide underwriting,
sub-underwriting and placing of securities to funds under
management. On 12 August 2021, OCI Asset Management
Company Limited participated as Joint Bookrunners in the
issuance of US$700,000,000 corporate bonds by Shaoxing
City Investment Group Limited (A E M mERIEE &
B BR A A]). On 16 September 2021, OCI Asset Management
Company Limited participated as Joint Bookrunners in the
issuance of US$160,000,000 corporate bonds by Zensun
Enterprises Limited. These two Joint Bookrunners exercises
provided opportunities for the Group to build up relationship
with leaders in underwriting business and acquaint with the
market practice in underwriting business.

Apart from (“Project Funds”) and (“Bond Funds”), the Group
introduced a new fund type, the (“IPO Funds”) during
the Year Under Review. The IPO Funds are established for
subscribing for initial public offering (“IPO") shares through
international placing and usually have lifespan ranging from
6 to 12 months. The investment targets of the IPO Funds are
those IPO shares with high subscription rate in the market
which the investors can only get a small allocation of shares
through public offerings. Three IPO funds were launched in
the Year Under Review with fund size from US$3 million to
US$18 million.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR @57 7 i

As at 31 December 2021, the asset management subsidiary
is engaged in management of 16 funds including the self
invested US Dollar Debt Fund with fund size varying from
US$1 million to US$386.5 million. The number of clients
increased from 13 to 35 institutional investors. Asset
management income of HK$85.45 million was recorded
for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$66.75 million).

Investment and Financial Advisory Services

Our investment advisory services mainly relate to advising US
dollar debts related investments. As at 31 December 2021,
the asset management subsidiary is engaged in advising 3
funds with fund size from US$19.05 million to US$60.39
million.

Investment advisory services fee amounting to HK$4.03
million was recorded as income for the Group for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$1.13
million).
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REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trading of wines and beverage

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control
measures like entry restrictions, compulsory quarantine for
inbound travelers, social distancing practices and restrictions
on group gathering, which have had hindered most of the
consumption activities during the Year Under Review, the
Group recorded a turnover of HK$46.51 million (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$8.47 million). Profit attributable to
this business segment amounted to HK$2.12 million for the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$2.95
million loss).

During the Year Under Review, the Group expanded its wine
product portfolio to a broader range and other beverage
categories to capture the demand of young consumer in
addition to the existing target group of customers. Besides
trading of red wine, trading of white wine, champagne and
sparkling wine, whisky, Moutai and Chinese tea leaf were
recorded in the Year Under Review.

The Group is conducting its sales through three channels: (i)
direct sales; (ii) online sales; and (iii) wholesale. The Group
maintains the alliance with a reputable distributor for sale of
premium wine.
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR @57 7 i

Fund Investment
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has the following
investment in funds:

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC, in respect of its segregated portfolio, ICBC
US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”) managed by
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited,
pursuant to which the Company subscribed for the
Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount
of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156
million). The fund size was US$60 million including
both Class A Shares of US$40 million and Class B
Shares of US$20 million. Both Class A and Class B
Shares are entitled to a fixed return accruing on each
anniversary of 3 June 2019 (“Distribution Date”) at 4%
per annum on its subscription amount. Provided that
the portfolio has sufficient distributable assets after
payment of the Class A fixed return and deduction of
all fees, expenses and other liabilities of the Sub-Fund
(including but not limited to management fees),
each Class B Share carries the right to a fixed return
accruing on each distribution date calculated at the
rate of 4% per annum on the subscription amount.
On redemption, Class A Shares will not be entitled to
any amount in excess of the subscription price and any
accrued and unpaid fixed return. Class B Shares are
entitled to the remaining portion of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund will generate income through
investing in US dollar-denominated bonds (including,
but not limited to, investment-grade bonds, high-yield
bonds, and convertible bonds), notes and other fixed
income products and money market instruments issued
by companies based in or with their headquarters in
the PRC (each an “Issuer”). Target Issuers are stated
to include qualified real estate bond issuers; financial
institutions with high incomes and other corporate
bonds and local government financing vehicles.
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REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor and
Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Orient
Finance”) as the Purchaser entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s entire
right, title and interest in certain amount of Class B (“Sale
Share”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC at the Consideration
of no more than US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,400,000) with a post-completion
guarantee clause that in the event that the SPC redeems
the participating shares held by the Purchaser at the
expiry of the investment term of the Sub-Fund (i.e. 2
June 2022), the sum of entitlement of the Purchaser as
the holder of the Sale Shares comprising the aggregate
of all the returns, distributions, income, and other
payments received or accrued on the Sale Shares since
Completion plus the redemption proceeds paid or
payable to the Purchaser is less than the Consideration
paid by the Purchaser, the Vendor shall pay to the
Purchaser such shortfall within five (5) business days
upon receipt of written notice from the Purchaser.
Proceeds of the Disposal will be used to repay the
outstanding loan in the amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,590,000), together
with all accrued interest, owing from the Company to
Orient Finance under a revolving loan facility granted
by Orient Finance to the Company on 1 January
2018 pursuant to the Facility Agreement. As Orient
Finance is a connected person of the Company and
the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. The transaction was approved by
Independent Shareholders in an EGM held on 12 August
2021. At 27 August 2021, 7,900 shares was sold to
Orient Finance at the consideration of US$7.51 million.
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16 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the fund
investment was HK$28.83 million (31 December 2020:
HK$165.70 million), representing 5.3% of the total asset
of the Group (31 December 2020: 17.3%). The Fund’s
fair value dropped substantially on the last quarter of
2021 due to the market value of those bonds issued
by PRC properties developers in the Fund’s portfolio
decreased sharply upon the PRC government’s tightened
control policies over credit.

The NAV of Class B shares of the Fund continued to
decreased further as the prices of those bonds and
notes in the Fund’s portfolio dropped further in early
2022. The value of Class B shares turned to Zero by 31
Jan 2022 and further cut loss actions were taken by the
Fund Manager. The NAV of the Fund decreased further.
The NAV of Class B shares as at 28 Feb 2022 is Zero.
The chance of regaining value to acquisition value by
the expiry of the Fund is remote, hence a full provision
for the post-completion guarantee on the 7,900 Class B
shares sold to Orient Finance on their acquisition value
of US$7.51 million, equivalent to HK$ 58.57 million is
made in the financial year.

The Group launched a US dollar debt fund (the “US
Dollar Debt Fund”) in February 2020 through injection
of two investment bonds valued at approximately
US$15.42 million at the date of injection. The aim of
the US Dollar Debt Fund is to invest in medium to long
term notes to obtain steadily interest income as well as
capital appreciation. The US Dollar Debt Fund is open
to external professional investors and is managed by
OCI Asset Management Company Limited, the Group’s
asset management subsidiary. The fund manager closely
monitors the market value of the investment notes
within the portfolio of the fund and try to capture any
opportunities to acquire investment notes at low value
and to dispose those investment notes at a higher price
to obtain capital gain in addition to obtain interest
return. Further details of the investment portfolio of the
US Dollar Debt Fund is set out under “Securities Trading
and Investments — US Dollar Debt Fund” below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 2 March 2021, OCI Capital Limited (“the Subsidiary”)
executed a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the Subsidiary agreed to subscribe for the Class A Shares
attributable to OCI Equities Fund SP (“the Sub-Fund”) in
an aggregate amount of HK$95,000,000 (representing
approximately 19% of the Investment Funds Raised).
Class B Shareholder and Class C Shareholder
will contribute HK$80,000,000 (representing
approximately 16% of the Investment Funds Raised) and
HK$325,000,000 (representing approximately 65% of
the Investment Funds Raised) to subscribe for Class B
Shares and Class C Shares, respectively.

Provided that the Sub-Fund has sufficient distributable
assets, each Class A Share is entitled in priority (over
Class B Shares) to a simple fixed return of 5% per
annum on its initial offer price or its subscription price
as at the Closing Day or the relevant subscription day
("Class A Expected Fixed Return”). The Class A Expected
Fixed Return will be payable annually. After payment of
the Class A Expected Fixed Return, each Class B Share
is entitled to a simple fixed return of 10.5% per annum
on its initial offer price or its subscription price as at
the Closing Day or the relevant subscription day (“Class
B Expected Fixed Return”). The Class B Expected Fixed
Return will be payable annually.

Investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve
medium to long-term capital appreciation through
direct or indirect acquisition, holding, and distribution
or other disposition of the Target Project or the share of
the Target Company through the three years term. The
Sub-Fund is managed by the Group’s asset management
subsidiary with a management fee equal to 1.8%
per annum of the total subscription amount of the
Sub-Fund.

Details of the Sub-Fund subscription are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement date 2 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the fund
investment was HK$96.92 million (31 December 2020:
nil), representing 17.8% of the total asset of the Group
(31 December 2020: nil). The fair value is determined by
the expected cash flows with the appropriate discount
rate of each cash flow.

i)
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR @57 7 i

Securities Trading and Investments

After disposal of the entire listed equity securities investment
during the year 2020, the Group focus on investing in fixed
income products in 2021. Dividend income, income from
debt investments, gain or loss on disposal of financial assets,
and the change in fair value of the financial assets recognized
under this segment for the Year Under Review amounted
to negative HK$62.76 million (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$50.49 million). Losses attributed to this business
segment amounted to HK$130.72 million (year ended 31
December 2020: profit HK$23.34 million), mainly due to the
change in fair value of investment amounting to HK$69.50
million (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$2.80 million
gain) and a provision for post-completion value guarantee of
approximately HK$58.57 million (2020: nil).

Fixed Income Products

The key factors considered by the Group when making the
investment decisions included, but not limited to, (i) the credit
rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial position and financial
performance of the underlying assets; (iii) the returns offered
by and the relevant costs in association with the fixed income
products; (iv) the terms of the fixed income products; (v) any
guarantor or collaterals in association with the fixed income
products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in the fixed
income products; (vii) the economic environment; and (viii)
government policies.

The Group obtains leverage on the fixed income products
through entering into financial arrangements with financial
institutions through US dollar bond linked notes and
repurchase agreements. Through these arrangements, the
Company only needs to pay part of the market value of the
underlying assets as upfront payment, upon maturity, the
Company will receive the return of the underlying asset net
of the pre-agreed funding cost.
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As at 31 December 2021,

REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the Group held interests in the

following debt securities which are recognised as debt
investments carried at amortised costs and at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as
at that date:

(i)

US$15 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes
(“RD Note”) issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) matured on 15 April 2019.
The RD Note was secured by a charge over 78,000,000
shares of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (China
Rundong Charged Shares), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1365). The Group issued
an EOD Notice to the RD Note Issuer and demanded for
payment from RD Note Issuer on 16 April 2019. Then
the Group sold 2,019,000 China Rundong Charged
Shares and subsequently also contracted with LanHai
International Trading Limited (B2 /8 B R & 5% B B
A @) and Ms. Ding Yi (T 18) (“RD Charged Share
Purchasers”), to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China
Rundong Charged Shares (“Remaining RD Shares”) for
HK$80 million. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to RD Charged Share Purchasers was filed to the High
court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, for
details, please refer to our annual report 2019. Up to
the date of this report, 8,310,000 RD Charges Shares
was disposed in open market for cash return of HK$8.76
million. The total exposure as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$107.53 million (31 December 2020: HK$108.14
million) after amounts recovered from the sale of part of
collateral.

The legal proceedings between the Group against the
RD Charged Share Purchasers is still in progress. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
attended the mediation but no agreement was reached
with the RD Charged Share Purchasers. Further Witness
Statement was exchanged and our case management
conference hearing was held on 29 November 2021.

The case trial date is now fixed on 5 October 2023.
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As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
RD Note was HK$NIL (31 December 2020: HK$17.98
million), after a provision for impairment loss as at 31
December 2021 of HK$107.53 million (31 December
2020: HK$90.17 million), representing NIL% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group (31 December
2020: 1.9%).

As the trading of the RD Charged Share was suspended
since 1 April 2021 and the chance of trading resumption
is remote, full impairment provision is made against RD
Note.

US$13 million 8% senior secured guaranteed notes
("SP Note”) issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) matured on 30 July 2019.

The Group issued in October 2018 an EOD Notice to
the SP Note Issuer and demanded for payment from the
Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. (the "Corporate Guarantor”)
and Mr. Yuan Yafei (the “Personal Guarantor”) as
guarantors, in respect of all outstanding sums owing
by the SP Note Issuer under the SP Note. The SP Note
is secured also by charges over a total of 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited
("C.banner Shares”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1028). On 9 January 2019, the
Group submitted an application to the Intermediate
People's Court for the enforcement of amounts
due under the Mediation Order and the Settlement
Agreement. Details please refer to our annual report
2018 and 2019. The Company received notice from
the Sanpower Group on 8 December 2021 that the
Restructuring Plan of Sanpower Group was passed,
The Plan scheduled to resolve the defaulted debts
and part of the related interest due through business
restructuring and improving fund pool through disposal
of certain assets or investments. The restructuring
Plan will last through 2021 to 2028. The Company is
registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors and will be
notified by Sanpower Group for their updates on the
Restructuring Plan.

The total exposure of the SP Note as at 31 December
2021 was HK$101.36 million (31 December 2020:
HK$100.78 million).

(ii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
SP Note was HK$33.47 million (31 December 2020:
HK$20.24 million), after a provision for impairment
loss as at 31 December 2021 of HK$67.89 million
(31 December 2020: provision HK$80.55 million),
representing 6.1% of the consolidated total asset of the
Group (31 December 2020: 2.1%).

Valuation of the carrying amount of the SP Note was
based on the closing price as at 31 December 2021
of 131,000,000 C.banner Shares (31 December 2020:
131,000,000) that secured the SP Note of HK$0.365
per share (31 December 2020: HK$0.22) and a lack of
marketability discount of 30% (31 December 2020:
30% discount) was applied.

US Dollar Debt Fund

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is the only investor of
this fund and all the debt investments in this fund is regarded
as proprietary trade in the Group’s financial statements.
Carrying value of each of those debt investments in the fund
is less than 5% of the consolidated total assets of the Group.
The details of the debt investments in the US Dollar Debt
Fund as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

(i)

US$2.69 million (face value) of 9% guaranteed bond
issued by CFLD Cayman Investment Ltd. maturing on 31
July 2021 (“CFLD Note”); On 9 March 2021, the Group
received a notification from our fund administrator that
the CFLD Note was defaulted due to a cross default
terms of the CFLD Note. Independent valuer is engaged
to assess the expected credit loss of the CFLD Note in
major credit rating agencies.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
CFLD Note was HK$8.03 million (31 December 2020:
HK$8.41 million), after a provision for impairment
loss from expected credit loss assessment as at 31
December 2021 of HK$12.93 million (31 December
2020: HK$13.07 million), representing 1.5% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group (31 December
2020: 0.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(i)  US$1.3 million (face value) of 7.25% senior unsecured
bond issued by Greenland Global Investment Limited
maturing on 12 March 2022 (“GL Note");

As at December 2021, the carrying amount of the GL
Note is HK$10.14 million (31 December 2020: HK$10.03
million), representing 1.9% of the consolidated total
assets of the Group (31 December 2020: 1.0%).

After the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this report, the GL Note was redeemed upon
maturity.

US dollar bond linked notes

All brought forward investments in US dollar bond linked
notes were redeemed upon maturity in the Year Under
Review.

HK Dollar fund linked note

On 26 June 2021, the Group invested HKD20,000,000
through its subsidiary, OCI Capital Limited (“the Noteholder”)
in Total Return OCI Investment Fund SPC — OCI Real
Estate Fund | SP (Class B) Linked Notes issued by Essence
International Products & Solutions Limited (“the Issuer”)
due 2022 (subject to extension) comprising, for designation
purpose only, 20,000,000 units of the Notes with a principal
amount of HKD20,000,000, each linked to the Class B
participating shares in a segregated portfolio entitled “OCI
Real Estate Fund | SP” (“the Fund”) of OCI Investment
Fund SPC, an exempted segregated portfolio company
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands, to which
these Conditions relate. Cash dividend is expected to be
8% per annum to be received semi-annually pursuant to
the applicable PPM Supplement of the Fund at that time.
The Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the relevant Dividend
Amount (if any) on each Dividend Payment Date. Furthermore,
the Issuer shall pay to the Noteholder the relevant Extension
Fee Balance (if any) within five (5) Business Days following
the actual receipt of the Extension Fee Balance by the Issuer
pursuant to the PPM Supplement of the Fund.
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REBEBRZERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 27 December 2021 half of the investment in OCI Real
Estate Fund | SP was redeemed by the Issuer, hence the
Group also redeemed 10,000,000 units in the said HK Dollar
Fund Linked Note in early January 2022. Interest income from
the HK Dollar Fund Linked Note amounted HK$1.05 million
for the Year Under Review.

Equity Securities

The Group did not re-activate its listed securities investment
portfolio during the Year Under Review in view of the
downturn of the market sentiment due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic after the Group disposed of the entire
listed securities investment portfolio to cut losses on stocks
with adverse performance in the last quarter of 2020. Hence,
there is no turnover and income or loss for the Year Under
Review from listed securities investment (year ended 31
December 2020: realised loss of HK$4.48 million) and there
is no dividend income from listed equity investment for the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$0.40
million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021,
unsecured revolving facilities of US$100 million from
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, one of our substantial
shareholders. The outstanding principal amount of the loan
as at 31 December 2021 amounted to US$11 million. Other
outstanding loans brought forward from last year were
settlement within the Year Under review upon maturity.

the Group has one fixed-rate,

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 is
24.6% (31 December 2020: 86.9%), calculated based on
total borrowings (including borrowings, obligations under
Repo and lease liabilities) of HK$91.59 million (31 December
2020: HK$430.04 million) divided by shareholders’ equity of
HK$372.79 million (31 December 2020: HK$495.00 million)
as at that date.

The Group’s bank balances and cash as at 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$313.01 million (31 December 2020:
HK$338.01 million). Its total assets as at the same date were
HK$544.67 million (31 December 2020: HK$956.62 million).

SR @57 7 i

RZEZ—F+=A=++tH BFTAEE
[@ OC| Real Estate Fund | SPH) — ¥ 3% & » A itk
AEBSTR T -_—_F— AVIELR RIS
JLE & # 89 Z 4% 910,000,000 % JT - A B B8

FE-ELTESCHBAZTENNBWARIOS
BEBT-
IR AN 2

AREBE-_ZS_TFEE—BEELEHAN
ELTEAKREHAEG UWRHERE RWMEE
BREMTRAEE H&ERCOVID-19%
BREBBMBRAER AEEREEF
ERAXEEFHB LTEHFLEHESG - At
REBEFERLSAERABLTELFRRENEE
BB AXEBEEB(BE-_ZE-_EF+=-A=
+—BLFE: - ZREE448B8EET) M
REBEFERNSARELTRAKRENRE
WA(EBE2ZZE-FEF+-_A=+—HLHF
E:040B8BT) -

MAMEE WD MRERGEIE
R—_E-_—F+-_A=+—HB AEEHFH
—BIZRRZEBEEERBRAFMNEEL
ERFRERERE EEAI0BEETL RN
TE-_—F+-A=+—H XEEBEEZLX:
AENBBELT ZFHENHEMARAEEER
EEBEFEINBHELEE -

AEEBR-_ZE-Z—F+_A=+—HWEE
BELER26%(ZE_FTEF+ A=+
—H:86.9%) NEHEZANEELE(R
EEX BoOHBax TITHEARBEEAR) A
M9 EBTL(ZEEF+=-_RAR=+—8:
430045%;’%75) BRIARRE#ER372.798 &

Bir(= 93$+_H:+—E|-495.OO§
%J’ém)#
RZE-Z—F+-_A=+—HB AEEHNIR

H’

?i’:mﬁ%&fﬁi%313o1§%—/;§7ﬂ(—iﬁ =
F+-_A=+—8: 338015%,’%73)0@5
MEERLBERSNMIGIEEBTL(ZZE_ZFF
+=A= —1——E|~956.62§F%'/’§7E)

23



24

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR @57 7 i

The Group recorded net current asset of HK$367.21 million
(31 December 2020: HK$461.28 million) and inventories
increased from HK$5.65 million as at 31 December 2020 to
HK$7.29 million as at 31 December 2021. The current ratio of
3.1 times (31 December 2020: 2.0 times) is calculated based
on the current assets of HK$539.09 million (31 December
2020: HK$917.26 million) over the current liabilities of
HK$171.88 million (31 December 2020: HK$455.98 million).

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the issued
capital of the Company was HK$15 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
event after the reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Saved as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
and in this report, the Group did not carry out any material
acquisition nor disposal of any subsidiary during the Year
Under Review.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2022 AND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

Global economy has been affected by the coronavirus
pandemic for over two years and is still ongoing! However,
economic recovery started from the lows of mid-2020 with
high levels of both monetary and fiscal policy support from
central governments. The world has changed over the
last two years and many economies are still struggling to
readjust. High rates of inflation are an important symptom
of this readjustment process. To a large extent, they reflect a
mismatch between the recovery of demand and supply. We
can see this in disruption to global production and supply
chains but also in labour markets.

Strong growth rates in 2021 are likely to be followed by
only a slight moderation in 2022. The Asian’s economic
dynamism will make for an exciting 2022 after a challenging
2021. Chinese economic stabilisation is likely to benefit many
regional assets while the US region’s economic growth will
slow down in face of interest rise and monetary tightening.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business. The Group targets to structure more
project funds for the asset management business as HKEX's
creation of a listing regime for special purpose acquisition
companies (SPACs) takes effect on 1 January 2022. That is a
good mechanism to facilitate the Group to turn some of these
structured project funds into listed companies. The Group
has submitted an application to HKEX for listing of a SPAC,
named Pisces Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March 2022.

On the other hand, the Group will build up more licensed
business in PRC through strategic acquisition or joint venture
with PRC corporations.

Meanwhile, more resources will be allocated for the
development of Type 1 (securities trading) business as asset
management is our main stream for income generation. We
need to improve our hardware and software for the changing
business environment for this sector.

For trading of wines and other beverages, the Group will keep
on with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories.
Management intend to accept crypto currency as one of the
settlement means for trading of wine and other beverages in
2022 and hope that can improve the trading performance.
We expect to keep the same pace of 2021 as the existing
pandemic condition prevail.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted (and its borrowings are
denominated) in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars while wine
trading billings are mainly settled in Euro, Sterling Pound,
and Hong Kong dollars. However, the operations of our PRC
subsidiaries are conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a certain
extent. Currently, the Group has no formal hedging policies
in place. The Group has not entered into any foreign currency
exchange contracts or derivatives to hedge against the
Group's currency risks. However, the Group will continue to
closely monitor and manage its exposure to foreign exchange
and will consider engaging hedging instruments as and when
appropriate.
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DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil). The
Board did not recommend any dividend payment for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021,
outstanding after the secured term loan of HK$155 million
with a local bank was fully settled when fall due.

no secured borrowings were

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2021, no capital commitments were
reported (31 December 2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
Directors are not aware of any material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 5 employees
in the PRC and employed 20 employees in Hong Kong. The
Group has maintained good relationship with its staff and has
not experienced any major disruptions of its operations due
to labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical
benefits programme for its employees in Hong Kong. It
also contributed to the retirement insurance, medicare,
unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC for its employees
in the PRC.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with
their work performance and experience. The Board has
designated the duties of determining Directors’ service
contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses of the
Company to the remuneration committee of the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of OCI International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard
of corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for
enhancing a high degree of accountability and transparency,
maintaining sound and effective internal control, improving
the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year"), the Company has complied with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2021, the Board was comprised of Mr. Wu
Guangze, Mr. Feng Hai and Mr. Wei Bin as executive directors
("Executive Directors”); Mr. Jiao Shuge and Ms. Zheng Xiaosu
as non-executive directors (“Non-executive Directors”); and
Mr. Chang Tat Joel, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr. Li Xindan
and Dr. Lo Wing Yan William as independent non-executive
directors (“Independent non-executive Directors” or “INED").
Mr. Wu Guangze was appointed as Executive Directors on 8
March 2021. Mr. Jiao Shuge was appointed as Non-executive
Director on 8 March 2021. Dr. Lo Wing Yan William was
appointed as an INED on 2 July 2021 and Mr. Fei John Xiang
retired as an INED on 17 May 2021 upon the expiry of terms
of appointment.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and is also responsible for the financial performance,
risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group
are delegated to the Group’s management. All directors
of the Company (“Director(s)"”) are provided with updated
information relating to corporate governance and regulatory
matters. During the Year, all Directors had been provided
with monthly management updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties under the Listing Rules.
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The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
functions with written terms of reference. The primary duties
are:

1.  To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

3. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

4.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors.

5. To review the Company’s compliance with code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 48 to
56.
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Attendance record of meetings: @ FEeE

BHE _T-_—F+_A=+—"HLEFE &
BEELRARRTRAEZ 2SI WMT :

The attendance records of each Director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out as below:

Directors' attendance record of the board meetings,
committees meetings, and general meetings in 2021

CRC-FEZEEH ZECEERRRAGZEFHERNR

Extraordinary Annual Audit Nomination  Remuneration
general general Committee Board Committee Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting

RREHNAE RRBEAE BENZEEE6¥ 2 E208d REZE98d FMZRees

Number of meetings EE TS 2 1 2 13 5 4
Executive Director HiTEs

Mr. Wu Guangze' REELE 1”1 1”1 NAT i B 111 NAT & B NAT & R
Mr. Feng Hai BBEE 12 11 NAZ i PR 913 /AT PR /AT PR
Mr. Wei Bin Rt 1 11 N/A T8 73 N/AT 8 A N/A T 3
Non-executive Director FUNES

Mr. Jiao Shuge? EHRALE? 22 /1 N/AT & B 911 N/AT i R N/AT i
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu BNERL M 11 NATE A 12113 NAZ @R NATE B
INED BUFdrES

Mr. Chang Tat Joel HEnss 0 i 20 113 5/5 4/4
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EZRiE 2/2 1N 22 12/13 5/5 4/4
Mr. Li Xindan ELAEE 22 11 212 12/13 5/5 4/4
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William® Exf@Le b)) N/A 7 N 5/5 NAZ & R NAZTE B
Mr. Fei John Xiang* BARE NA K i A N/A T & A N 33 0 11
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1 Mr. Wu Guangze was appointed as an Executive Director
on 8 March 2021.

2 Mr. Jiao Shuge was appointed as a Non-executive
Director on 8 March 2021.

g Dr. Lo Wing Yan William was appointed as an
Independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2021.

2 Mr. Fei John Xiang retired as an Independent
non-executive Director on 17 May 2021.

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a
dedicated, diligent and proactive manner with reasonable
prudence. They have executed their duties in accordance
with statutory requirements, the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the Listing Rules.
All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring corporate
matters of the Company and provided sufficient time and
attention to all significant issues of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The Executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss
the ordinary business of the Company. Board meetings are
held to discuss the overall development, operation, financial
performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the
Board. Reasonable notice has been given to Board members
to give them an opportunity to attend. All Board members are
provided relevant documentation covering the subject matter
of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided
with sufficient information in a timely manner to review
and consider matters to be discussed at Board meetings and
also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to
attend in person. The Board held thirteen Board meetings
during the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”), are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”).

The members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are Independent
non-executive Directors. Clear written terms of reference of
all the Board Committees are given to the respective members
of these Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set
out below:

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 2001. The
Company adopted a set of revised written terms of
reference for the Audit Committee in January 2019.
During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee is comprised of the following
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William
(appointed on 2 July 2021)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, review and supervision of the
financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control policies and procedures of the Company.
The Audit Committee also acts as the communication
bridge between the Board and the external auditors in
relation to the planning and scope of audit work. The
appointment of members to the Audit Committee was
based on members’ breadth of experience in various
commercial sectors and professional knowledge of
financial reporting and general management.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss the pre-audit planning and review
interim results and annual results of the Group,
internal control and risk management issues. The risk
management policies and procedures was adopted
in the year 2016 and the enterprise risk management
advising service and internal control review report were
prepared by an external advisor and were reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee which included changes
in line with the requirements of the CG Code in March
2012. During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee is comprised of the
following Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William
(appointed on 2 July 2021)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, determining the policy for
the remuneration of Directors, assessing performance of
Directors and approving the terms of Directors’ service
contracts. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
approves the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held four
meetings and recommended the remunerations of the
Directors and senior management.
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3.  Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
March 2012 and the Company adopted a set of revised
written terms of reference which included changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in January
2019. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee is comprised of the
following Directors:

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William
(appointed on 2 July 2021)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii)
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess
the independence of Independent non-executive Directors;
(iv) make recommendations to the Board; (v) to review the
nomination policy and board diversity policy on regular basis;
and (vi) to monitor the implementation of the nomination
policy and board diversity policy and report in the corporate
government report annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following
procedures and processes in respect of the nomination of
Directors:

1. The Nomination Committee may select potential
candidates for nomination by: (i) inviting the Board to
nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its consideration;
or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by
the Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment
agencies to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;

2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background
search on each potential candidates;
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3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then
make recommendations of the suitable candidates for the
Board’'s consideration and approval. For the election of
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation to
Shareholders; and

4. Shareholders may also nominate candidates for election
as a Director in accordance with the procedures posted
on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service of the retiring
Director(s) to the Company and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, including but not limited
to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings;

2.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director(s)
continue(s) to satisfy the criteria of the Company; and

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held five
meetings to consider the re-appointment of the retired
Directors and the appointment of Mr. Wu Guangze as the
Executive Director, Mr. Jiao Shuge as the Non-executive
Director and Chairman, Dr. Lo Wing Yan William as the
Independent non-executive Director and Mr. Chu Kin Ming as
the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution
of its profits as dividends to the Shareholders.
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In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group's
business and rewarding the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things,
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group

e the capital and debt level of the Group
e the general market conditions

e any working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future development plans of the Group

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group

e the liquidity position of the Group

e any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the
Group’s lenders

e the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is
subject to from time to time

e any other relevant factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration
and payment of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of
Hong Kong and the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding to duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials would also be provided to
newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. There
is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code and report on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by the following means to develop
and refresh their knowledge during the Year.
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Reading materials/attending training course ] & # &t/ & 52 3l
Reading materials/attending training course i i& # £,/ & £ 3

Reading materials/attending training course i i& # £,/ & 5%
Reading materials/attending training course B i& # ¥t/ & £

Reading materials/attending training course i i& # £,/ & £ 3
Reading materials/attending training course B i& # £,/ & 15 3l
Reading materials/attending training course [ & # &t/ & 52 3l
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Directors Training received
BEs EEZ NI
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Wu Guangze REERE

Mr. Feng Hai g EE

Mr. Wei Bin Bl k4

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Jiao Shuge EREEE

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu BNRLL

Independent non-executive

Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Chang Tat Joel EEREE

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan BEERLTE

Mr. Li Xindan ELRAE

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William EXx{CHELT
The topics on training covered the listing rules update, corporate

governance, finance and industry specific regulations.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Reading materials/attending training course i :& # £t/ & 15
Reading materials/attending training course i :& # ¥,/ & £ 5
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following
enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or
she has complied with the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code for the Year.

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Code provision A.2.1 requires the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer positions are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation
of duties in respect of the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. The
Chairman is responsible for the management of the Board
and the strategic developments of the Group. The Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for the Group’s day-to-day
corporate administration.

During the period from 1 November 2020 to 7 March 2021,
the Company did not have a chairman, the role of the
chairman was carried out by the executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent non-executive Directors bring independent
judgement to the Board. Each Independent non-executive
Director sent a written confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that
all Independent non-executive Directors have met the
qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications
and experience to ensure they are capable to perform their
duties and protect the interests of the stakeholders. Every
appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal
introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of
the Group’s business and operation, his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.
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According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM"). In addition, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Furthermore, each Director, including those
appointed for a specific term or holding office as Chairman
and/or the Chief Executive Officer, are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of
individuals nominated as Director and senior management.
The Board considers the experience, qualification, general
market conditions and composition of the Board in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional
qualifications and relevant work experience are provided at
the Board meeting to approve the proposed appointment
of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors are
mainly based on the candidate’s qualifications, experience,
professional knowledge, ethics and integrity.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In January 2019, the Board has adopted a set of revised board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy"”)
pursuant to which the Board considers a number of aspects,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services in designing the Board's
composition. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and
to monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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As at 31 December 2021, Board diversification in terms of: RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—"H EF€%
LB TH o 5EE S :
Gender % 3
11% 89%

Female

ziE

Age Group F i 4 5l
22% 22% 45% 11%

30-39

Capacity & 14
33% 22% 45%

- Independent Non-executive Directors
Executive Directors 1T &= P

BYFHUTES

Length of Service in the Board R E = & IR ¥ £ 1§
67% 22% 1%

0-3 years 0-3F 7-9 years 7-9%

Nationality Bl £&

78% 1% 1%
. Singaporean
Chinese #[E]
F iR
Educational Background # & 2 &
33% 45% 22%

Bachelor's degree 2+ R2E Doctor’s degree

BIRE
Professional Experience E ¥ & &
22% 55% 11% 11%
Accounting Academic Biology
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BYFHTEFHMM ELTESEAG:

Lo Wing

Chang Tso Siu Yan

Tat Joel Lun Alan Li Xindan William

BRiE A EER =0 E XK=

Executive director WITES - - - -
Non-executive director FHMITESF - - = =
Independent non-executive director BIFHITES - 2 1 5

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Company took into account of (i) the
prevailing market conditions; (ii) the time commitment
requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the
experience, to ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract
and retain high calibre personnel without paying excessively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary, Mr. Chu Kin Ming. Mr. Chu Kin Ming
has confirmed that he had received no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December
2021 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and the Articles of Association of the
Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Company general meetings are valuable platform to allow
the Board to communicate with Shareholders and answer
questions regarding proposed resolutions. Individual
resolutions stipulated at general meetings for each substantial
issue and Board members are available to answer questions
raised by Shareholders.
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The Board adopted a Shareholder’s communication policy
aiming to provide Shareholders and potential investors with
ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. Information of the Group was
disseminated to Shareholders and investors as follows:

e Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all
Shareholders and other interested parties;

® Announce interim results and annual results on both
the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company; and
issue and publication of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

e Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of
announcement as required by the Listing Rules and
pursuant to Inside Information Provisions under Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Procedures for directing Shareholders” enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary by
mail to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at Suite
811, Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting following the
procedures set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
for an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director, for election as a new Director, the Shareholder
must deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 811,
Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact
information of the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to
be proposed). The Notice must also be accompanied by a
letter of consent (the “Consent Letter”) signed by the person
proposed to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Consent
Letter will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will forward the
relevant documents to the Nomination Committee and the
Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a
Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and believe these statements give a true and fair view
of the Group’s affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements
of the Group and to ensure they are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The Directors are also committed
to make appropriate announcements in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules, and to disclose all
information necessary for Shareholders to assess the financial
performance and other aspects of the Company.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the external
auditor of the Group for the Year and will continue as such
until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. The auditors’
responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 121 to 127
of the Company’s 2021 Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including
but not limited to, their independence and objectivity of the
external auditors of the Group.

The fees of the external auditors of the Group for audit
services amounted to HK$1.30 million and for non-audit
services, being engagement on the Group’s interim financial
statements 2021 amounted to HK$0.17 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and to review
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal
control systems are designed to meet the Group's particular
needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to
eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives.
Practicable and effective control systems and procedures
have been implemented by the Group to enhance internal
control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and
the adequacy of such systems at least annually.
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During the Year, the Executive Directors are responsible for
the overall risk management functions. In order to comply
with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board
has retained an external advisor with a view to facilitating
adequacy of resources and quality of internal control review
to satisfy the Group’s internal audit function as required by
Stock Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual
reviews on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the Year. The
results of the assessment have been reported by management
to the Audit Committee. And areas of the recommended
actions have been identified and taken into consideration by
the Board for improvements.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the annual internal
control review conducted by external advisor to assist the
Group, and reviews of the internal audit function performed
by executive management, respective Board Committees and
the Board, the Audit Committee and the Board are of the
view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the financial
period ended 31 December 2021.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of risk management and appointed a professional
management consultancy firm, to provide internal controls
assessment services to assist Company to assess and
evaluate. The Audit Committee members, together with the
management, have reviewed, considered and discussed all the
findings and recommendations of the internal control review
relating to the internal control system that operates within
the Group, and the Audit Committee is satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group is sound and adequate.
Pursuant to the system improvement recommendations made
by external advisor, the Group will continue to improve its
internal management and control systems.
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The management and various departments conducted
periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal
control policies and procedures. During the year ended
31 December 2021, management of the Company had
conducted an internal control review on the systems of
internal control of compliance of CG Code under Listing Rules
Appendix 14 and follow up the highlighted areas in the year
2020 to ensure compliance with procedures laid down by the
Company and the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management are effective and there are no
irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that
suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management system.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirements. It also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information.
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Key procedures in place include:

J define the requirements of periodic financial and
operational reporting to the Board and Company
Secretary to enable them to assess inside information
and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

J controls the access to inside information by employees
on a need-to-know basis,
confidentiality of the inside information before it is
properly disclosed to public;

and safeguarding the

J procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, analysts,
etc. in ways which are in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the financial statements for
the Year.

On behalf of the Board
OCl International Holdings Limited

Wu Guangze
Executive Director

31 March 2022
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guangze, aged 44, was redesignated as an executive
Director in March 2021, and he was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer in December 2020. He is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu obtained a
Master of Science degree from the University of Reading in
2001 and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Hertfordshire in 2000. Mr. Wu is the managing partner of
China Consumer Capital Partners Limited (“CCC") since 2010.
He has over 14 years of experience in international investment
banking and private equity investment. He is familiar with
regulations in China and international capital market and
well-versed in the consumer and retail sectors in China with
strong fund operating experience. As the managing partner
of CCC, Mr. Wu is experienced in formulation of funds,
merger and acquisition, and follow by the execution of his
strategic plans, the corporate value are enhanced. Projects
led by Mr. Wu include Wumart Stores, Dmall, B&Q China,
NP Entertainment, YL Entertainment & Sports, Linekong
Interactive, Womai COFOC, C.banner, Benlai, Mixblu,
Etonkids, etc. Prior to joining CCC, he was a vice president of
Deutsche Bank Hong Kong's Investment Banking Department
from 2006 to 2009 when he was a key member of the
consumer industry group and led IPOs of several well-known
consumer goods companies.

Mr. Wu was a non-executive director of C.banner International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Feng Hai, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director in October 2020. Mr. Feng holds a Master degree in
Management Science from Fudan University and was awarded
both Bachelor degree of Law and Bachelor of management
degree from Nankai University in China. Mr. Feng has over 15
years of experience in private equity and investment banking
in China.
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Mr. Feng currently serves as deputy general manager of
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd.
("Orient Securities Capital”). Mr. Feng started his career
in Shanghai office of Sinochem Corporation, and has
subsequently served at Orient Securities Capital, Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities Co., Ltd. and Citi Orient Securities
Co., Ltd. as an investment banker. Mr. Feng is a sponsor
representative registered under China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC") and Securities Association of China
("SAC"). Mr. Feng was appointed as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Company from 11 November 2016
to 24 April 2019.

Mr. Wei Bin, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director and an authorised representative of the Company in
October 2020. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Wei has become a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1993, a Senior Auditor granted by the National Audit
Office of the People’s Republic of China since 2003 and a
Senior Accountant granted by the Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Personnel since 2003. Mr. Wei obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Auditing from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics in 1992, and his master’s degree in Finance from
Jinan University in 2001.

Mr. Wei currently serves as senior partner of asset
management of CDH Investments Management (Hong
Kong) Limited (“CDH"). He has over 25 years’ operation
and management experience in the finance and accounting
sector in Hong Kong and mainland China as well as in
complex transaction, mergers and acquisitions and business
development. He spearheaded several private equity
investment projects since join CDH.

Mr. Wei is currently an independent non-executive director of
Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 0196), a non-executive
director of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341) both companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an independent
director of Huize Holding Limited (NASDAQ stock code: HUIZ).
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Mr. Wei was the chief accountant and the chief financial
officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH"). Mr. Wei held various senior management roles
within CRH and its affiliates (collectively “China Resources
Group”). He was the director of finance, chief accountant and
chief financial officer of China Resources Group from 2001
to 2017. He led several industrial restructuring and capital
operation projects.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Shuge (£ & B), alias Jiao Zhen (£ &), aged 56,
was appointed as non-executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Jiao received a Master
degree in Engineering from the No. 2 Research Institute of
Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics (fin 2= fin X T % &0
% — fff 3% BX) and a Bachelor degree in Mathematics from
Shandong University (111 3 K ).

Mr. Jiao is currently a director and chief executive officer
of CDH China Management Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has
a broad range of experience serving as director of various
listed companies. Mr. Jiao is a non-executive director
from February 2004 to April 2012 and as an independent
non-executive director from April 2012 to December 2021 of
China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (stock code: 2319.
HK), a non-executive director from April 2006 and as the
deputy chairman from November 2016 to August 2018 of
WH Group Limited (stock code: 0288.HK), the chairman and
a non-executive director of Mabpharm Limited (stock code:
2181.HK) since July 2018, and an independent non-executive
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (stock code:
1055.HK) from June 2015 to April 2021, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Jiao
also serves as a director of Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd. (A EEREZERERHER R 7)
(stock code: 000895.57) from August 2012 to August 2021, a
director of Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd. (& F & F| # 25 i% 15
B R A 7)) (stock code: 300630.5Z) since June 2015 and was
a director of Joyoung Company Limited (JLF% I 15 B R 2 7))
(stock code: 002242.57) from September 2007 to April 2020,
all of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Jiao is also the chairman and an executive director of Ningbo
Akin Electronic Technology Co., Ltd (2 & 35 88 & T &I &
§% 17 & B2 A 7)) since March 2016, a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations. He served as the
vice general manager of the direct investment department of
China International Capital Corporation Ltd. (1 = Rl
A R A 7)) from December 1995 to August 2002.
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Ms. Zheng Xiaosu, aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in February 2017. Ms. Zheng holds a Bachelor degree
in Mathematics, Accounting and Financial Management from
Loughborough University in the United Kingdom. Ms. Zheng
has around nine years of experience in investment banking and
asset management in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zheng currently serves as managing director of CCBI
Investment Limited.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Tat Joel, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2014.
Mr. Chang has considerable strategic, financial and advisory
experience. He is the co-founder of AID Partners Capital
Limited and a founder of Genius Link Assets Management
Limited, both are private equity investment companies. He
now continues building the businesses of Genius Link Group.
He is also a member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from Monash University in 1990.

Mr. Chang was an independent non-executive director of
Hailiang International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2336) and
an executive director and chief operating officer of Mason
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 0273), both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chang was a non-executive director of AID Life Science
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Healthoo International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8088), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 38, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. Mr. Tso
graduated from University of Cambridge with a Bachelor and
a Master degree in Land Economy, majoring in real estate
finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the founder of the China
Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior to establishing CMS,
based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked as an investment director
of the Everbright Ashmore China Real Estate Fund, a joint
venture real estate private equity platform sponsored by China
Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Ashmore Group
PLC (LSE stock code: ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong,
Mr. Tso also worked at Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial
Real Estate team where he was principally involved in the
firm's principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He
also worked at the HSBC's Global Capital Markets — ABS &
Structured Bonds Team where he was principally involved in
the bank’s securitisation business. As for community services,
Mr. Tso has been invited to become the 11th session member
of the China People’s Political Consultative Conference
Beijing Haidian District, the 10th, 11th and 12th session
member of the Beijing Youth Federation, the 3rd and 4th
session member of the Beijing Overseas Friendship Association
Youth Committee, the 8th session council member of the
Beijing Haidian District Overseas Friendship Association, the
Innovation Committee Vice Chairman and a council member
of the HK Professionals (Beijing) Association, an executive
member of the Hong Kong Internet Professional Association
(iProA) and the board member of the Self-Storage Association
("SSAA").
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Mr. Tso is currently an independent non-executive director
of Da Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1580), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
respectively. Mr. Tso was an independent non-executive
director of Shi Shi Services Limited (Formerly known as Hang
Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Xindan, aged 55, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director in December 2020. Mr. Li holds a
PhD in Finance, Professor, Doctoral Supervisor, and Special
Allowance Expert of the State Council. He was a professor
of School of Economics and Management of Southeast
University and Dean of the School of Engineering and
Management of Nanjing University. He is currently the Dean
of the New Finance Research Institute of Nanjing University,
the Deputy Director of the Humanities and Social Sciences
Academic Committee of Nanjing University, the Director
of the Academic Committee of the School of Engineering
Management and the Director of the Financial Engineering
Research Centre of Nanjing University. Mr. Li is also the
Committee Member of the Academic Degree Office of
the State Council and National Supervisory Committee for
Professional Degrees in Finance of the Ministry of Education,
Director of the Expert Committee of Evaluation of Science and
Technology Innovation Board System, a member of the Listing
Committee of Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE), a member
of SSE Corporate Governance Index Committee, Standing
Director of the China Finance Academy, the chairman
of Jiangsu Capital Market Research Association, the vice
chairman of Jiangsu Association of Science and Technology
Innovation.

Mr. Li is currently served as an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd (stock code: 600919.
SH) and Nanjing Securities Co. Ltd. (stock code: 601990.SH),
both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of
C.banner International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
an independent non-executive director of Yoozoo Games
Co., Ltd (stock code: 002174.5Z) a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3678) a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Lo Wing Yan William, aged 60, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director in July 2021. Dr. Lo is
an experienced executive in the TMT (technology, media
and telecommunications) and the consumer sectors. He has
held senior positions in the past in China Unicom, Hongkong
Telecom, Citibank HK, I.T Limited and South China Media
Group. Dr. Lo graduated from Cambridge University with
a M.Phil. Degree in Pharmacology and a Ph.D. degree in
Molecular Neuroscience in the 80’s. He started his career in
McKinsey & Company Inc. as a management consultant.

Dr. Lo currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of a number of public companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”), including Dr. Lo is an independent non-executive
director of Television Broadcasts Ltd (Stock code: 511),
CSI Properties Limited (Stock code: 497), Jingrui Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1862), South Shore Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 577) and Oshidori International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 622). Dr. Lo is also an independent director of
Regencell Bioscience Holdings Limited (Stock code: RGC)
which is listed on the NASDAQ.

Dr. Lo also served as an independent non-executive director
for following companies, including SITC Int’l Holding
Company Limited (Stock code: 1308) from September 2010
to October 2020, Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 0933) from June 2019 to December 2020, Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Ltd (Stock code: 0404) from June
2018 to September 2019, Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3301) from January 2016 to June 2019. Dr.
Lo was the chairman in SMI Holdings Group Limited (Stock
code: 0198) from January 2019 to April 2019. Dr. Lo was also
an independent non-executive director of Nam Tai Property
Inc. (Stock code: BTP) from July 2003 to November 2021,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Dr. Lo is
also the founding governor of the Charles K. Kao Foundation
for Alzheimer’s disease and the ISF Academy as well as the
present chairman of Junior Achievement HK.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Toi Kin, was appointed as the Executive Vice
President of the Company in October 2020. Mr. Chan is
a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and a fellow member
of Association of Chartered Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor degree of Business Administration with a
major in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance and specialised in corporate development and
management, fund setups and finance leasing etc. in recent
years. He has broad and deep knowledge in finance including
on-shore and off-shore corporate structure, investment and
risk control.

Mr. Chan was a managing director of GLY Capital
Management Limited, a subsidiary of Zhejiang Geely Group.
He was a director and the chief financial officer of China
Resources Capital Management Limited and the finance
director of China Resources Capital Holdings Company
Limited.

Mr Lui Kwok Wai was appointed as the Vice President and
the Head of company secretarial department of the Company
in November 2020 and May 2021 respectively. He is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company and the
Managing Director and Responsible Officers of OCI Asset
Management Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. He manages SFC Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9
regulated activities and also acts as the Managers-in-Charge
directing and overseeing the Overall Management Oversight
and Key Business Line functions. Mr. Lui is focusing on
company management, fund investment & capital market
area, and business development.

Mr. Lui obtained a bachelor's degree of Science in
Engineering (Environmental Engineering) from the University
of California, San Diego in 2013.

Mr. Lui has extensive experience in capital market and
corporate finance. He served as the Senior Vice President
of the leverage & acquisition finance division of Mason
Securities Limited from October 2016 to July 2020. Mr. LUI
was responsible for margin finance, general offer finance,
merge & acquisition projects, asset management, advising on
securities trading and funds investment, as well as issuance of
investment research report.
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Mr. Lui also served as non-executive director of China
International Development Corporation Limited (stock code:
264) from February 2017 to March 2018, which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam Suk Ping, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in June 2011 and resigned as an Executive
Director and continued to act as Chief Financial Officer in
July 2017. Mr. Lam holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration from the University of Hull and a degree
of Master of Corporate Governance from Hong Kong
Metropolitan University (formerly known as The Open
University of Hong Kong). He has over 35 years of experience
in auditing, finance and accounting, investment and
business management. Mr. Lam had been an independent
non-executive director of Mingyuan Medicare Development
Company Limited (listing status on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange was cancelled on 23 January 2020) (stock
code: 0233) for the period from 20 May 2016 to 22 January
2020.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming was appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the Process Agent of the
Company in May 2021. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and he has extensive experiences in the field of auditing,
accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters.
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OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We"
and “Our”, and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”)
hereby presents this environmental, social and governance
("ESG") report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 (“Year 2021").

OBJECTIVES

To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Guide") of the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx"),
disclosures relating to the material ESG issues identified have
been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the Mandatory
Disclosure Requirements and “Comply or explain” Provisions,
include General Disclosure requirements and KPIs of the ESG
Guide.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
We applied the following principles in the preparation of this
report:

Materiality

We engage with our stakeholders to identify and assess ESG
issues that matter most from their perspectives. We assess the
materiality of these ESG issues based on the corresponding
risks posed on the sustainability on the Group's business.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools, and
source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective
sections in this report.

Balance

We avoided intentional selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that might inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment to provide an unbiased picture of our performance.

Consistency
We applied consistent methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.
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RIE-HHEKEIBHRS

REPORTING SCOPE

During Year 2021, the Group was principally engaged in
asset management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, trading of wines and securities trading
and investments. The ESG Report discloses the Group's
performance on environmental and social aspects of the
entire Group’s businesses.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility (“CSR") to
society. Consequently, our Board oversees environment, social
and governance (“ESG") issues.

ESG issues are identified and evaluated for material risks
posed to the Group. Once identified, the Board neutralizes
the risks from these material ESG-related issues.

We integrate social and environmental aspects into our daily
operations where practicable whilst balancing the cost of
such integration against tangible returns.

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ESG forms a crucial part of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Director”) is responsible for overseeing our
ESG strategy and reporting, and overseeing the management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems to address the
ESG-related issues.

We established following teams led by Board of Directors
to determine ESG issues, their responsibilities are shown as
follows:

Board of Directors (the “Board”)
o Has overall responsibility over the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting;

] Adopts top-down management approach in
management ESG issues;

J Delegates the ESG-related responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and Senior Management;
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Ensure appropriate ESG-related goals and targets has
been set up;

Review the progress of ESG-related goals and targets;

Reviews and approves ESG report;

Audit Committee

Identifies, evaluates and determines ESG related risks
through risk-assessment;

Reports to the Board on ESG related findings and issues
identified;

Ensures appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Senior Management

Develops ESG policies and measures;

Designs, implements and monitors the risk management
and internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Ensures compliance with legal requirements related to
ESG matters;

Sets up ESG-related goals and targets;

Monitors the progress and performance of ESG
initiatives;

Reports to the Board on ESG work (including the
progress of ESG-related goals and targets);

Prepares ESG report;

Departments and Business Units

Implements the ESG policies and measures;
Reports to the management on ESG work;

Collects feedback from stakeholders;
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OUR GOAL AND PROGRESS REVIEW

The above teams also set environmental goals and social
goals for the sustainability of the Group’s business, our goals
are shown as follows:

J While promoting the steady growth of our business, the
Group regards social and environmental responsibility as
one of the core values in its business operations;

J Key environmental concern of the Group is the
consumption of energy and corresponding greenhouse
gas emissions during the provision of securities trading
and investments, asset management, investment and
financial advisory and trading of wines services;

] The goal/target of the Group related to environmental
issues is to maintain stable energy efficiency;

J Key social concern of the Group is safety and well-being
of employees as they are the foundation of business
growth;

] The goal/target of the Group related to social issues is to
maintain safe working environment and maintain close
relationship with employees:

The teams regularly update the Board on the achievement
of KPI goals which include the environmental goals and the
social goals. For the meanwhile, our Board continues to
monitor the risks posed to the Group from these material
ESG issues. As business continues to evolve, our Board is
constantly on the lookout for new ESG issues.

The Group is committed to undertake ESG responsibilities and
improving our ESG performance by upholding good corporate
governance standards, implementing environmental friendly
measures, responding to stakeholders’ expectation with
practical actions and promoting the sustainable development
of the Company.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises the expectation and feedback from
our stakeholders are vital for sustainable development of
the Group. During Year 2021, the Group continued to
understand the key ESG concerns of our key stakeholders
through various communication channels and platforms, such
as communication meetings and corporate website etc., to
promote and adjust the strategy of sustainable development.
Key stakeholders include shareholders and investors,
government and supervisory institutions, customers, suppliers,
employees and communities.

The following table shows the management communication
and response to the stakeholders’ expectation and concerns:

RIR-HEKREBHRS

Bind
AEBFRAFNENHRE RO EHANEEA
SBEERMEMNBEE- R _T_—FFFE
HE AEEEEEETANEBRERYF
el REeERARMEES)THEER
MERRE HEREATEANERNBIF
HoRMREERFHEARBEERAORE - £
ERNEBEBRRMEREE BEREEH
B BEF HEB EERHRE-

=
= 7\

TR EEEBHRNDERERBIFEN
A8 K O fE

Management
Stakeholders Expectations and concerns communication and response
] HERBTIENRE EEEBBEREE
Internal key stakeholders
ABEEFOE
Employees > Labour rights > Regular management communications
> Career development and performance review
> Remunerations and benefits > Employee communication meetings
> Occupational health and safety > Employee activity, trainings and
> Respecting all employees and voluntary activities
ensuring fair treatment > Email
> Supporting career growth and
providing internal training
> Pay attention to occupational health
and safety
> Establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration scheme
== > ST #m > THEERERRIEMML
> ZEXRER > BERRE
> 5B RN > EBBED [ RERE
> BERELZ R > B
> BEMARE HRAFTEE > XHEERBREXZR RHUHAME
Bl
> IEBRERELAT R
> BIYATF ABMABRF NN

B 88 %
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Stakeholders
HHE

Expectations and concerns
HEREEIEE

2021 Annual Report

Management
communication and response

EEEEERDE

External key stakeholders
HNBEEEFDE

Government/Regulatory
Authorities

B BB

Shareholders/Investors

BRMREE

Customers

> Compliance with laws and
regulations

> Support local economic growth

> Fulfill tax obligation

BTIRRNMAR
XEH T REE R
BITHBEE

\J

v

Y

Return on investment
Corporate governance
Compliant operation
Information transparency
& @ #H

AAElER

BREE

BHRERE

YYVYYVYVYYVYY

)

Outstanding products and services
Identifying clients’ needs and
improving product and service
quality

> Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests

Y

- BEERRRH
>~ TREFRE
R R E &

-~ BEEFPAR REEF M

SENEEM

vy

v

Y

A\

YV VY VY

YYVYVYVYYVYYYVYYVYY

Regulate compliance with local laws
and regulations

Regular information reporting

Pay tax on time, and in return
contributing to the society
EEETEMERRLERANBR
EHE R SRS
RESRALSELS

Annual general meeting and other
general meetings

Annual and interim report
Announcements and circulars
BMERBFRGRHAMBRRAE
FELPHRS

N E KR K

Customer satisfaction surveys and
feedback form

Customer service hotline and email
Company website

Phone

Mailbox

Social media platforms
EFmEERAEMEREX
BEFERBARLER

YNESIE v

E

BFi]
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Management
Stakeholders Expectations and concerns communication and response
FHE HEREEIEE EEEBBEREE
Suppliers > Stable demand > Supplier meeting and events
> Good relationship with the > Establish and maintain strong
Company and long-term relationship with
> Corporate reputation suppliers
> Fair Competition/Equal rivalry > Engagement and cooperation
> Select suppliers with due care
HER > FREE > HEBERE LA
> B QAR R TR > BHEBREYIMRBEZHERH
> bEEFEE B B8 1%
> RERFFERF > 28 LA 1E
> REmEMHER
Community > Environmental protection > ESG reports
> Community contribution > Announcements
> Economic development > Company website
> Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy,
nurturing virtue and values
it & > RIFRE > RE HERERRSE
> it = & R > RNE
> RBEER > A A #
> BAEERARMPDAER EY

EHEEER
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENTS

Materiality assessment was conducted in accordance with the
expectation and feedback from the key stakeholders. Based
on our assessment, the management of the Group prioritises
Occupational health and safety, Supply chain management,
Service quality and safety, Anti-corruption and Climate
change as material aspects of our long-term sustainability.
Effective internal control systems on these aspects are
reinforced with the aim of enhancing efficiency of operations
and generating the environmental and social benefits to our
stakeholders.

We use the following process to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues:

Step 1: identify the ESG-related issues

o The issues are identified based on the disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guides in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, the business characteristics of
the Group and the ESG report of the industry peers

Step 2: prioritise the ESG-related issues

e The management collects feedback from the
stakeholders in daily operation

e  The management takes into account the materiality to
stakeholders and materiality to business in prioritising
the issues

Step 3: determine material ESG-related issues

e The issues with higher priority was identified as material
issues

S2MTG
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The Key five material ESG-related issues are shown as follows: A AKHEIRFE - HEREREBENERZEAD

ESG Issues
BRE HEgREREE

Nk

Reasons of why they are material

ELBEEBREAZENRRE

1. Occupational health
and safety
1. BRERERLZR

2. Supply chain
management

2. HE#HER

3. Service quality and
safety

3. BRBERRERZE

4. Anti-corruption
4. RERHR

5. Climate change
5 R &1

Fewer employees missing work from illness or injury can improve efficiency and
productivity of our Company.

BMARRBIAZEMRGNBEATIARSARBANREMEER -

It is an essential part of the success of our wines trading business. This enables
Company to ensure product quality, increase competitiveness and creates value
for customers.

ERMABEESXRBRYNEZAXN LD EEARAERERE
uuuuﬁ RanFhiiARFPAIEEE-

Customer service and product safety are our important concern. We expect that
improving customer satisfaction and product safety management can improve the
market image of the Company.
EFRERERZERBMBAINEZZE -RMEN ReEFPWER
REGRZEEBKFTEARARNAANTISER -

Failure to monitor, identify and prevent of money laundering will have negative
impact on society and also affect Company reputation.

AEEZE BAIEHLEAEKEHLEELAEATE X ELARANE
£,

Climate change will increase the chance of extreme weather which will affect
Company operations.

REELCEENEFRAOREY EBYEARANHEL -
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Importance to Stakeholders

HIEENENEEHY

Medium

Low

FfE(E

Anti-corruption and
Anti-fraud

Remunerations and
benefits
RES N

B A

Community
contribution

fEE R

Waste
management

Prevention child
and forced labour

BEEWER
FhiEET R
oR:EE T

Low

{li§

> Environmental

Bk

L 2R 2

AR 2

> eV

oV

Materiality matrix

ERMER

Customers satisfaction
Customers privacy
protection

Employee training and
development
BEEmEE
RIEZFILE

S THEIINER

Use of resources

Suppliers
management

Occupational health
and workplace safety

BIRE A
HEmEE

A ERET ST S

Attention to community

[Faha

Medium

FREE

Importance to the Group

HEBNWEEN

< Employee
8T

C000 20 GO

Y
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Economic performance
Compliance with laws and
regulations

Product responsibility
Employee right

Qualifications and professional
conduct

BRI
B TERROER
Emad
EEREm
BERERET

Emission
Energy consumption and
efficiency
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BURERE R R

Environmental
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Impact of climate change
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emissions

Despite that the Group’s operation does not have any mass
emissions or significant impact to the environment, the
Group is committed to minimise our environmental impacts
by responsibly managing our business, reducing our carbon
footprint and using resources effectively. Hence the Group
has established relevant emissions reduction and energy
saving initiatives to manage the emissions and maintain green
operations.

Our Group compliance with the following significant rules
and regulations in relation to environmental protection:

J Air Pollution Control Ordinance (cap 311)

J Environmental Protection law of the People’s Republic
of China* (Chairman’s Decree No. 9: 2015.01.01
Implementation Edition)

. Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control law of the
People’s Republic of China* (Chairman’s Decree no. 31:
2016.01.01 Implementation Edition)

Air emissions
The Group did not own any vehicles, and hence insignificant
amount of or no air pollutants were generated in Year 2021.

Greenhouse gases emissions

During Year 2021, the Group generates minimal greenhouse
gas from purchased electricity and business air travel by our
employees. Our goal is to promote a culture of energy saving
and to gradually reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control
measures like entry restrictions, compulsory quarantine
for inbound travellers and social distancing practices, the
decrease in outdoor business and transportation activities
drastically reduce the demand for business trip via air travel
and carbon dioxide emission from business air travel was
declined accordingly. The operation of the Group does
not have material impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

REBEBRZERERAT
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A summary on the relevant emissions related key performance —ZE - —FFE AR AN ERABRAREE X
indicators of the Company (“KPIs”) for Year 2021 (with 2020 EEZ(BEREIEBEZ)BMBE(ER === F

comparative data) is disclosed as follows: LERBEF)REBEMAT -
2021 2020
Types of emissions B B 3E Bl —E-_—F —E-THF
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by ~ Z &1t % (CO,) (1 {E & & 2 R # 597 kg 2,293 kg
business air travel by employees) HZEEA) 597 A fr 2,293RA fr
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by =& At #x (CO,) (A E /1 & 4) 13,586 kg 16,644 kg
electricity) 13,586 2 fr 16,644 fr
Total Carbon Dioxide (CO,)emissions = &1k ik (CO,) 48 B i = 14,183 kg 18,937 kg
14,1832 1 18,937 A fr

CO, emission (in kg) CO,BEE (A )
® Carbon Dioxide (CO,) produced by electricity (kg)

—&{LB (CO,) (ABHEE)

Carbon Dioxide (CO,) produced by business air travel by employees (kg)

—&bdix (CO,) (HEEFRAREHEESE)
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000 2,293

597

Year 2020 Year 2021
—ECTEEE e
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During Year 2021, our overall carbon dioxide emissions had
significant decrease due to the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, which lead to the reduction of the business
trip via air travel. The decrease in carbon dioxide emission
from business air travel is also attributed to the following
measures:

e The promotion of choosing transport that produce less
carbon emissions.

o The successful adoption of telecommuting provides
flexibility and reduces the frequency of business trips.

The Group endeavors to improve energy efficiency and reduce
energy consumption by adopting energy saving initiatives in
the Section “Use of resources” in this Report.

Waste management

The Group’s operations do not produce any hazardous waste.
The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group were
mainly papers and solid wastes generated in our office and
warehouse during our operation, which were insignificant
and had little impact to the environment. Principles of
reducing, reuse, and recycle are applied in minimising waste
generation.

RIR-HEKREBHRS
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A2 Use of resources

Our Group is committed to conserving resources in our
business activities, including use of energy, water and
paper during our operation. Our goal is to stable the energy
and water consumption level. We aim to reduce the use
of resources and corresponding carbon footprint through
adoption of various green initiatives. Green awareness is
promoted among employees in order to drive their behavioral
changes. Green measures on deploying energy efficient
equipment and adoption of resource conserving process
are implemented in pursuing our commitment. Awareness
is promoted among our employees, and various green
measures are implemented in the office area, including
printing paper on both sides and reusing papers printed on
one side, switching off lights and air-conditioning for rooms
and computers not in use and setting room temperature at
25.5°C.

The Group's existing businesses are not expected to pose a
significant use of water or packaging materials and hence
has no material impact on the environment. The Group will
promote water conservation to its employees.

A summary on the relevant use of resources related KPIs of

A2E R E F
AEEETEETHPHNHENER BFEX
Wﬂﬁ¢%;~m&%%%%§°ﬁﬁmﬁ
ERTHEBRRKOBEEXKTE -BMH IR
Lﬂ% Xﬁﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁ$§ﬁﬁ%&mﬁ
HixEH KM EEEHERREFH B
REFEREEEBE - BETT ﬁﬁm%a C ]
MEETHERLERAEREREAERE
HEFESRREE - BRMAEEEHERERE
BOUYERAEHETEERREE BRE
FHLEREEDR KR BEAIEFEHF
J%—F'ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ”ﬁﬂ&”ﬂﬁiﬂiﬁﬁqﬂﬁ’]éa & A &
BERNREZNRBEK255E -

BRAEEREEB IS REEAKABE
MR AEHERREYEEATE - AEEE
A g B HEEE A MK e

:;:*¢¢T$EIE’J§E{§FMEF’%F’WL

the Group for Year 2021 (with 2020 comparative data) is i@ B E(ER _—_ T - SFHEHZ)E
disclosed as follows: N
2021 2020
Use of resources ERMEA —E-_—F —_E_TF
Electricity B 19,649 kWh 19,759 kWh
19,649 F BB 19,759 T R ¥
Paper & R 632 kg 218 kg
6322 T 218X fT
Electricity & Paper #iR
m Electricity (kWh) m Paper (kg)
B (TER) Mmx ()
25,000 800 632
20,000 19,759 19,649 600
15,000 400 218
10,000 200 -
5,000 e
Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2020 Year 2021
—BRFFE B —FFE —BRFFE B —FHFE
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A3 The environment and natural resources

Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not have
any direct and significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources in the course of our operations.

Our Group aimed at monitoring possible environmental
impacts of our business operations and investment portfolio,
and to implement measures to control the adverse impacts,
in order to generate long-term values to our stakeholders as
well as the whole community.

In order to implement the policy, we monitor our impact on
the environment and natural resources. Various sources of
pollution, including land, water, noise and air are monitored
by our management. If necessary, environmental impact
assessment is performed in order to assess the environmental
risk of the business activities. Necessary measures are taken
to control the risk and comply with national/local laws and
regulations.

A4 Climate change

The Group understands that climate change is a global issue
that affects everyone around the world. We are aware of the
impacts of climate change on the sustainable development of
our business operations and costs increase for wine storage.

We carry out risk analysis to determine the positive and
negative impacts of climate change on our operations,
and the likelihood that such impacts would occur. We set
parameters and provide resources to identify significant
climate-related issues and mitigate their impacts.

RIR-HEKREBHRS
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According to the Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons and
Rainstorm Warnings and the Safety Guide for Working in
Inclement and Hot Weather published and revised by the
Labour Department, we have established with employees
the reasonable and practicable work arrangements under
tropical cyclone warnings, rainstorm warnings or extreme
conditions following super typhoons as well as other severe
weather, including getting to work, leaving work, returning
to work and working from home (if applicable). The company
has consulted employees and involved them in the process
of formulation of work arrangements and contingency
measures.

The work arrangements under severe weather will be
reviewed regularly and updated or revised appropriately
based on experience and the needs and actual conditions of
both employers and employees.

B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group. We
strive to attract and retain talents and reconcile economical
imperatives with well-beings, aiming at reinforcing
satisfaction, loyalty and commitment of human capital.
In order to enhance our governance in human resources
management, our Directors directly involved in governing the
recruitment, resignation, termination, training, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, discipline, other benefits and
welfare, in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees are
reviewed annually based on the performance of employees.
Our Group established a compensation practice taking into
account the overall economic outlook, relevant external
compensation levels as well as the requirement of internal
fairness. A wide range of benefits including gift voucher
or cash coupon for celebrating Chinese traditional festival,
annual health service, comprehensive medical and retirement
schemes are also provided to employees. In response to
the COVID-19 epidemic situation in Hong Kong, the Group
strictly abides by the government’s social distancing measures
and various epidemic prevention measures in Year 2021,

RESTRAMETNBARERES T
ETAMES RERARR TN ITIEL2EE
HEBITHTABATRAEES ENES
FHEBRRARNERBERL AREMES X
RINEEMIEATHTIERS 8% LI
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BERAKEREEEENEE -BMB B
BRBEBAST UFEHHHFRKERERERBA -
EEMBRER - EHERANEREA -
RREANEREENELR EZHREEH
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We committed that nobody should be treated less favorably F & & F M ABH T2 E MR - T4k - 1§
on his/her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy, kR BE - REMR R X E K S B A F &
marital status, disability, family status, and race. Opportunities MX E T FEFB - EE - BI KRBT ELR
for employment, training and career development are equally #E@H A FRETFHELERES -

opened to all qualified employees.

The Group complied with all the relevant laws and regulation, AEBEE BT EHBBRNEEZREZR B2
including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57 of the Laws of & &AM ES7TZERBIED KL E B HEIEH -
Hong Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance.

A summary on the relevant employee composition related A&EB _-_T - —FHESHAXEBENBRE

KPIs of the Group for Year 2021 is disclosed as follows: MIERBRERENOT
2021 2020*
Social KPIs HEBEAERER  Unit B —EBZZ—F —T_THF~
Total workforce BEEAH number A B 25 -
Total workforce by gender & £ 5l &l 2 #9
EBEHAY
Female 4 number A B 15 -
Male St number A B 10 -
Total workforce by RERERE SN
employment type EBEHEH
Full-time £l number A B 24 -
Part-Time e B number AH 1 -
Total workforce by REEERNE SN
employee category EEAH
Senior management SRERE number A B 8 -
Mid-level management hRERE number A B 3 -
Entry Level EEANE number A 14 -
Total workforce by RERMAR S D W
age group BEAY
Below 30 305 AT number A B 4 -
30 to 50 305 505% number A B 18 -
Over 50 505% WA number A B 3 -
Total workforce by R EE SN
geographical region BEEAH
PRC a3 number A# 5 -
HK BE number A B 20 -
*  The Group chooses to start disclose social KPIs datain  * AEBEEER _T-_-—FHEBREHLSE

2021 78 52 45 IR IR IR
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Employee Composition
By Gender
BENBSHERER

10,
40%

15,
60%

B Male 7 Female
Egk i

Employee Composition
By Employment Type
RERERSSHESHER

1,
4%

24,
96%

B Full time [ Part time
28 R

Employee Composition
By Geographical Region
BRMESSEERER

B PRC [ Hong Kong
il B
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Employee Composition
By Age Groups
BRERANBS0ERHEK

4

3,
% 16%

18,
72%

[ Below 30 M 30 to 50 Over 50
305 AT 30%I505% 5057 A £

Employee Composition
By Employee Category
RERBGNESHESHER

8,
32%

14,
56%

3,
12%

Senior [ Mid-level M Entry Level
management management HEBAB
BRERE PRERRE
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A summary on the relevant employee turnover rate related AEB - T - —FHESRAXHBENE R
KPIs of the Group for Year 2021 is disclosed as follows: BEHEENERENAT :
2021 2020*

Social KPIs HEBBENIER Unit By e
Employee turnover rate EBERKLZE % % 20% -
Employee turnover rate RMUEBE SN

by gender EBER K=
Female g3 % % 20% -
Male B % % 20% -
Employee turnover rate RERARNE 2B

by age group BERAE=R
Below 30 308 A T % % 0% -
30 to 50 30 %50 5% % % 22% -
Over 50 508% A E % % 33% -
Employee turnover rate R EE D W

by geographical region EBERRL R
PRC & % % 0% -
HK S % % 25% -
& The Group chooses to start disclose social KPIs data in 2021 * RAEEEER _Z_—FHREBEELESHERE

LEEREE
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Employee turnover rate by gender

(Percentage)
EMRESNEERKLER (BoLL)
40%

30%
20% 20 20
B
0%
m Male = Female
S g

Employee turnover rate by age groups

(Percentage)
RERARESWEERALR (BOLL)
40% 339
0,
(o]
10%
0% 0%
m Below 30 30 to 50 m Over 50
305 AT 30E507% 5078 A

Employee turnover rate by
geographical region (Percentage)

EWESSTHNEERALER (o)

40%
30% 25%
20%
10%

. 0%

m PRC = Hong Kong
PR BB
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B2 Health and safety

Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe,
healthy, and hygienic workplace for all employees, and all
other persons likely to be affected by our operations and
activities.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has posed a significant threat to
public health. The Group exercised social responsibility to
safeguard our employees against infection and contain the
epidemic by implemented a series of measures:

J Arrange regular COVID-19 testing to employees;
. Body temperature screening on main entrance of office;
o Regular cleaning and disinfection of the workplace;

] Reminded the employees to maintain good personal
hygiene such as the need to wear surgical masks
properly and washing hands frequently in office;

J Requested the employees to declare their health and
recent travelling history;

J Requested the employees who had been travelled
overseas recently to stay at home for self-quarantine;
and

] Adopted flexible working arrangement to allow
employees to work from home so as to enhance social
distancing.

The Group will closely monitor the development of the
epidemic and strengthen the precautionary measures if
necessary.

Health and safety standards are given prime consideration in
our operations and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld.
Employees are committed to deliver safety initiatives in
reducing the potential danger in workplace. Considering the
occupational risk, proper protective equipment and guidance
are provided to the employees.

RIR-HEKREBHRS

B2 ERZ 2
AEBEBNATEIBRMEKERETHEED
TREENIMBEMAL  RETHEFTLE -
ERGENTIERE-

COVD- 19 IEMBEHAXFBEBR TEK
BE ASEBBEN—RIEBITHFELS
ET URERMNER & RRETLIEFH R

1 -
. EAHEBETHEBRABWRBA
- EBAZEMEARERA:

. EEMERREBIEBM:

- RERARBALSNAAGLE HIME
EERBINHOBURERAZEE
HF

s EXEEFRBECHRBREMRREEHH
17 RC 8%

e EXRIHMEBEKRTHNEEBERTHET
BR®RE: AR

s RAEAMIGZH HEEATUER
TR femB R XERE-

AEBERZNEERBENER LAELER
058 T8 B 45 7 o

REERZE2REEIRMEEEBNEEE R
MBEMTERETEERE - BEAHET
BMAOTHERBEBECROZETR - ZE
BERR RMEMEERHEENRER
| iEsl -
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Appropriate training, education, and evacuation exercise are
organised regularly. Employees are encouraged to report
unmanaged workplace hazard and to suggest improvement
on workplace safety.

A summary on the relevant number and rate of work-related
fatalities related KPIs of the Group for the past three years is
disclosed as follows:

BMEHEREZHIN HERGHRES
VTxBEEEREEAZNIFERREREL
RITERRLE2RAES

AEBBE=FHAIRTCABLEILT
XHBENEREREEHMERENAT

2021 2020 2019
Social KPIs HERMRENERE —=T--—F —T-_FTF —T-NF
Number of work-related fatalities IRT AE 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities IRTH 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury RIGELXIERH 0 0 0
B3 Development and training B3# R Kk iEZ I
To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel AERPTEXFTENEENASTRE A& H

development of employees, our Group encourages and
supports our employees in continuous personal and
professional training. Training enhances employees’
competencies and potentials in performing their jobs
effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual
success of employees and the Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements,
and skills required, we committed to create an environment
of continuous improvement through providing in-house peer
learning and on-the-job coaching as well as subsidies of
training or education to employees. We also encourage our
staff to attend external training courses and seminars.

Eiﬁbi'ﬁiﬁﬁé-\ EXTEBEARERE -
EREIRAREARE AT IERNEE
NKEH REMER/REERANEEHKAIRA -

BIRERERERUEAFTXRE HMAE
ﬂW‘LBHH ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%&h%%&l"lﬁﬁkT

BB BB BN EERBRITRE
i&iﬁ TP E B B T 7E Hh &R F I AR
B

&&
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In Year 2021, the Group organised a training course
which covered the major changes of the Listing Rules
and regulations. Directors and senior management of
the Group participated in the training to maintain their
continuous professional training development and to fulfil
their obligations under Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In additions,
our professional staffs have also attended SFC Continuous
Professional Training and ACCA Exams for their continuous
professional development.

A summary on the relevant development and training related
KPIs of the Group for Year 2021 is disclosed as follows:

RIR-HEKREBHRS

R-ZTFE-_—F AEECEREHELTRA

EREEEC2E26REI UEFERFW
FEEXEINIBER KEMETRKERLTR
A4S X ERTRIBETOHEE - It
S R ERXZABEZMTSFCHRBER X
Tl RACCAZ A URERENFTEEEXEH
& o

AEE—T - —FHEERNIEMAERA R
EMESHRERENT

2021 2020*

Social KPIs HERRFERERZR Unit B —B-—F —_ T _TFx
Percentage of employees FIEEBD L

trained % % 56 % -
Trained percentage RMUEBEDHNZI

by gender EEEO L
Female gl % % 57% -
Male B % % 43% -
Trained percentage REEERNE SN

by employee category FHEEES
Senior management aRERE % % 29% -
Mid-level management R E R % % 14% -
Entry Level AEAB % % 57% -
L The Group chooses to start disclose social KPIs data in 2021 RZTE-—FHEEELBERESE

*
5
S
5
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Total No. of trained & untrained staff

RAlRKZINR A

14,
56%

11,
44%

B Total of trained staff
ZHIB THEER

[ Total no. of untrained staff
AZHNE T B

Trained percentage by employee category

BRESFENNSHRIREESE

57%

Senior management 7 Mid-level management
SREEE PAREIRE

B Entry level
HEAE

Trained percentage by gender

BEANSHRIERESS T

43%

57%

B Male B

[ Female =M
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2021 2020*
Social KPIs HEBBENIER Unit By e
Average training hours BEEETY
per employee ZilRH hours AN 12 _
Average training hours BB E D W
by gender ¥ 15 3 3 B B
Female Z hours AN 16 -
Male B M hours N 7 -
Average training hours REEERE D W
by employee category F 15 3 B E N
Senior management SRERE hours N 4 -
Mid-level management AR EE hours N 7 -
Entry Level EEANE hours N 18 -
e The Group chooses to start disclose social KPIs data in 2021 i AREFBEEBER _T-_—FHEEBELS@ARE
WIE T BB
Average training hours Average training hours
by gender by employee category
R85 15 =2 5| BB RESERE S HNFEHZIEFE
40% 40%
30% 30% 4 7 18
20% 16 20%
10% 7 10% .
0% _ I 0% (| |
m Male Female W Senior management Mid-level management M Entry Level

BH pegca EREEE HREEE HEAB
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B4 Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and
forced labour in any of our operations and services. Children
who are identified by the local labour law should not be
employed, as they reserve the right to pursue education
in their childhood. With the aim to prevent child labour
employment, during the process of recruitment, information
of candidate is verified by checking the identity proof and
documents of candidate. Labour who is forced to work by
means of physical punishment, abuse, involuntary servitude,
peonage or trafficking is strictly forbidden. We will also avoid
engaging with suppliers and contractors that are known to
employ child or forced labour in their products or services.

The Group implement the following procedures to prevent
child and forced labour:

J Employee opinion boxes has set up to allow employees
to report child and/or forced labour;

] Human resource department would check the proof of
age for all applicants before confirm their employment;
and

o If child and forced labour is identified, investigation and
remediation actions would be conducted immediately.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to recruitment of child labour or forced labour
practices.

The Group guarantees employees the right to rest and
vacation according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and
legal leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual
leave and other leave entitlements.

Bif THR%E
AEERZEILIEERNEBEARETEBREIR
REST BHREWBSHEIEAREREE
EFKENEN WIASEREFEI - RER
EREFRNEIL REBBEHS HMAeES
R EREENTNERAXHRZEES D -
BRZELAREE B FERYH BRER
FIAOREESFRREST KM TKESR
HEEMBAEETHRES THHER MAR
BMEEmEARB LEHE-

REBRTUATREFABIEET RERBAST :

o EXVEEERME NHEERBET
K,/ SohiB % T

s ANERHBBERMRBEIEBEZAMERN
EHEBANFERER K

c MREREIRBEBT BUMES
BERWRTY -

BEHN AEBRERETRRE T L
RIS THOEAMOAREERARNEX
TEFER -

REBRBZZRERENKBRIKBRER -
BEFZAEZERBEEERRKR BER BN
B -EHFFREEMKKRER -
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B5 Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard
on business ethics and conducts, with managing the
environmental and social issues arising from their business
operations. During the reporting period, our major suppliers
of wine products are located in Hong Kong and Denmark.

During the supplier selection and contract drafting processes,
the following factors are considered in achieving “Green
Procurement” on the Group’s supply chain:

J Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of
products/services;

o Effort on limiting emission of pollutants;
] Responsible management of environmental impacts;

J Compliance with local environmental and social law and
regulations;

J Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money
laundering;

J Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,
disability or marital status on supplier’s recruitment;

] Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits;

J Provision of a safe working environment which complies
with local laws or practices;

] Community investment initiatives and effort.

RIR-HEKREBHRS

B5 1 FE 82 & 12
AEEGBHERARSKEREER IR

NERBEBLEMSIMOREREER
B-mERAN BMANIEZEEBEEMHE
BUREBRAE-

EHEHERALEESONBRES  X&E
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For identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, we implement the following methods to implement
during supplier selection of supply chain and monitor their
performance:

J The Group has developed a standard procedures in
selection, evaluation and monitoring suppliers;

J The Group has adopted the principles of openness,
fairness and transparency in supply chain management;

J Factors to be considered when corporation with
new suppliers include economic interests, products/
services quality, products/services safety, as well as
suppliers’ ethics, and suppliers’ compliance with laws
and regulations concerning environmental and social
practices;

° Business licenses, qualification certificates, production
safety permits and other management system
certifications will be collected during the suppliers
selection process to ensure that they comply with
relevant social and environmental laws and regulations;

e  The Group will give priority to products/services that
could promote sustainability;

e  The Group will perform assessment on suppliers on a
risk-basis approach;

e  The cooperation with suppliers will terminate if the
environmental and social standards not in line with the
Group's policy.

A summary on the relevant number of suppliers related KPIs
of the Group for Year 2021 is disclosed as follows:

BT BRI 0 IBE R A EER B M
7 3R 1 (I 5 ) G T AR O DA T A 3
B HRR

s AKEEEER FHLEBEHE®IA
HETHRERRF

e AEBEMHEREEITERRT AR
NF - BERHBRA

e HNHERAEREZENEREREL
Bz EnmE/ MEEE En/ R
B2 HEBNEBERT ARHRE
BHETERRERESENNERER
GO

e HGHHEBEESBETHEREZXHE -
BERE ZE2LEEFUENEMER
BEARE UEFRETAHABONLER
REBORBER

e AEBEHBEEEBTAREATFEMED
B/ R

. AEEBUARAEEN TR HKER
1T AT

e WMRERBELRHEBEESFTAEAKEI K
RoBRIEBAHREENAIE-

AEEB T FHHUHEEHERBENHER
EMESHRERENT
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PRC o 0
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B6 Product responsibility

Responsible investment policy

The Group realises the materiality of environmental, social
and governance factors in affecting the performance of
business, as well as the long term impact on the surrounding
communities. The investment may impact the local
community, for example on living condition of local citizens,
labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors
of ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and
decision making process.

As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG insight
in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control
undesired risk and maximise shareholders’ value in long-term
basis.

Product responsibility policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our
wine products. We developed strong governance structure
in monitoring the quality of wine products, with strict
compliance with the national/local laws and standards.
Facilities, warehouse, hygienic condition, quality control and
inspection procedures are examined on a regular basis. All
employees across the value chain will continuously achieve
various quality objectives.

The Group implement the following measures to maintain the
services’ safety:

o Monitor the room temperature and the hygiene level of
warehouse regularly;

J Establish the responsible investment policy;
J Establish the product responsibility policy;
J Establish the data privacy policy.

The Group is committed to providing quality products and
services to customers and focuses on customers’ responses
to the products sold by the Group. Customers can offer their
opinions or lodge complaints through existing communication
channels. The Group will conduct investigations and prepare
reports based on the responses and take corrective measures
when necessary.

RIR-HEKREBHRS
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Data privacy policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders’ personal
data is important to our Group. We ensure compliance with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other statutory requirements to meet a
high standard of security and confidentiality of personal data
privacy protection. The following data protection principles
are adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

J We only collect personal data that are relevant and
required for our businesses;

J We will not share personal data to any entity that is
not a member of our Group without consent unless it is
required by law or it was previously notified;

o We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect
against unauthorised access to personal information.

] Computer system is regularly updated and is installed
with firewall and antivirus software to avoid possible
hackers’ activities;

] All employees have signed confidentiality agreement.

The Group implement the following practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual property rights:

J The Group uses authorised and copyrighted products
only;

J Employees are not allowed to download or install any
forged or copied programs, software or materials;

] The Group’s standard employment contracts contain
provisions on Intellectual property rights and
confidentially.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations on
product health and safety, advertising, labeling, remedies and
protection of intellectual property rights, and also observes
the laws and regulations related to privacy. There was no case
of violation identified during the reporting period.
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B7 Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. Our Group does not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of our business
operations that compromise the interest of our shareholders,
investors, customers, and other stakeholders. The Group is
in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Our Group has provided publications, policy and training in
relation to anti-corruption practices to our directors, senior
management personnel and employees annually. The Group
also introduced of corruption policies to new employees.

Our Group has issued relevant whistle-blowing procedures
in setting up a private communication channel on reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Group’s management
directly. The conduct of employee is closely monitored by
management in preventing wrong-doings. Ongoing review of
the effectiveness of the internal control systems is conducted
on a reqgular basis in preventing the occurrence of corruption
activities.

During the reporting period, there were no reports of
non-compliance incidents in relation to corruption.

RIR-HEKREBHRS
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B8 Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and strengthening
the wider community, and encouraging employees and
other stakeholders in supporting the community. Our Group
understands well of the importance for making positive
contribution to the community where it operates, and considers
community benefits as one of its social responsibility. We
encourage our employee to actively participate in public
conventions, conference, exhibitions and events with a particular
focus on community investment, sponsorships and charitable
contributions.

Selection of supporting charities involves several
considerations. We evaluate the vision and background of
requesting charities in aligning with our Group’s. Charities
engaged in unethical activities, and those in unclear financial
position, and conflict of interest with corporation/individual
will not be considered.

The Group will continue to regularly review the objectives and
direction of community investment and monitor community
investment, sponsorship and donation activities and approval
policies. The Group will review annually whether the Group’s
social performance is in line with the community investment
policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IRE - -fIE8KEBHRESESI

REPORTING GUIDE

The following table is a summary of the relationship between T XHJIRB - H ek ERFEIEIIEARE
the ESG Guide and the issues found relevant to the Group. EEBEEMNBEBEE - TX MR & HE
It provides an overview on the Mandatory Disclosure HER[TEFTHBEIKY BESETEH
Requirements and “Comply or Explain” Provisions,including MBBIE TR E @A — MR IFE K EEEIEEZ:
the General Disclosures and KPIs of various aspects under

each subject area:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX
EEBMXFABEMNERE HEREAREES

Mandatory Disclosure

Requirements Reporting guideline Page
MW ERE ] & 5 5l =D/
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: 58-66

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses

HEZFEREHNEBER BERHETINAZR: 58-66

() BREESSHRE HLEREAZTEHMNET:

(il EEEeNRE HEREAREEAHARE  BEF
B EBRHEINREESEENRE HLEREREBER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX
BERABXBAGHRSE HEREAHEERES

Mandatory Disclosure

Requirements Reporting guideline Page
BEHRERE ¥ & 18 o =P/
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the 57

following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG
report:

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of
the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.
Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

BEE 7 R B WX EERBERE HEaRERERFNMAER T 57
PE R SR Al

EEM BRRE HELERBRETREE : )VBNEZRE
HtekeEtBEzNEENEREERAENER: (NWETT
ADETHNELE CRINEERFHENHER R ET
ABNELENBIERER -

Bl FHAERFEHRE SHREBWERMANEE - H
EOBREE/HAEIANEN URMEANEHRREAEN
X/ﬁ};%ﬁ&%"

—BM I BTARERE HEREARARETREST LA
FEREREENEE (WA AEFMNEMTEREREELER
AR & -

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report 58
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

bEE iz 5 [ BERRE HeREnRENERGE" &TL% EPLE 58
BAXKMARE HENERRENBE - FERLESR
ke ZETARBREBEIRCZEREHRA -

=]
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
A. Environmental
AR
Aspect A1 Emissions
fE E A1 23587
General disclosure Information on: 67
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— R E EHABRLERERBHEMR RMAKRLHWHHELT FERES 67
BEEMHEESTH
(@) B : &k
by BFHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emission and respective emission data. 68
78 B2 48 AR 1R A HE ) 1E 4R N A8 R B R BUR - 68
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 68
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
MRERERAI2 | HEE@EDREREE@EDRE AR EREUME 68
RUnEREE (N SER SN SERmHE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 69
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
MRERIEIEAS | FELAEEENAEAEHE)RWEREE(MUE 69
EEER  SERIBHHE) -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 69
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
A MIEIRALL FMEAREEEDRAEUBAE) R(MER)TE(WUAE 69

ERED SERHHE
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BERELRREINELBEEMRMOTE -

[ FEFHRBER]EX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
A. Environmental
A RIER
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 69
them.
752 4B W IRALS RIS MR EERRREINELEEMERBN TR - 69
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 69
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
B AE B IRALE HARBEESENBESTEEYN A it BT a] 2 &9 8 B 69
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

A. Environmental

A R

Aspect A2 Use of resources

& ' A2 BIREA

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water 70
and other raw materials.

— MR BRERERBIERR KEEMEME)BEEK - 70

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, 70
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

79 82 48 WA 1R A2.1 REDSASNEER  SBEZERWE  Falh)@EE (A 70
TEFERABZEIREEWMUEGEEEN BERXBETE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of N/A
production volume, per facility).

B 5 A IR IR A2.2 BEKERTEMWMINGESEEN BERMFTH) - i@ A

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken 70
to achieve them.

752 4B W 1R A2.3 BRI VUMW REANGERERREDE LB FAERR 70

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that N/A
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

A BEAE IR IRA2.4 et SKEGE B KR ERT B E R BB - LA R P& SZ 89 A K3 ~iE A
mEARELAEINELRRMEKIANLR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) N/A
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

7 52 4B W 1R A2.5 B mFAeEMHNES(UEE) R(WER) £ E ~iE A

BUKE-
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[(TEFHRBER]FX

General disclosure/

KPIs Reporting guideline Page
~BBE
BRENER R & 8 5l BER

A. Environmental

A R

Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources

[ EA3 BRERRXAER

General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 71
environment and natural resources.

— MR BMEBTAHRERAAEREXNERTENRE - 71

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 71
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

B 52 48 R 1R A3 X EHHRERRERRARAERNEATZTERERNER 71
BERATENTHY-

Aspect A4 Climate Change

& E A4 IR B 1k

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 71-72
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

— MR E BRI REHERRAEGHETAEELENEARIENE 71-72
EHEBEUR -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 71-72
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

B EMIRIEALT | HABRER RSB TAELVENEAREABES 71-72
N ESITE) -
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B1 Employment and labour practices
& EB1 BREREIER
General disclosure Information on: 72-73
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
—RIKE EHATMERE BEREA ITEHE RE - FS5HKe - 72-73
Z it s R IA K E A58 KB :
(@ HBE: &k
by BFHBTABEAXZENHBAEZERBROIBNER -
KPIs B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, 73-74
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
78 52 48 W5 1% B1.1 rMR EEER(MNEBIEE)  FRARN &bz E 98 73-74
EEHEH-
KPIs B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 75-76
region.
B2 IR 1E B1.2 BRER FRANEMREDHEEREKL K- 75-76
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B2 Health and safety
& B2 BERZR
General disclosure Information on: 77
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— R E EARHEZE2TIHERREAREEEREBELEEN: 77
(@ BX:k
by BTFHETABEAXENHEBZEZEZLAOIBNEH-
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of 78
the past three years including the reporting year.
78 B2 4 W R 12 B2.1 BEZF(ERERFRE)BFRITHNAZK R E- 78
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 78
79 82 4 W 15 12 B2.2 HIBELRIIEASH - 78
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 78
and how they are implemented and monitored.
79 B2 4 W5 15B2.3 AR ANBERRERE2ER URBEBRITRESR 78
7E e
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[TEFTHREBRIMKX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER

B. Social

B.# &

Aspect B3 Development and training

fE mB3 R K% A

General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 78-79
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities

— MR FRARTEEBITIEBRENME RN BE - 1t 1§ 78-79
A& E e

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 79-80
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

79 B2 48 R 5 12 B3.1 REFLREEEN(NEREREE BREERE I »>NZII 79-80
EBEBADL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender 81
and employee category.

79 B2 48 W 5 1% B3.2 BRUEFIREERRE D BREE TKAX N TR - 81
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
~BBE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B4 Labour standards
[E HE B4 EIRE
General disclosure Information on: 82
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
— MR BRADIEZETSab ST : 82
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBEIRZLAOINNER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid 82
child and forced labour.
B 52 45 R 15 1R B4 i BEEANNERUABEET RAHS T - 82
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 82
discovered.
B 52 45 R FE 15 B4.2 A EHRERBEARHR A BIERATERIE F5 - 82
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REBATRERET A

[TEFTHREBRIMKX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l =D/

B. Social

B.# &

Aspect B5 Supply chain management

fE T B5 HEEER

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 83
chain.

— R 5 ERHEENRERLSARBUE - 83

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 84

7 52 4 W 5 12 B5.1 muwREOWHEEFEAE - 84

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number 84
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

B8 $2 45 X 5 12 B5.2 HAERAEREEENEN RERTEBAEINOHRER 84
ZH URBBRATRERGE-

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social 84
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

7 52 4 W 5 1% B5.3 BB HERSERANRBERESREARNIED 84
AMBRESRITRERT L -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 83
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

79 $2 48 W 45 15 B5.4 HIEREHEERREEZARRER LRBENEL - R 83
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[(TEFHRBER]FX
General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B6 Product responsibility
€ EB6 EmEE
General disclosure Information on: 85-86
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
— R E ERMRHERNBRBENERELZY BE BRELLES 85-86
HA KRBT E :
(@) B : &k
by BFHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 86
safety and health reasons.
7 52 4 W5 12 B6.1 EEXCEXEmBRTREAL2EEZREAMADNKNE 86
% g ¢
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and 85
how they are dealt with.
2 $2 45 % $5 12 B6.2 EEAREMARBORFEHE AREH T X - 85
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 86
intellectual property rights.
79 $2 48 W 5 1% B6.3 A gEERRENREEEFTBNED - 86
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 85
7§ 45 15 12 B6.4 HilEERTEBENEREWRER - 85
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and 86
how they are implemented and monitored.
79 $2 4 W 15 12 B6.5 HIEEEERNRERLBEE  URBERITRERFE - 86
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General disclosure/
KPIs Reporting guideline Page
—-REE
HRERER R & 8 5l BER
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
fE HE B7 RES
General disclosure Information on: 87
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering
— R E BB ILRERS  BEFREBER 87
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBEIRZLAOINNER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 87
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
B 52 48 R FE 1ZB7.1 RERHAANHEETAZIHEEEREIEEENETHAR 87
HHBE RFRER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 87
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
7 52 4 W e 1R B7.2 M BERERBREF  URBEERITRERF - 87
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and 87
staff.
B8 52 45 5 1R B7.3 HimEEREIRHENREFEI - 87
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[TETHRBEBIMGX

General disclosure/

KPIs Reporting guideline Page
~BBE
BRENEE ik & ¥ 5l BR

B. Social

B.H&

Aspect B8 Community investment

/€ EB8 HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs 88
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

—MREE EANGER2ERTHREBEMNEHEFTENBEREIERE 88
PFEEREMEMNEAEE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 88
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

78 $2 45 A 45 1= B8.1 EIERERB(HE BESTHE HIF R -EFE Xk 88
BE)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 88

78 $2 45 R 45 12 B8.2 EEIHBEMPHAER(WMEERER) - 88
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The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 134 to 135.

The directors do not recommend any payment of a dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group
for the Year are contained in the Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this
annual report. Key sources of estimation uncertainty, capital
risk management and financial risk management are disclosed
in pages 241 to 265 of this annual report. There were no
material events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended
31 December 2021 using financial performance indicators
is provided in the section headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 4 and pages
9 to 26 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group’s corporate governance
is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 27 to 47 of this annual report.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s performance
by reference to environmental and social-related key
performance indicators and policies, as well as compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Company are provided in the paragraph
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 57 to 102 of this annual report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

On 14 October 2020 the issuance of 440,000,000 ordinary
share (“Subscription Shares”) to JZ Investment Fund L.P. at
HK$0.65 per share was completed. Net proceeds from the
issue of the Subscription Shares are approximately HK$285
million. The proposed usage of the fund raised and the status

2021 Annual Report

FRiS RIA A&

N = E _T¢+H+IEIEI’$QET%W$
& MR0.657% T [MJZ Investment Fund L.P. 3 1T
440,000,000 E B AR(TRBR M ]) - FITR
BROMEREBEFEAR25BE BT E’\
MBHmEBHREEAREAHENMESESE

>5-

=

at financial statement date and up to this reporting date are SREBABREMRDT :
listed as follows:
Amount in HK$ Intended usage Amount used at year end date
BTEHE BERZR REFBEERAEH
HK$200 million  Loan repayment HK$155 million was used for repayment of a term
200 &% T BEEX loan
ISSEBETRAREETHEN

HK$45 million used for repayment of other facilities
ASABEBTHAREEEMBE

HK$30 million Development of wine trading Used for development of wine trading operations when
30BE8E T operations the pandemic is under control by the 2nd quarter of
HREABDBEEER 2021
REBE_ZE_—FEF_ZFTEANXBEKARER
AHREBEEEER
HK$20 million Seed investment in new funds Used in fund investment in early March 2021
2088 AT NEeNEFRE RZEZ-—F=ZRAVARESKE
HK$5 million Working capital for Group's asset Use for paid-up capital required for Type 1 license
SE&EBTT management operation Under SFC and other operation cost by the 2nd to
FEBEEEEREBNEERR 3rd quarter of 2021
E_E_—FFE_ZE=ZFEAREIFESEH
BRATAEE®
PR A B B A £ & K AR
HK$20 million Working capital for securities Use for fixed income investment
20BBE T investment business AR EERAKE

EFREXBENEEES

HK$10 million Operating costs Used in professional costs and operation expenses
10EEET R N ARBERARKEERX
HK$285 million

285 B8 T
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on page 272.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the Company’s share
capital are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distributions to
shareholders as at 31 December 2021 comprised the share
premium, reserves plus retained profits with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$340.08 million (2020:
HK$484.91 million).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
Year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Jiao Shuge*
(appointed on 8 March 2021) (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guangze (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 8 March 2021)
Mr. Feng Hai
Mr. Wei Bin
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu*
Mr. Chang Tat Joel**
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan**
Mr. Li Xindan**
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William**
(appointed on 2 July 2021)
Mr. Fei John Xiang**
(retired on 17 May 2021)

* Non-executive Director
**  Independent non-executive Director
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 48 to 56
of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Chang Tat Joel
and Mr. Li Xindan shall be retired and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Guangze,
Mr. Feng Hai and Mr. Wei Bin has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 8 March 2021, 31 October 2020, 31
October 2020 respectively. Each of the non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jiao Shuge and Ms. Zheng Xiaosu, has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 8 March 2021 and 17
February 2020 respectively. The Independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Tat Joel, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan,
Mr. Li Xindan and Dr. Lo WIng Yan William have entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 2 September 2020, 16 May 2020, 18
May 2018, 5 December 2020 and 2 July 2021 respectively.

All Directors’ appointments will be subject to normal
retirement and re-election at the annual general meeting
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors and chief executives adopted by the Company were
as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of chief executives

FTETHRABHSR 56 HEEHE

Capacity/Nature of interests
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ZIEBENER

R —F+_A=+—"H BELAA
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FRHEGEM]DEXVE) 2 KH - BERGO &
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BB EI2IEBEH T 2B M BREARD A
ERM2EBERFETRABETERRSZ
EETRAASTNEARA BRI 2R
REEMT :

REAXFANREESR
AN A &FREEO.01E T &&ER(TKE])

Number of Approximate %

Shares Issued Voting
interested Shares
BEREZW W 81T

ROBE EREERH %

Beneficial owner

BESBAA

Mr. Wu Guangze
REERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, neither
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

31,000,000 2.07%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any associated corporations, and none of the Directors, or
their spouses or children under age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares or debt securities of the Company or
had exercised any such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the
persons or companies (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the ordinary Shares as at 31 December R

2021:
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T —#+-A=+—R FBRNOF

Approximate

Number percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares shareholding
BRRER g% BROBE REBABIL
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (A7 1) ExEEA
JZ International Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ International Ltd. (#f7F 1) X PEHE B E
Golden Power Group Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 20.94%
ENEBERRAI(AF2) ExEEA
Orient Ruixin Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RAERERRA(NF2) REGEEE R
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Management Co., Limited (Note 2)
RAER(LBREEBEARRA(MF2) XEHZE#ER
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2)
LEBRFABHEARAREBRRAI(MZ2) XEHZEZEER
Orient Securities Company Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RABFROBERDR (M E2) XEHEEE R
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 195,860,000 13.06%
BREZERERAR(HZ3) ExnlEBA
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%
BRREBEEKREBER AR (HZ3) REGEEE R
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%
BRERER)ERRA(MF3) XEHEEE R
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%
BITeMERBR QR (ME3) REHEE R
CCB International Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%
(Note 3)
ROBEREEZERER AR (HZ3) REHEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 3)  Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%
FERRRITROERRA(MF3) REGEEE R
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 195,860,000 13.06%

FRESREERAEEDA(HE3)

REGEZBER
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Notes:

1.

Save

JZ Investment Fund L.P., an exempted limited partnership governed
by the board of its general partner, JZ International Ltd..

R EEK D AR A A (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly
holds 100% of the equity mterest in Shanghai Orient Securities
Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the
equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Management
Co., Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital
of Orient Ruixin Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 3 J5 &
% B% 15 & BR 22 & (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient
Securities Capltal Investment Co., Ltd., Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai)
Investment Management Co., Limited and Orient Ruixin Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden
Power Group Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity
interest in China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn
holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
CCBI Investments Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd., China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings
Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments
Limited are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person,

other than the Directors, whose interests are set out herein

this report, had registered an interest or short position in the

shares or underlying Shares that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

been
resol

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) has

adopted by the Company pursuant to a shareholder’s
ution passed on 17 December 2012. The purpose of

the Share Option Scheme is to reward any Directors and

employees of the Group, any director or employee of a
company or entity in which the Group has invested in and any
advisors (professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,

joint venture business partners, promoters, any director

or employee of any service partners of any member of

have

the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,

contributed to or will contribute to the Group (the

“Participants”) and to encourage Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the
benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee under
the Share Option Scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any Shares subject to options granted during
such period under any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company other than those options granted pursuant to
specific approval by the Shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being, unless
further grant of options being approved by Shareholders
in general meeting with such Participant and his associates
abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and
(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of options shall be subject to prior
approval by resolution of the Shareholders (voting by way of
poll).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the
time of grant of the option which shall not expire later than
10 years from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme
does not specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised. However, the rules of the
Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may determine,
at its discretion, such term(s) on the grant of an option, which
decision may vary on a case by case basis. A remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for the
grant of option is payable by the grantee upon acceptance
of the grant of option within a period of 28 days from the
date of grant. Such remittance is not refundable in any
circumstances.
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The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all the Options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as at Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”).

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing
the Scheme Mandate Limit so that the Company would be
allowed to grant options under the Share Option Scheme for
subscription up to a total of 149,974,992 shares, representing
10% of the number of shares in issue as at 24 May 2021.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 16 September 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed to
grant 55,000,000 share options to Mr. Wu Guangze carrying
the rights to subscribe for 55,000,000 Shares and 50,000,000
share options to Mr. Wei Bin carrying the rights to subscribe
for 50,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of HK$4.53 per
Share (the “Grant”) under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 17 December 2012.

Validity period of the Share Options from 15 October 2021
to 6 June 2031 (both dates inclusive). Share Options of
each Grantee will be vested in five equal tranches (being
11,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wu Guangze
and 10,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wei Bin)
in accordance with the vesting schedule of the Share Options,
subject to the fulfilment of certain Performance Targets.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2021, the Company granted the Grant on
15 October 2021.
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Details of the Grant are set out below:

Tranches

First tranche

Second tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(i)

For the year ending 31
December 2021, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests
and non-recurring gains and
[osses MNote)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operations
and listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2021 is not less than
HK$495,004,000.

For the year ending 31
December 2022, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
MNote)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company's operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2022 is not less than
HK$594,005,000.
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Tranches

Third tranche (i)
(i)

Fourth tranche (i)

(i)

Performance Targets

For the year ending 31
December 2023, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
(Note)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company’'s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2023 is not less than
HK$712,806,000.

For the year ending 31
December 2024, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests and
non-recurring gains and losses
(Note)) and there is no occurrence
of events that would have a
material adverse effect on the
Company’'s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2024 is not less than
HK$855,367,000.
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Tranches

Fifth tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(ii)

For the year ending 31 December
2025, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses M) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2025 is not less than
HK$1,026,440,000.

If the vesting conditions are not met for any financial year,
the corresponding tranche of Share Options will automatically
lapse. Accordingly, the first tranche of Share Options were
lapsed as at the date of this report.

Note:

Non-recurring gains and losses refer to highly infrequent profit or
charge not arising from the Company’s ordinary and usual course of
business, including but not limited to the impairment losses on defaulted
investments and gains or losses on disposal of subsidiaries or business.

The total number of securities available for issue under
the share option scheme mandate limit is 149,974,992,
representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of this
report. Details of the share options outstanding during the

year are as follows:
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Number of share options
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company has no outstanding convertible securities,
options or similar rights in issue as at 31 December 2021.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the total borrowing (including
borrowings, obligations under Repo and lease liabilities) of
the Group amounted to HK$91.59 million (2020: HK$430.04
million).

DONATIONS
For the Year, the Group had not made any charitable and
other donations.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”)
in Hong Kong. Under the Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum
level of relevant income of HK$7,100 for the employees’
contribution. The Group's employees in the PRC, participate
in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and the Group was entered into or existed during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
There were no competing business of which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021 which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, time, commitment,
duties and responsibilities, contribution to the Group,
comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing
practice and trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself
and together with the next four suppliers accounted for about
31.6% and 52.4% respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself
and together with the next four customers accounted for
about 63.4% and 62.5% of the Group's turnover from
provision of asset management services and sales of good.
The largest customer of the Group is from asset management
segment (in terms of AUM), is a fund with four clients.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The related party transactions which amount to HK$62.02
million (2020: HK$1.40 million) as set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements fall within the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year,
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

neither the Company nor any of its

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference. Save as
disclosed below, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the Year Under Review as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules with the following exceptions.

The Code Provision A.2.1 in respect of the separation of
roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive of the
Company. During the Year, the role of Chief Executive Officer
of the Company has been performed by Mr. Wu Guangze.
During the period from 1 November 2020 to 7 March 2021,
the Company did not have a chairman, the role of the
chairman was carried out by the executive Directors.

Following the appointment of Mr. Jiao Shuge (“Mr. Jiao"”) as
the Chairman of the Board on 8 March 2021,
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are served by
different individuals to achieve a balance of authority and
power, which is in compliance with the Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code.

the roles of

The Code Provisions A.1.3 and A.7.1 stipulate that 14-day
notice should be given for each regular board meeting and
that in respect of regular meetings, and so far as practicable
in all other cases, and the agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent in full to all directors in a timely
manner and at least three days before the intended date of a
board or board committee meeting (or such other period as
agreed).
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The Company agrees that sufficient time should be given
to the directors in order to make a proper decision. In these
respects, the Company adopts a more flexible approach
(and yet sufficient time has been given) in convening board
meetings to ensure efficient and prompt management
decisions could be made.

The Code provision A.2.7 of the CG code provides that the
Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company (the
“INED") without the presence of other directors. During the
Year, no meeting was held between Mr. Jiao, the Chairman,
and the INEDs without the presence of other directors due to
business engagements. Since the INEDs have communicated
and discussed with the Chairman directly from time to time
to share their view on the Company’s affairs, therefore, the
Company considered that there were sufficient channels
and communication for discussion of the Company’s affairs
between the Chairman and INEDs.

The Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, stipulates that the
management shall provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates. During the Year, the executive Directors
and chief financial officer have provided and will continue
to provide to all Directors updates on any material changes
to the positions and prospects of the Company, which is
considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to the
Board and allow them to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the same to serve the purpose required by the
Code Provision C.1.2.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year and years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
OClI International Holdings Limited

Wu Guangze
Executive Director

31 March 2022
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Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 134 to 271, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REBHRMAOFEEHE  BREFZFBE AR M
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the BEAHEMNGEVBRERFETEENEIE -
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These HMEBZGEVEREE R EZRE B K
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HEENWERE MASHR UL EETEEBEEX
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming & & °

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Allowance for expected credit loss of debt investments at LI ER RN ENEFRECEHREEE

amortised cost

HiEE

Refer to Notes 3(a), 13 and 29(b) to the consolidated financial 2 M4 & B 75 W K M :£3@) ~ 13 K% 29(b) LA

statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(h)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, gross debt investments
at amortised cost and its related loss allowance
amounted to HK$239,990,000 and HK$188,352,000
respectively.

Impairment of debt investments at amortised cost is a
subjective area due to the level of judgement applied
by management in determining loss allowance.

The determination of loss allowance using the
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) model is subject to
a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD"), exposures at default (“EAD") and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors. Management judgement is
involved in the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance
is heavily dependent on the external macro
environment and the Group’s internal credit risk
management strategy. The expected credit losses
are derived from estimates including the Group's
historical losses, internal and external credit grading
and other adjustment factors.

R B BE FE2(h)() Y & RT B

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures to address the impairment
assessment of debt investments included the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring debt investments at amortised cost and
the measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the key
parameters and assumptions in the expected credit
loss model, including the identification of loss
stages, PD, LGD, EAD, discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other
management adjustments;

o assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used for the key parameters in the ECL model. For
key parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such
data by comparing them with public resources;
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The Key Audit Matter

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of LGD based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount
of impairment losses as at the end of the reporting
period.

We identified the allowance for ECL of debt
investments measured at amortised cost as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of
their significance to the financial results of the Group.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the
Group’s internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of these
procedures, we challenged management’s revisions
to estimates and input parameters compared with
prior period and considered the consistency of
judgement. We compared the economic factors
used in the models with market information to
assess whether they were aligned with market and
economic development;

evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of debt
investments at amortised cost has, or has not,
increased significantly since initial recognition
and whether debt investments at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. We checked the
overdue information, making enquiries of the
key management about the borrowers’ business
operations, checking borrowers’ financial
information and researching market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

for debt investments at amortised cost that
are credit-impaired, evaluating management’s
assessment of the value of any asset collateral
held by comparison with market prices. We also
evaluated the timing and means of realisation
of collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group’'s recovery
plans and evaluated other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contract terms;

recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance
for 12 month and lifetime credit losses using the
ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions for a sample of debt investments at
amortised cost where the credit risk of the debt
investment has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition, respectively; and

evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Provision for post-completion guarantee

Refer to the in Notes 3(d) and 24 to consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(0).

The Key Audit Matter

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC (the “SPC"), in respect of its segregated
portfolio, ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the
“Sub-Fund”) managed by ICBC Asset Management
(Global Company Limited), pursuant to which the
Company subscribed for the Class B Shares issued
by the Sub-Fund in an amount of US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$156 million).

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor
(the "Vendor"”) and Orient Finance Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Orient Finance”) as the Purchaser
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s
entire right, title and interest in certain amount of
Class B Shares (“Sale Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC
at the consideration of no more than US$8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) with a
post-completion guarantee clause that in the event
that the SPC redeems the participating shares held
by the Purchaser at the expiry of the investment
term of the Sub-Fund (i.e. 2 June 2022), the sum of
entitlement of the Purchaser as the holder of the Sale
Shares comprising the aggregate of all the returns,
distributions, income, and other payments received
or accrued on the Sale Shares since the completion
of the disposal of the Sale Shares in the Sub-Fund of
SPC plus the redemption proceeds paid or payable
to the Purchaser is less than the consideration of the
disposal of the Sale Shares paid by the Purchaser,
the Vendor shall pay to the Purchaser such shortfall
within five business days upon receipt of written
notice from the Purchaser. Proceeds of the disposal of
the Sale Shares will be used to repay the outstanding
loan in the amount of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$46,590,000), together with all
accrued interest, owing from the Company to Orient
Finance. In August 2021, 7,900 shares were sold to
Orient Finance at the consideration of US$7.51 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$58.21 million).
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to address the risk of material
misstatement on provision for post-completion guarantee
included the following:

obtaining an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of provision
calculation and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as significant judgements involved
in determining assumptions to be applied;

evaluating the basis adopted by management
for determining provision for post-completion
guarantee;

obtaining management analysis and calculation
of provision for post-completion guarantee
and assessing the key assumptions adopted in
the analysis, including comparing the expected
redemption price of the Sale Shares with the
historical trend; and

conducting substantive testing of the management’s
computation of provision recognised for the
post-completion guarantee by recalculation.
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The Key Audit Matter

If the sum of entitlement from redemption of
Sale Shares held by Orient Finance (“Redemption
Amount”) were lower than the consideration paid
by Orient Finance to the Company, the Group would
incur a loss.

As a result, management assessed if any provision for
post-completion guarantee is required to be made
based on the expected redemption price of the Sale
Shares.

Accordingly, management recognised a provision for
post-completion guarantee of approximately HK$58.6
million as at 31 December 2021.

We identified provision for post-completion guarantee
as a key audit matter because the Group assesses this
provision based on the realisability of the Redemption
Amount. As a result, this provision involves critical
accounting estimates on the future Redemption
Amount.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or related safeguards.

2021 Annual Report

s HEERAKELKESTERNREN
FHER UREMERNERER
HEROFELEFTHABRAABNERK
THEEE KMAEEHYE EEEHH
FERERNELERREE - WHMR
REEERITHEENE  BELBEEZE
MBEPRFERAEIEFEAVBRR
PEEBERE -WMAEBRE TR RBIE
AEMER RMAERDERBELZH
B E A EFESEZRE - Al
AREEFZBERALER EEEEZX

R
FHELE -

s HEKAMBHBRRNERBEZHRIA &
BRAT BRBEEEH UEk&EaWY
BHRREEPERREBIZMER-

e N BERENEBIAXBKEINYKE
HERZEMNBEENERRE UEYH
HAVBEBRERERER - BLMEERKHE
BEROTA EEMAT - RMPA/ER
ERAZEE2REME-

ZMEERZEER (AT BE)FERNGE
HE RFEAZHELREAERERABR %5
HHRBRAMNEEZBEPRAINN AN E T
B fi] B KR 2K e

KT ERZESHELRHA HLHHEME
NEEBEBLUMMNBEREREZ R TEREF
BBAUENAERRETERMBL LN
ERELRAEMEE UREBEREE 21TE
M@ &EEm(mER) -



2021 3R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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134 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HOoOBBENKHMthEBNWEA
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA 7 7 &t &)

NOTE 2021 2020
i 3% —E--F e e 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTETL
Revenue Wz 4
Revenue from asset management REBEEEBE 2 & 85,450 66,751
Revenue from investment and financial REKRERMBHARE
advisory services 2 W s 4,030 1,128
Sales of goods HEEM 46,509 8,469
(Loss) income from securities trading and REEEEHFNMKRE
investments Z (BB W& (62,757) 50,486
73,232 126,834
Cost of sales and services rendered HERBRERBEKAK (71,791) (52,903)
1,441 73,931
Other income H Al A 5 2,902 1,344
Selling and distribution costs HERKHER (53) (16)
General and administrative expenses —BRTBIH (48,985) (47,306)
Impairment loss on financial assets TREEREBEESE (3,958) (17,041)
Provision for post-completion guarantee ERERER 24 (58,565) -
Loss from operations REEEER (107,218) 10,912
Finance costs BBER 6(a) (10,063) (29,278)
Loss before taxation BAEE 6 (117,281) (18,366)
Income tax FTi5 7 (5,341) (1,233)
Loss for the year REEEFE (122,622) (19,599)
Attributable to: WN= X
Equity shareholders of the Company APBEEERE (122,622) (19,556)
Non-controlling interests FERER - (43)
Loss for the year rEEFR (122,622) (19,599)
Loss per share BREE 10 HK(8.18) cents  HK (1.69) cents

— Basic and diluted —EARKEE (8.18) 1l (1.69) 7 1l
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REBEBRZERERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mOERRHEMhWEANAE X

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

NOTE 2021 2020
(k=3 —E-—F —Z_ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
Loss for the year rEEER (122,622) (19,599)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hfh 2 @WK A (X H)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ~ H & AT gt & E# H
to profit or loss: EEm2EAE:
Exchange differences on translation of RENBEBESE
foreign operations ZEHER 411 (384)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ZAFE2HE X KA H (122,211) (19,983)
Attributable to: LT AL
Equity shareholders of the Company N/NETR Eoyi gt (122,211) (19,940)
Non-controlling interests R ER - (43)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ZAFE2HE X KA HE (122,211) (19,983)

The notes on pages 140 to 271 form part of these financial

statements.

HAF140E271 BN ALETBERED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fn © 81 85 IR N R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A Tt &)

2021 Annual Report

As at 31 As at 31
NOTE December 2021  December 2020
R-ZB=--% RZITZZF
+=A +ZH
BT 5 =+-H ET=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FETL
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BER&E 11 5,583 11,716
Debt investments at amortised cost RBERANTECERRE 13 - 25,535
Rental deposits HE®ZS 16 = 2,116
5,583 39,367
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 14 7,293 5,646
Trade receivables EWE FRA 15 9,463 7,763
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & 8154 5078 & H o fE W Bk 78 16 11,942 26,025
Current tax recoverable A] Yo [l B ER 7 1B 27(a) = 872
Debt investments at amortised cost BRBHERAFECERESE 13 51,638 110,793
Financial assets at fair value through profit or & A F{B 5 A B %
loss LEREBE 17 145,744 428,146
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 18 - 249,535
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReSEER 19 313,006 88,475
- 539,086 917,255
Current liabilities RBAE
Contract liabilities EHEE 4(b) 9,169 12,675
Accruals and other payables JEET A & E A E R IE 20 6,961 14,915
Obligations under repurchase agreements BB & THE T 21 - 77,525
Borrowings & & 22 85,768 341,060
Provision for post-completion guarantee ERERER 24 58,565 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 5,823 5,807
Current tax payable JE A< B A &5 18 27(a) 5,590 3,993
. 171,876 455,975
Net current assets REBEEFE 367,210 461,280
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 372,793 500,647
Non-current liability kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 = 5,643
NET ASSETS EEFRE 372,793 495,004
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REEFEZERERAA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n © B #5 1R i &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETTEH &)

As at 31 As at 31
NOTE December 2021  December 2020
R=B=-% R-ZZT_THF
+=A TZ=A
B 2% =+-8 =+-8
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TAET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFEE

Share capital RA 28(b) 14,998 14,998
Reserves & 357,795 480,006

Total equity attributable to equity FRARERERRE
shareholders of the Company PEih AR & 372,793 495,004
Non-controlling interests FERESR - -
TOTAL EQUITY R 5 372,793 495,004

The consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 271
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2022, and are signed on its behalf by:

Wu Guangze
RERE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 140 to 271 form part of these financial
statements.

FERBIAE2NAZHEAVBRRER -F
T CF-ZA=t—HREEEFSHENRET

H YTHATEETAREE:

Wei Bin
R
Director

BF

HARFI140E271 BN EALETBEREHD

—H#fn -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

O\ d3E > g
mBERE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA 7 7 &t &)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

2021 Annual Report

KAARERREL
(Accumulated
[osses) Non-
Share Share  Translation Other retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests  Total equity
(BitER)
R RHEE ENGE  HERE  REER Bt FERER fEs
HKS'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§000 HKS'000
TEn Tén TEn TEn TEn Tén TEn TEn
Balance at 1 January 2020 TECTE-R-RAER 10,598 17190 (33) = 2,108 229,863 (710) 29,153
Changes in equty for 2020: “EITEERRD.
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (1955%)  (19,55) @) (19599
Other comprehensive expense for theyear ~ AEE 42 AR M - - (384) - - (384) . (384)
Total comprehensive expense ELLEE - - (384) - (19556 (19.940) @) (19983
lssuance of shares kb 4,400 281,600 = = - 286,000 - 286,000
Acaquisition of additional interests in RERRRRKE
subsidiaries rom non-controling shareholders [ B2 71 0 B - - - (919 - (919 753 (166)
Balance at 31 December 2020 and Z3ZEETR=T-BR
1 January 2021 TEI-E-R-RER 14,998 498,790 (417) (919) (17448 495,004 - 495,004
Changes in equityfor 2021: EI-EERR
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - (26) (1262 - (1260)
Other comprehensive income for theyear ~ RERAH2EYA - - 41 - - 41 - 41
Total comprehensive income (expense) PEUALE)EE - - i - (e (1) - ()
Balance at 31 December 2021 CEC-EoRCt-RER 14,998 498,790 6) (919 (140,070) 372,193 - 372,193

The notes on pages 140 to 271 form part of these financial

statements.

—#5
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REBEBRZERERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)(JA i 7t &t &)

NOTE 2021 2020
P =F 2= -F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET
Operating activities ReEH
Cash generated from operations REXBHMERE 19(b) 206,033 185,979
Bank interest received BRI E 169 184
Income tax paid BE#AEH (3,200) (3,052)
Income tax refunded BEREMGH 324 -
Net cash generated from REZHRE
operating activities ReRE 203,326 183,111
Investing activities REED
Payments for purchase of property, plantand BAY % - BE R REZH 2
equipment Q] (12) (181)
Withdrawal from deposits with banks with 12 B[R 2/ #1 B
original maturity date over three months RBB=RZRITEX = 21,360
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits & & # iR 77 77 2R 2 (3 41) 249,535 (249,535)
Payments for acquisition of WEEERER
non-controlling interests NE: - (166)
Net cash generated from (used in) REZBHGSFAREER
investing activities 249,523 (228,522)
Financing activities MEEH
New borrowings raised BEEEHERN 19(c) - 910,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BB 17 f& & 19(c) (209,250) (1,110,807)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEHENERE S 19() (6,012) (5,647)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHERENA S D 19(c) (381) (629)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings 817 R E £ R B F| & 19(c) (14,186) (25,952)
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BITHRATG XA - 286,000
Net cash (used in) generated from BMEEE(FTR) B
financing activities ReRE (229,829) 52,965
Net increase in cash and BeRASESEEREMNFHE
cash equivalents 223,020 7,554
Cash and cash equivalentsat 1 January R—B—BzBREeRBRELEE
EHE 19(a) 88,475 80,767
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERSH2XE
changes 1,511 154
Cash and cash equivalents RT-ZA=+t-HZHEER
at 31 December He&%EEE 19(a) 313,006 88,475

The notes on pages 140 to 271 form
statements.

part of these financial
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 ¥5 ¥k 2% Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021

a=

S FtASt-BLER

GENERAL

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, trading of wines and securities trading
and investments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit of loss (“FVPL") are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(e).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period

reviewed on an ongoing basis.

in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

REEFEZERABRAE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+t_A=T—HLEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Except amendment
to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2021, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared or
presented.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021
amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was
not required to assess whether rent concessions
occurring as direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic were lease modifications, if the eligibility
conditions are met. One of these conditions
requires the reduction in lease payments affect only
payments originally due on or before a specified
time limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time
limited from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment
in this financial year. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2021.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Financial instruments

(i)  Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued
are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement
(Continued)

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price
and is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") — debt investment; FVOCI — equity
investment; or FVPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.
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Financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). This election
is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEASFHEBKRE)
(e] Financial instruments (Continued) (e) BT E(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)
(Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment:
The Group makes an assessment of the
objective of the business model in which
a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered
includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for
the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through
the sale of the assets;
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(Continued)

—  how the performance of the portfolio is
evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of
the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business
are compensated — e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assets in prior
periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties
in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for
this purpose, consistent with the Group’s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or
are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured
at FVPL.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEASFHEBKRE)
(e] Financial instruments (Continued) (e) £&@T A(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)
(Continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAESFHEKRE)
(e) Financial instruments (Continued) (e) £&@T A(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)

(Continued)

Financial assets - Assessment whether
contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

contingent events that would change
the amount or timing of cash flows;

—  terms that may adjust the contractual
coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Group’s claim to
cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse features).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Financial assets - Assessment whether
contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest: (Continued)

A prepayment feature is consistent with
the solely payments of principal and
interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable
compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment
feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BABHBKRAE)
(e] Financial instruments (Continued) (e) £&@T A(E)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (i) 7 BEREZEE)
(Continued)
Financial assets - Subsequent measurement THEE-HEFEKEE:

and gains and losses:

Financial assets at FVPL

BAFEFABENS R
BE

Financial assets at amortised
cost

REBEHEAAGAENEREE

Debt investments at FVOCI

BAFESAEMEE RS
MEBERE

Equity investments at FVOCI

BAFEFAEMEE KRS
B AT 1R B

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, excluding any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.
ZEEBEBBUAAFEFE - FBam TEEEWNHE X
BREWA HEBERER-
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
ZEEEBBGIAERMNBE ZRBHEKAGE - HEBFSEER
BORRBHEAAR - FERA IIEERERENRERER -
HRIEERNEMBERRBENIERER -
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
ZEEEBRBGREATEAE - ERERMNXZEZFENNE
WA - BERXKMmEEEARBEREBERER EMFER
REMEEREER RRIEBRAK BEMEGEalkad R
thakEEDER I EE R -
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and
are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derecognition (Continued)

(iv)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised in its statement
of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group
also derecognises a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in
which case a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest (see
Note 2(g)) and items of plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Properties leased for  Over the period of the

own use lease term
Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements terms of the lease or 5
years
Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 2(f) and 2(h)(ii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost (see Notes 2(e)(i) and 2(h)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value and the
nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and debt investments
at amortised cost); and

- contract assets defined in HKFRS 15 (see
Note 2(j)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including unlisted investment funds and debt
securities measured at FVPL, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument'’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(p)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BBASFHEHEKRAE)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h GEBEBREEREBEGE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () RELHMTAEEASHNEENTS

EFR(E
AENMBWAREEGE)

and contract assets (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)
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BREATABEES

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the - BEBALBRBREHNK

debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office
building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group
of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(p)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(p)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(p)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see
Note 2(h)(i)).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The
par value of the shares issued and fully paid is
recognised in the share capital account. Any excess
of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new
issue) over the par value of the shares issued is
recognised in the share premium account.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m])

(ii)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the polynominal
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m])

(n)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

()

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, a separate asset
is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited
to the carrying amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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2021 3R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or other sources (including securities
trading and investments) in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.
If the products are a partial fulfiiment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised
under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

Investment and financial advisory services
income

Depending on the nature of the services
and the contract terms, investment advisory
services fees and financial advisory services
fees are recognised in profit or loss over time
using a method that depicts the Group’s
performance, or at a point in time when the
service is completed.

(iii) Asset management fees

(iv)

(v)

Asset management fees include periodic
management fees calculated based on assets
under management and performance-based
fee. The fees are recognised progressively
over time using a method that depicts the
Group's performance, to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

-  Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(h)(i)).

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Realised/unrealised gains or losses from
financial assets at FVPL
Net gains (losses) on financial assets at FVPL
are recognised on the transaction dates when
the relevant contract notes are exchanged
and unrealised fair value gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVPL are recognised in the
period in which they arise.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting
policies, management has used its judgements and
made assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on the financial statements. The most significant
use of judgements and key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period are described below.

(a)

Loss allowances on financial assets at amortised
cost

In determining expected credit loss for financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the most
significant judgements relate to defining what is
considered to be a significant increase in credit
risk and in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of economic
conditions. A high degree of uncertainty is involved
in making estimations using assumptions that
are highly subjective and very sensitive to the risk
factors. Management reviews the loss allowance
on a regular basis. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group holds financial instruments that are not
traded or quoted in active markets. The Group uses
its judgement to select the appropriate methods
and make assumptions based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period to
estimate the fair value of such financial instruments
classified as FVPL. Valuation techniques include the
market approach using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or
liabilities such as net asset values as provided by
fund administrators, broker quotes, last transacted
price and discounted cash flow approach which
utilises inputs such as projected cash flow and
discount rate. Broker quotes obtained from the
pricing sources (such as pricing agencies or bond/
debt market makers) may be indicative and not
executable or binding. The Group would exercise
judgement and estimates on the quantity and
quality of pricing sources uses. Although best
estimate is used in estimating fair values, there are
inherent limitations in any valuation technique.
Estimated fair values may differ from the values
that would have been used if a readily available
market existed.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions and significant estimation are required
in determining the provision for income tax.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’'s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered. The Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of estimated
tax losses carried forward disclosed in Note 27 as
there is no evidence that future taxable profits will
be available.

Provision for post-completion guarantee

The determination of provision for post-completion
guarantee requires significant estimation for the
future events not wholly within the controls of the
Group. Management carefully evaluates recent
market conditions as well as forecasts of future
events to best estimate the expected economic
outflow arising from the contractual obligation,
changes in the assumptions and estimates could
materially affect the result of the assessment and
it may be necessary to increase/decrease provision
charge to profit or loss.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(e)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken into
consideration in the assessment of whether the
Group, as an investor, controls the investee. The
principle of control includes three elements: (i)
power over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from involvement with the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use power over the
investee to affect the amount of investors’ returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether
the combination of investments it holds, if any,
together with its remuneration creates exposure
to variability of returns from the activities of the
structured entities that is of such significance
indicating that the Group is a principal. The
structured entities shall be consolidated if the
Group acts in the role of principal.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, trading of wines and beverage,
and securities trading and investments.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
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(a) W=
AEBFEXKAEEETRE RHE
RERVEZARSE BEBERK

mEBULREFEENKRE -

BRIZEMIBRBRINDZIEFA

customers by major products or service lines is as AT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—£F —E-FEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAETT
Revenue from contracts with customers ZHEMIEMEZE B FE15 K&
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEREEZEFNEHKRA
Disaggregated by major products or service % £ Z & & =k iR 7% 4%
lines =l
— Asset management - EEETE 85,450 66,751
— Investment and financial advisory —KBERMBES
services iz % 4,030 1,128
— Trading of wines and beverage —EEdEEBERKM 46,509 8,469
R 135989 76348
Revenue from other sources H fb i 2% R IR
Income from debt investments: REBEBEKRE ZHA:
— Interest income from debt investments —RBEKNAFTECER
at amortised cost &R B WA 3,181 15,326
— Income from debt investments at fair —EBAFEFAEGZER
value through profit or loss & WA 9,992 26,087
13,173 41,413
Change in fair value of financial assets at KMAFEFABEZZESREE
fair value through profit or loss NS (69,502) 2,801
Dividend income R B A 6,200 6,240
Gain on disposal of debt investments at HERBHKATBEZERR
amortised cost &z W= 464 1,447
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERAFEFAEZZSR
value through profit or loss BECZEE (13,092) (1,415)
lae . aaeew e duih DA (62,757) 50,486
Total FE 73,232 126,834
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4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Note
4(c).

The Group has applied practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its income from
investment and financial advisory services and asset
management as the Group recognises revenue
at the amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed
to date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from
sales of wines and beverage as the performance
obligation is part of a contract that has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

The Group will recognise the expected revenue
in the future when the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts are satisfied (see
Note 2(p)).

(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers

4,

(a)

(b)
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HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THET
Contract liabilities BREE
- Billings in advance of performance —&EEETHRENAREZE
in respect of asset management
activity 9,169 12,675




2021 3R

4.

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4.

(b)

Liabilities related to contract with customers
(Continued)

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

BRAPIWS (&)
b) BRHAEEFAEWNNEEE)

Movements in contract liabilities EHEEZE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FAT
Balance at 1 January N—A—Bz&% 12,675 15,700
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRERFNAAGHNEEN
a result of recognising revenue BWABEHEERD
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (12,675) (15,700)

Increase in contract liabilities as a EEEEETINTENZER

result of billings in advance of ARAaBEMm
asset management activity 9,169 12,675
Balance at 31 December Rt-_A=+—B2&&% 9,169 12,675

When the Group receives fee income before asset
management activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of the contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds
the amount of fee income received.

The amount of billings in advance of asset
management activity is expected to be recognised
as income within one year.

EASEEEEEETDRLAERE
RBAR ERERNRERELESLD
BE EEFERKNERRZBBEMAK
Ha) 8 RUWA -

BEEERPNBREXETHE—F
NERSWEA -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting

The Group’s executive directors are the chief
operation decision makers (“CODM") as they
collectively make strategic decisions towards the
Group's operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments:

(a) asset management
(b) investment and financial advisory services
(c) securities trading and investments

(d) trading of wines and beverage

(c)

2021 Annual Report

SRDBRS(E)

7 B &

MR AEERNTEETHRREES
MEHAREEEENFLRBRE
BERERTIELLERRE(TETER
BREED -

AEBZRBREARERDE REET
HRMEBLELERREERNTREN
ER—"BOAAEEBEEEK A&
BE25ATA2®DI:

(@) BEE®

(b) BERPFBEHRRSE

(00 BE5EENMKE

d BEEERKMmEER
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BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRNEBBIE (&)
Segment revenue and results D EBU = R EE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RKEZEPAEAN KRR EERY D KFER
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as gl BRAEER T —FR_F
information regarding the Group's reportable segments —EF+ A=+ HLEFEMNERS
as provided to the CODM for the purposes of resources RS HBERRIAGMAEELERTSE
allocation and assessment of segment performance for REBEBEAEBETEHR D MBHERET
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out R e
below.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_F-_—F+-A=+—-HULFE
Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services  investments beverage Total
RERMH REEE BEEE
EEER Rl k& RH¥mEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn Thn ThAn
Revenue from contracts with RE&F & MK #
customers:
- At a point in time “RE-BEH - - - 46,509 46,509
- Over time ~EA- BB 85,450 4,030 - - 89,480
85,450 4,030 - 46,509 135,989
Revenue from other sources % B £ fty % R B 1 i - - (62,757) - (62,757)
Reportable segment 2R BhE(ER)
revenue (loss) 85,450 4,030 (62,757) 46,509 713,232
Segment (loss) profit 78 (E#R)& N 30,481 4,030 (130,722) 2,119 (94,092)
Other income L1 N 2,902
Unallocated corporate and KA E R AIREM X ]
other expenses (16,028)
Finance costs BMKER (10,063)
Loss before taxation BRAER (117,281)
Income tax g (5,341)
Loss for the year EEER (122,622)
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BE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE

4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4, BRNWRS (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBWM R N EE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—E-_FF+-HA=1+—HLFE
Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services investments beverage Total
RERB% BHEE BEE
BEER i R kRE RHmEE #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TATL TATL TAT TATL

Revenue from contracts with RE & F & & 8 W &

customers;
~ At a point in time -RE-BRHE - - - 8,469 8,469
— Over time —B B - BER 66,751 1,128 - - 67,879
66,751 1,128 - 8,469 76,348
Revenue from other sources X B £ #1 3 )5 i h & = = 50,486 = 50,486
Reportable segment revenue ] 23 7 # M & 66,751 1,128 50,486 8,469 126,834
Segment profit (oss) AEEMN(BE) 5,583 - 23,344 (2,952) 25,975
Other income Hiwlg A 1,344
Unallocated corporate and KA ERAIREM X
other expenses (16,407)
Finance costs HKER (29,278)
Loss before taxation BE A ER (18,366)
Income tax FEH (1,233)

Loss for the year FEBE (19,599)
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BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

193

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4. BRNEBBIE (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEW S R EE(E)
Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments with W2 ESEMELERE RIKRAE
reference to revenue and income generated by those PRERZEH O E o
segments.
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by 7 2% M (EHB) B & 95 BRI 2 & F %
or loss from each segment without allocation of other EEZBEE HILEGF AHEMEKA- B
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate and BEBRMASEATNEMTE kT
other expenses. This is the information reported to the MEELERXEE2HRC2EN UED
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and e &R KRR -
performance assessment
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTRREBEREDHZAEEEE
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: EBREZH:
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=--—-F+=H=1+—-H
Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  trading and wines and
management services  investments beverage Total
RERHH R5EE BEE
EEER B kkE RHREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thx TER TERL TR
ASSETS EE
Segment assets THEE 13,082 - 199,725 9,223 222,030
Unallocated items: APBER:
Property, plant and equipment #1% - Fi & 3 5,163
Deposits, prepaymentsand &% BR HER
other receivables gl 4,470
Cash and cash equivalents BeRhBeEEER 313,006
Total assets BEBE 544,669
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities THEE 14,994 - 62,611 31 77,636
Unallocated items: APBER:
Other payables EENERE 2,940
Borrowings B 85,768
Lease Liabilities MEAR 5,532
Total liabilities AEEE 171,876
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BE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4 WHRDEBBWE(2)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEEREEBEE)
As at 31 December 2020 R-CE-_EF+=-A=1+—H
Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services investments beverage Total
RER®E EHEE BEB
EEEE AARE kkE  RHmEE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET TET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PHEE 9,120 = 588,448 6,295 603,863
Unallocated items: AAMER:
Property, plant and equipment #1 %+ B & R & 10,599
Deposits, prepaymentsand & BRHER
other receivables H A R IR 4,150
Pledged bank deposits BEEARRTER 249,535
Cash and cash equivalents BeRhBeEEER 88,475
Total assets BEBE 956,622
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PBER 20,597 - 84,501 53 105,151
Unallocated items: AAMER:
Other payables Bt RE 4,391
Borrowings N 341,060
Lease Liabilities MEAR 11,016

Total liabilities BEAS 461,618
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments, other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain other
payables, borrowings and certain lease liabilities.

Other segment information
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Investment

and financial

Asset advisory
management services
RERME

EEER R
HK$'000 HK$'000

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

BRAPIWS (&)
THEERKEE)
REES Bz BRRLEERDE :

o Fﬁﬁﬁ?"@ﬂxi#&&ﬁ‘““”uﬁ’
ﬁ FTHe BERRE ETH
CENREREMERER B
?fHEﬁfE TERUAEBREEREEE

H B B o

e FMEBEBBE/IRKEERMRLENH
HETHEMENERR ERXEET
HERBRI -

Hh 5 2 & K
BER +§ﬁ%“ﬂi%ﬁin%/ﬁ
Z A

BE_-_FE-_—&F+_-_F=+—HULEFE

Securities  Trading of
trading and wines and

investments beverage  Unallocated Total
R5RE BEE
khE RUREE A9 B At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThAn TEn TEn ThEn TE7n ThAn
Additions to property, mE- -BER
plant and equipment RERE 10 - 705 - 2 717
Depreciation of property, nE BER
plant and equipment RENE 25 - 602 6 5,439 6,072
Impairment loss on EREERNE
financial assets i = = 3,958 = = 3,958
Provision for post-completion % 4 & (R & f&
guarantee - - 58,565 - = 58,565
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BE-T-—F+-A=t+-HLEE

4.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) L WEBERNBWS (&)
Other segment information (Continued) Hthp EE R (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B _—_E_FEFf _HF=+—HIFE
Investment
and financial Securities Trading of
Asset advisory trading and wines and
management services  investments beverage  Unallocated Total
RERME  BHEE BERE
EEER  RARHK k& R#mEEF APE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TRL TAT TAL TAT

Additions to property, nE BER

plant and equipment RERE - - 159 - 0 181
Depreciation of property, nE BER

plant and equipment RENE 125 - 586 6 5,565 6,282
Impairment loss on BEERERE

debt investments B#E - - 16,803 - - 16,803

Impairment loss (reversal of ~ EWE ZRE R

impairment loss) on trade Hth W ERIR

and other receivables REEB(RE
ERED) - - 586 (348) - 238
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Information about major customers
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes
six (2020: one) customers with whom the value of
transactions have exceeded 10% (2020: 10%) of the
Group's revenues as follows:

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

4. BRAPIWS (&)

EREIEFEFZ2EHN

AEEZEPBEZRL BX(ZFF
ﬁ'*)%g}f‘ZX%%ﬁhi@l‘ﬁ%@wﬂ&
H10% (ZF_FF :10%)  HIWT :

Note 2021 2020

s Z=Z2=—F —ZF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

F& T FETT

Customer A BEFEA (i) 46,400 56,121

Customer B = FB (ii) 13,739 =

Customer C BRC (ii) 13,000 —

Customer D EFED (i) 9,609 -

Customer E 2PE (M, Gii) 9,417 =

Customer F EFEF (i) 8,532 -

Notes: B 5
()  Revenue from asset management business segment, () }K BEEEEBER IR Z2RE KEBRE
calculated in terms of assets under management. EitHE o

(i) Revenue from trading of wines and beverage business
segment.

(i) Revenue from securities trading and investments business
segment.

iy, XBBABELORSKREBEEBS D2 KaE

(iy KEBHFEBEBRREXBD Wz U=
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T —F+TZA=T—BHLEFE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4, BRNWRS (&)
Geographical information ih 3B B R

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's property, plant
and equipment (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the

goods delivered. The geographical location of the ms) e
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and

TERENEBOAEBERBINAEF I
s RAKENE BEEXKBIEE
ERDEEDHNHMEBLEEN -BEFPH
WELEIRREHERB AN EDH
NE - BEFRARDEENMWENMENE
REENERUEGYE BEREKE

equipment.
Revenues from external
customers Specified non-current assets
REIBEFZWH BEFRRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B _—_ZT_TF =B _—T_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FA& T FET T & T
Hong Kong E8 73,232 126,834 5,192 10,650
PRC Gy -~ - 391 1,066
73,232 126,834 5,583 11,716
OTHER INCOME 5. Hithg A
2021 2020
=B C"—T_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
Bank Interest income |7 A B WA 169 184
Income from termination of a REKRIEEFRBEREZ

memorandum of understanding WA (R M 52 31(b))

(see Note 31(b)) 3,201 -
Government grants (note (i)) BT 48 Bh (Bt 3% i) - 1,150
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEERXBZEE

plant and equipment (469) -
Sundry income MIE A 1 10

2,902 1,344




2021 3R

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5.
Note (i)

In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support from
the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund,
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support
to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is
required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6.
Loss before taxation is arrived after charging (crediting):

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

H fth U A (45)

B 5E (1)

R-Z_ZTF AEERDHBBFERBFNTR
EHRARIOHRRARES TR XS
BB BANRIZABBER T MEXREHY
Bx& REVESREHNER -REFHY
MiESR AEBREXHEBEABHELR
AEEHEEZHANINEERETLE -

bR it Al & 18

BREAEBERIRGIA) T EIERE
2

(a) Finance costs (a) BIEEH
2021 2020
—E-—F5 —ZE-_ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF B 1,093 4,814
Interest on other borrowings EmEER S 7,300 15,025
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE 381 629
Other borrowing costs EH g E KA 1,289 8,810
10,063 29,278
(b) Staff costs (b) B I
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TFE T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 8) Z =% (fTaEs)
— fees and other emoluments - KEMBe 3,600 2,139
Other staff costs HEMmE THX
— salaries, allowances and bonus — & EARIEA 17,082 15,153
— retirement benefits scheme —iRIKE R & 8t 3K
contributions 633 507
21,315 17,799
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(c)

—F+ZA=+-HLEE

6. PRitAlEE(E
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Other items (c) HfbEH
2021 2020
—E-—-f Z—ZT_ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FE T
Depreciation charge (Note 11) e HMET)
— owned property, plant and -BEVE BERZRE
equipment 307 557
— right-of-use assets —FREEE 5,765 5,725
6,072 6,282
Impairment loss BEREREE)REEE
recognised (reversed)
— debt investments —EBEE 4,535 16,803
— trade and other receivables - ESERBERAEM
JE W BR 18 (577) 238
3,958 17,041
Auditors’ remunerations % EXEM B &
— audit services — 12 8RR 7 1,196 1,296
— other services — b B 7% 170 170
1,366 1,466
Legal and professional expenses FENEEBHA 6,874 9,058
Commission fee relating to asset HEEBTEEBREH
management business e & 29,600 43,125
Cost of inventories (Note 14) FEKABE14) 42,191 9,778
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7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

7. RGECEERAEMEBDRERABFR
s

a) RESEEREMCZEWERAN

loss and other comprehensive income represents: WIS
2021 2020
—E-—-F Z—ZT_EFTF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TAET

Current tax BN 23 B 1|/
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - ERBFEH

Provision for the year FEBRE 5,341 1,233
5,341 1,233

(@) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these two jurisdictions.

(b) For the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified
entity of the Group is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of a qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of other group entities in
Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

(@ REFNEHERRBELES
MR ERG - REBEHAH
MM R AR N ERME
e

b) BEZFT-_—FR-_FT_FTF
+-_A=Z+—BLFEE A&
EAERERBNESMNBRD
BIBEF SRR EMRGTE -
BEMSHMAEH 2EKE
EEENE28BE B LA BEE
128.25% W MiBiB2E &%
JCHY OB B B %R 16.5% B -
TFEE F 5B = W ARG A AR
EEEAEMEENONBKE
BRETEHRE16.5%HH -
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E-ZT-—F+-_PB=t—HLEE
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. NG oEaREMEZBEWRZ XA AR
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE swmE)
INCOME (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAMEFEZREBIHESS
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BiEZHER:
2021 2020
—E--F Z—ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T
Loss before taxation T A0 18 (117,281) (18,366)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, FrFiATEIE 2 BEIE &
calculated at the rates applicable to BB sl )A# & 2 & 7 & A
profits in the jurisdictions concerned #{ &t & (19,654) (3,285)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 2 X HHHBEZ ¥
for tax purpose = 530 4,384
Tax effect of income not taxable for HEABJRBE Z MAHHBZ ¥
tax purpose 2 (2,469) (1,956)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERH BB EH KB 2 &
= 26,933 2,371
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary KRER LR EZ B R IE 2
differences A 11 47
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax %) /B Kk 8 A & 18 2 T 1§
losses T = (328)
Statutory tax concession EEREBEER (10) -
Income tax expense TS B X 5,341 1,233
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+-HLFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEHME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENRENEST ZHFMAOT :
as follows:
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#fiEs FufEs BiyfEs
Chang ~ Tso Siu Lun Fei John Lo Wing Yan Total
Feng Hai WeiBin ~ WuGuangze  JiaoShuge  Zheng Xiaosu Tat Joel Alan Xiang LiXindan William 201

5% i ARE £HE LAY B2 L L g I y St b3 Fi
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThT Tin Thn Thn Tin Tin Thn Thn Tin Tin Thn

(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
(Hita) (W) (Kito (Kid)

Fegs e = = = = = 20 U0 9 0 119 930
Other emoluments ipHe

Salries £ - - 2,640 - - - - - - - 2640

Discretionary bonus BERL - - - - - - - - - - -

Retirement benefit scheme RifRTHE - - 18 - - 1 - - - - 30

- - 26% - - 5 10 91 210 19 3,600

Evecutive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#178s FanEs BUfnnEs
Wong

Zheng  Chang Tat Stacey TsoSiulun  Feilohn Total

FengHai  WeiBin  ChenBo LiYi XaoQng LiuZheng  DuPeng Xiaosu Joel Martin Alan Xiang  Li Xindan 2000

IRI%%

3 o RE 3 CER it g0F  gEA  EEY  EE - I &t

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000

T  TErn  TEn  TRn  TEr  TEr  TRn TEr  TAr  TEn  TEx  TEr  TEn TEx

(Notee) ~ (Notee) ~ (Notefj  (Noteg) ~ (Noteh) — (Notei)  (Note)) (Note k) (Note )
(Wite)  (Wife) (B3f) (W)  (Bah) (W) (W) (B3t (3H)

Fees o - - - - - - - - 0 161 pL L 1 83
Other emoluments Efple

Salares £ - - -1 - - - - - - - - -

Discetionary bonus migikh - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Retirement benefit scheme RivEHE - - - 8 - - - - 1 8 - - - Ity

= = = 1221 = = = = 52 169 240 240 17 2139
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
 E_F-_—F+-_RA=+-HLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

Notes:

(a)  Mr. Wu Gangze was appointed as an executive director on 8
March 2021.

(b)  Mr. Jiao Shuge was appointed as a non-executive director on
8 March 2021.

() Mr. Fei John Xiang was retired as an independent
non-executive director on 17 May 2021.

(d)  Dr. Lo Wing Yan William was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 2 July 2021.

(e)  Mr. Feng Hai and Mr. Wei Bin were appointed as executive
directors on 31 October 2020.

(f) Mr. Chen Bo resigned as the Chairman and an executive
director on 31 October 2020.

(g)  Mr. Li Yiresigned as the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director on 22 May 2020.

(h)  Ms. Xiao Qing resigned as the Chief Operating Officer and
an executive director on 31 October 2020.

(i) Mr. Liu Zheng was appointed as an executive director on
22 May 2020 and resigned as an executive director on 31
October 2020.

() Mr. Du Peng resigned as a non-executive director on 31
October 2020.

(k)  Mr. Wong Stacey Martin retired as an independent
non-executive director on 2 September 2020.

(0] Dr. Li Xindan was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 5 December 2020.
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EWE(F
FRATEEMEEREFERELARANR
AEBEBNRGME - LB IFH
TEENHERRFEETARAESTH
BH S -

RBEFE AEEREDFHEME
MEZEZME  AESRSHE AL
AXREEROEERIERBEREE - B
BESHEXRAERRETAFHFE ILHE-

(@ REERXENC
TRARITES-

TE_-F=ZANBEZE

by ERBEEER-_ZT-_—GF=A/\AEZ
THRFERNTES -

o BYPLEER-_ZE-_—FRAT++HEME
%4#ﬁﬂ§$

d EXxCEBIR-_E-_—E+A-_BREZ
TEBILIERNTES -
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9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one is a director of the Company (2020:
one director) whose emoluments are disclosed in Note
8 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2020:
four) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2021
were as follows:

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

9. REHHMAL
rEERNEEEaMNEZ2AMALT A
P ARXRAIEFE(ZTEZF: —
NEE) FE2HMEERN EXWFESE
B HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—81L
FEC-HBTOM(ZZT_ZTF: W) A
TZMEHRT

2021 2020

—E-—-F ZTEF

HK$000 HK$'000

TR FE T

Salaries and other benefits e hkHMmEF 6,600 5,340
Contributions to retirement benefits B RAE A 5T B4 =%

schemes 72 72

6,672 5,412

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

mEFMER AT AR :

2021 2020
—E-— & —T-EF
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEAH BB A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 0 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 0
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T % 2,500,000 % 7T 1 0
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10. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 10. SRERRBBEE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F Z—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHETT
Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7K 2 7] # 25 A% 3 f& {h /&5 18
of the Company (122,622) (19,556)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January " —
Effect of issuance of ordinary shares ®IT
(note)

A—HMBE#TLTER
TERe e (M)

1,499,749,920 1,059,749,920

= 94,972,678

Weighted average number of ordinary M+ Z A=+ — BT

shares at 31 December I AR I #E T 15 1,499,749,920 1,154,722,598
Note: On 14 October 2020, the Company issued 440,000,000 new MaF: RZZEZTF+ATHEB - AR2EUE
shares at a price of HK$0.65 per share to JZ Investment Fund f%0.657% JT 9 & #& M JZ Investment Fund
L.P. L.P. % 77 440,000,000 f& %7 f% °

Basic loss per share was calculated as the loss for the
period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

BREABRNDEARAEBRKRE
EHABEKRASETEBRMNE TS

Company divided by the weighted average number of HEtE -

ordinary shares in issue.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the diluted loss BHE_ZT_ -+ -_HA=+—-—HILHF
per share is same as basic loss per share because the E-BERARABRENTEES VK
exercise price of Company’s share options was higher HIEETME SRESEBEERSRER

than the average market price for shares.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2020, and therefore,
diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per

share.

BREAR -

BHE_Z2 -4+ _A=+—HB1LFE
NI EBEHRELZBR Bt SRS
BEEETRAAEEMER -
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HE-_T-_—F+-A=+-HLFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M. M%- - BHE KK
(a)  Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIEHER
Properties
leased for Furniture,
own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total
MR A& &R
BREENE HE#£EE LERRAE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TER THAR
Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2020 N_E-_F4—-HF—H 22,180 2,766 1,401 26,347
Exchange adjustments EHEE 85 - 36 121
Additions nE - - 181 181
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-f=+-H 22,265 2,766 1,618 26,649
At 1 January 2021 W-8-—-%—-HF—H 22,265 2,766 1,618 26,649
Exchange adjustments 5 HE 32 - 13 45
Additions nE 705 = 12 AV
Disposals HE (1,394) = (507) (1,901)

At 31 December 2021 WRZZ--f+-A=1+—-H 21,608 2,766 1,136 25,510
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) M. N¥E BERXEE)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) (a) BREEYERE)
Properties

leased for Furniture,

own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total

IWH ARG ER B
BRAEENE HEXE HZERRE 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER Taxn

Accumulated depreciation: RAHE:
At 1 January 2020 W-_E-_Z%-HF—H 5,563 2,516 530 8,609
Exchange adjustments AR 34 - 8 Iy
Provided for the year FREE 5,725 240 317 6,282
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+ZA=+—-H 11,322 2,756 855 14,933
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-A—H 11,322 2,756 855 14,933
Exchange adjustments 5% 18 - 5 23
Provided for the year ERNRE 5,765 10 297 6,072
Written back on disposals HEHM (916) = (185) (1,101)
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ-5+ZA=+-8 16,189 2,766 972 19,927
Net book value: EHFE:

At 31 December 2021 W-_E--%+-A=+-H 5,419 - 164 5,583

At 31 December 2020 RZZ-_ZE+-A=+—-A 10,943 10 763 11,716
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11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

M. N¥E BERXEE)

(b)

EHEEE

BEEBRRSMWEREEENK

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EHFEMAT :
2021 2020
—E--F —TZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
Properties leased for own use, HEBRNME
carried at depreciated cost LA 9T & A A 5 R 5,419 10,943

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

HABSEPHEIANEHEABONH

BELSWAT

2021 2020
—EC-—F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets REEHFIE P MERAEEE
by class of underlying asset: MIFEER
Properties leased for own use HEBRNWE 5,765 5,725
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HEEER K F6@) 381 629
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11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$705,000 which were
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under a new tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
Notes 19(d) and 23, respectively.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
3 years. Lease payments are increased on an
agreement-to-agreement basis to reflect market
rentals.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods
are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities. The potential exposure to these future
lease payments is summarised as below:

Lease liabilities recognised
at the end of the reporting period

11.

2021 Annual Report

ME -BERR®BGE)

b) EREEEE)
FR-ERBEEENRNE L R705000
AL TREMBEEHHETEN
EXRcHENKERM-

HERSRHNRENFAFENME
fi\ﬁﬁﬁ’\]%ﬁﬁﬁ > 4T 2 Rl #E Bt 3 19(d)
K23 5 i

HEHAWY¥E
AEEDRALBHERZESERAD
%T’E%#ﬂ#”iﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]%ﬂ fﬁf?_%
15 RE1E3F - & IR @ 5l
EAAUARBRMSZEHES -

RLEEEREEARBRERE
ﬂ#fﬂ%?ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁmﬁgﬂ\ % 18 o fE A 1T HY
EAT AEENRKBEARAEET
THEMERZER  LEMHE
M- AEEREERBABRTRE
CEEMERTHEEMHEEZRE -1
REAEETHEAERTCTFEERE
EE AEHHENORREENK
P AHEAGBENGFE BELEKRK
HENKHEBEERRALZ DT

'—'AAEE:
AR/

Potential future lease payments
under extension options not
included in lease liabilities

R & B R AHAREEENEHRERR
ERANEESR TEEAREENR
(discounted) (undiscounted)
(7 5) (K47 5)

2021 2020 2021 2020

—BZ-f —T_ZF —Bz-f —Z_THF

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FTEL TER FET

Office premise - PRC MAEME-—THE 291 433 - 1,333
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12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2021 are as follows:

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

12 REEB LIRS
KRARWN_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H2
TENMNBARIZEBOT :

Place of Particulars of  Proportion of
incorporation Place of Issued and ownership
Name of subsidiary or registration operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
AL BRTR HEEZRC
WEATER f i 4 EXuy BRRAHG Al FTEXEK
0Cl Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%"  Investment holding
REBXBRAT R EB 1,000 % 7t REER
0Cl Asset Management (Cayman) Cayman Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100%"  Fund management
Coltd HEHE BA 17 EeER
OCl Asset Management Company Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,001,000 100%"  Asset management
Limited BA s 1,001,000 % 7T EEER
RREEERERAA
Real Treasure Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% Trading of wines and
EEREARAT B BE 18T beverage
BEERAREE
OCI Administrative Services Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%  Provision of management
REERTBRBAERAA & gE 1,000 BT services to group companies
AEBRAREERRE
RE(LB)CXERRAERAAD  PRC PRC HK$11,750,500 100%" Provision of financial
i t 11,750,500 7t advisory service
PRt Bf 7 3 A IR 5
0Cl Global SPC-OCI US Dollar Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$3,422,120 100%  Investment fund
Debt Fund SP® RERS BB (2020: REED
US$10,422,226)
3422,120% Tt
(ZFZFF:
1042206% 1)

(i)  Indirectly held through subsidiaries of the Company.

(i) Registered as a wholly owned foreign enterprise

under PRC Law.

(iii) The Group considers that it has ability to control
through its representatives on the board of the
investment fund and acting as a fund manager. The
“paid up capital” disclosed above represents the
participating shares of the respective investment
fund at the end of the reporting period.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

(i) BEARAMBAREERA -

(i WEFEZZEMA/IBBEBELE -

(i) "EERR HEENXNKREESE
FENRRELETECLERAE
B EXWBER B RBRA]EM
AREESNBREPRRZZBRMD -

PRMBRRARNFEFRIBEETEANER

211



212

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 ¥5 ¥k 2% Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E T - —F+_A=+-BHILEE
12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

(a)l  Acquisition of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group acquired 49% and 40% shareholding
of OCl-Israel Investment Management Limited
("OCl-Israel Investment”) and Orient Genno
Management Co., Limited (“Orient Genno")
from non-controlling interests of OCl-Israel
Investment and Orient Genno at a consideration
of approximately HK$166,000 and approximately
HK$30, respectively. OCl-Israel Investment and
Orient Genno become wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group since then.

2021 Annual Report

RBLINKRE(&E)

AATEERA FRAIARFNE

AATBHEASENEEREEXA
E-ARAEFAR REEMHBER
ANEESERAEBR TR

(a)

WENBAT 2 FERES

HE_ZTZ_ZTF+_H=+—
BIEFE AEEBE2HNURED
166,000% 7Tt M #4130 JT #0CI-
Israel Investment and Orient Genno Z
IF 2= A% # %5 Uk BE OClIsrael Investment
Management Limited ([OCl-Israel
Investment]) X Orient Genno
Management Co., Limited ([ Orient
Gennol) R149% N 40% & #E - it
% » OCl-Israel Investment and Orient

GennofX AARNEEBE 22 &N E QA -

13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 13. RBEANFBCERIRE
Note 2021 2020
(k=3 ZEZ-F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEL
Corporate debt securities NEETSEFH (a) 239,990 289,145
Receivable under a loan facility —HEXBMEBTHEKER (b) - 31,000
239,990 320,145
Less: Loss allowance (see Note 29(b)(i)) J : /& 18 % & ( & KT 7 29(b)(i)) (188,352) (183,817)
Total debt investments at amortised X # K RNt E 2 B
cost, net of loss allowance REBBABEEREE) 51,638 136,328
2021 2020
—E--F e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTETL
Analysed for reporting purpose, net 2 #E 2 R B ¥
of loss allowance (MBREERE)
— Non-current portion —JERNEE & = 25,535
— Current portion -ANE B 51,638 110,793
51,638 136,328
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 13. ¥ HEM At B 2ERRE(E)

(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (a) AREBES
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: NEEBKIEFBRE
Note 2021 2020
P & —E--F e 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAEL
8% senior guaranteed notes SEEEREARE
("SP Note") (TSPEE]) (i) 101,363 100,782
10% senior guaranteed notes WEEEREARE
("RD Note") (TRDE#]) (ii) 107,532 108,144
7.5% senior note JSEREEE
("CAP 2021 Note") ([CAP2021E#]) (i) - 7,693
6.35% senior notes 63-EEBERE
("CAP 2024 Note") ([CAP2024Z 1) (iv) - 15,503
9% guaranteed bond (“CFLD Note”) 9E B R E# ([CFLDR &) (v) 20,959 21,485
7.25% senior unsecured bond THEEERERES
("GL Note") ([GLE#&) (vi) 10,136 10,032
7% fixed rate bond (“ET Note") TEEREHETER] (vii) - 6,805
7.875% senior notes (“KWG Note 2") 7.875E B £ Z ([KWGE#2])  (viii) - 3,702
6.875% senior guaranteed note 68TSEBEERELRRE
("LP Note") ([LPEED (ix) - 3,779
7.85% senior unsecured note ISHEEERELXRE
(“TC Note") ([TCE#E]) (x) - 11,220
Gross carrying amount at 31 R+ZA=+—HZ@BEHEE

December 239,990 289,145
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes:

(i) SP Note represented US$13 million (2020: US$13
million) 8% senior secured guaranteed notes issued
by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“SP
Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right
to extend the maturity date by further 12 months
exercisable by the Company. The SP Note is secured
by a charge over 131,000,000 shares of C.banner
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
does not have the right to sell or re-pledge the shares
held as collateral in the absence of default by SP
Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also secured
by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower Group
Co., Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and personal
guarantee provided by Yuan Yafei (the “Personal
Guarantor”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors
of the SP Note failed to provide additional collateral
requested by the Company pursuant to the terms of
the SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of
events of default (“EOD") under the terms of the SP
Note. In October 2018, the Group has issued EOD
notice to SP Note Issuer in respect of all outstanding
sums owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November
2018 and 10 January 2019 in relation to the default of
the SP Note.
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 13. R#MEMRHBEERRE(E)

(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued) (a) AREBEHHFFE)
Notes: (Continued) Mt : (&)

On 1 November 2018, the Group appointed a legal
adviser and the Group brought legal proceedings
against the Corporate Guarantor and the Personal
Guarantor at the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November
2018 for all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note
Issuer under the SP Note. On 20 December 2018, the
Court issued a R & # fi# £ (the “Mediation Order”,
order numbered (2018) Su 01 Min Chu No0.3422) in
relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of
the amounts owed under the SP Note recorded in
the #1f# # 3 (the “Settlement Agreement”) entered
into between OCI Capital Limited (“OCI Capital”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor on
the same day as a result of the mediation conducted
by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor are required under the
Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement to
repay amounts owed under the SP Note to OCI Capital
by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments
during 2019, no payment was received by OCI
Capital based on the Mediation Order and Settlement
Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance
with the agreed schedule, all amounts payable under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement
became immediately due and payable. Accordingly, on
9 January 2019, the Group submitted an application to
the Court for the enforcement of amounts due under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement.
Up to the date of these financial statements, such
court application is still in progress.

The Company received notice from the Sanpower
Group on 8 December 2021 that the Restructuring
Plan (the “Plan”) of Sanpower Group was passed.
The Plan is scheduled to resolve the defaulted debts
and part of the related interest due through business
restructuring and improving fund pool through
disposal of certain assets or investments. The Plan
will last through 2021 and 2028. The Company is
registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors and will
be notified by Sanpower Group for their updates on
the Plan.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount
of the SP Note was HK$33,471,000 (2020:
HK$20,235,000), after a provision for impairment loss
of HK$67,892,000 (2020: HK$80,547,000) (see Note
29(b)(i)).

RZE-—NFEF+—A—B ' A5H
ZEZZEEBR MAEFER=-_F—
NE+—ARAMRSPEEETAR
BSPEEAAXREHARAEERER
TERAPHRARZER(ER] T4
ARRIERARBAERARZE R
HR-R=—_E—N\F+=-_A=+A8H"
FRELREFABRE(HABE] X
E R 9 A(2018)8 01 & #)34225%) -
NAREBEARERARBAERA
MERBARAZ2EMNBARRE
BEABRAR(REEAR] - AA)E
BRARBAERAMETHORAEM
A B 5T 32 &9 A0 E 1 3 (TR0 A2 175 5% )
et MSPEBE BTN & R REBEZ R
RET-BERARERAREARE
RABREARE LR ERE
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(if)

RD Note represented US$15 million (2020: US$15
million) 10% senior guaranteed notes issued by
Rundong Fortune Investment Limited (“RD Note
Issuer”) maturing on 15 April 2019. The RD Note
is secured by a charge over 78,000,000 shares of
China Rundong Auto Group Limited (“China Rundong
Shares”), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not have the
right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral
in the absence of default by RD Note Issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RD Note
Issuer failed to repay the outstanding interest and
handling fee receivable and this has resulted in
occurrence of event of default under the terms of the
RD Note. The Company has made announcements on
8 August 2019 in relation to the default of the RD
Note.

In 2019, following the RD Note Issuer’s failure to
repay the outstanding principal amount and the
outstanding interest and handling fee receivable
of the RD Note, the Group exercised its right as a
chargee in possession of the charged shares and sold
2,019,000 China Rundong Shares on the market for
HK$3,648,440 and subsequently contracted with two
third parties, LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi (“Potential Purchasers”) which are
independent of the Group, to sell the remaining
75,981,000 China Rundong Shares (“Remaining
Shares”) for HK$80,000,000. LanHai International
Trading Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary of
Lanhai Holding (Group) Company Limited, which is in
turn 99% controlled by Mr. Mi Chunlei. Nonetheless,
neither of the Potential Purchasers paid any of
the consideration to the Group. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the Potential
Purchasers. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to LanHai International Trading Limited and Ms.
Ding Yi was filed to the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. The legal proceedings
between the Group against the Potential Purchasers of
Remaining Shares are still in progress. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Company attended
the mediation but no agreement was reached with
the Potential Purchasers. Further Witness Statement
was exchanged and the case management conference
hearing was held on 29 November 2021.
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)
The case trial is scheduled on 5 October 2023.

In 2021 and 2020, the Group further disposed of
800,000 and 5,491,000 China Rundong Shares,
respectively, on the open market for HK$612,000
and HK$4,495,200, respectively. The China Rundong
Shares were suspended for trading since 1 April 2021
and up to the date of these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of
the RD Note was HK$ Nil (2020: HK$17,978,000), after
a provision for impairment loss of HK$107,532,000
(2020: HK$90,166,000) (see Note 29(b)(i)).

CAP 2021 Note represented US$1 million (face value)
of 7.5% senior note issued by China Aoyuan Property
Group Limited (“CAP 2021 Note Issuer”) matured on
10 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CAP 2021
Note was sold prior to its maturity.

CAP 2024 Note represented US$2 million (face value)
of 6.35% senior note issued by China Aoyuan Property
Group Limited ("CAP 2024 Note Issuer”) maturing on
8 February 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CAP 2024
Note was sold prior to its maturity.

CFLD Note represented US$2.69 million (face value)
of 9% guaranteed bond issued by CFLD Cayman
Investment Ltd (“CFLD Note Issuer”) matured on 31
July 2021.

The Group received a default notice in respect of CFLD
Note on 9 March 2021. Accordingly, the Group made
a provision for impairment loss of HK$12.93 million
(2020: HK$13.07 million) as at 31 December 2021
(see Note 29(b)(i)) and at 31 December 2021, the net
carrying amount of CFLD Note was approximately
HK$8.03 million (2020: HK$8.41 million).
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

GL Note represented US$1.3 million (face value) of
7.25% senior unsecured bond issued by Greenland
Global Investment Limited (“GL Note Issuer”) maturing
on 12 March 2022.

After the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this report, the GL Note was redeemed upon
maturity.

ET Note represented US$0.88 million (face value) of
7% fixed rate bond issued by Easy Tactic Limited (“ET
Note Issuer”) matured on 25 April 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the ET
Note was sold prior to its maturity.

KWG Note 2 represented US$0.5 million (face value)
of 7.875% senior note issued by KWG Group Holdings
Limited (“"KWG Note 2 Issuer”) matured on 9 August
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the KWG
Note 2 was sold prior to its maturity.

LP Note represented US$0.5 million (face value) of
6.875% guaranteed note issued by Logan Property
Holdings Limited (“LP Note Issuer”) matured on 24
April 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the LP
Note was redeemed upon maturity.

TC Note represented US$1.45 million (face value) of
7.85% senior unsecured note issued by Times China
Holdings Limited (“TC Note Issuer”) matured on 4 June
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the TC
Note was sold prior to its maturity.

Receivable under a loan facility

The receivable under a loan facility was fully repaid
in April 2021.

Except for SP Note, RD Note and CFLD Note, the Group
did not have any debt investments that were past due
but not impaired at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
Further details on the Group’s credit risk arising from
debt investments at amortised cost are set out in Note
29(b)(i).

13. RBEAARGFECEBERE

(a)

(b)
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14.

15.

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

INVENTORIES 14. &
2021 2020
—R=-—Ff _"—ZT_ZTF
HK$000 HK$°000
TET FHE T
Goods purchased for resale HEE s EBER® 7,293 5,646
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as MRAEAEFRI N ABZONGEESEBS T
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: m
2021 2020
B - _—T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHE T
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFENEREA 42,191 7,775
Write down of inventories 5 & #Mom - 2,003
42,191 9,778
TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. EHEZKIR
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-%HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Trade debtors in respect of wines and EFHEEREBREmZ
beverage trading B2EBA - 487
Fees receivable from asset management REEEBEBZEWKRER 9,463 7,276
9,463 7,763

All of the trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.

FTAERKE ZRBEDIREHKAGE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

15.

2021 Annual Report

EE % RIA(F

AR 2 AT

RBEMR REZAHENBERER
BEKRESERBE RO TAOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-ZTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

0 to 60 days 0Z60H 9,463 7,276
61 to 90 days 61290H = =
91 to 180 days 91&180H - 280
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - 207
9,463 7,763

The Group allows an average credit period from 90 to
120 days (2020: 90 to 120 days) to its trade customers
in respect of wines and beverage trading and a credit
period of 30 days to its customers in respect of asset
management. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in Note 29(b)(ii).

AREERHEBAAERRREEE SR
FABE120HB(ZE =% : 90%120RH)
LIEHEERREEEERER P A30A
ZIEEH- ﬁﬁ$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmé
EWRESERBEZEERRFBHNME
29(b)(ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. & - AT RMIBANHith UL BRIA

2021 2020
—B--F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FET
Other receivables H fth & W AR 1B
— Interest and handling fee receivables from —EB&RE 2 EWF &R F
debt investments, net of loss allowance BE NMKREBEREDH
of approximately HK$5,035,000 5,035,000 7% 7T
(2020: HK$5,612,000) (ZZ ZZF 4% :5612,000/5 70) 223 4,379
— Other receivables —E fh & U BR 1B 1,238 1,060
Deposits with brokers RE LN TFER 1,522 18,217
2,983 23,656
Rental and other deposits MEREMEZS
— Non-current portion —JERNHAE » = 2,116
— Current portion —RHEH 2,394 78
Prepayments B I
— Prepayments for bank and other —BRNRITREMEERAR
borrowing costs 338 775
— Prepayments for fund sub-advisory —-BRNEES EBAREFE
services 2,067 -
— Other prepayments —H b A KB 4,160 1,516
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits & : A & &2 & FEBN HA 2 & - (2,116)

11,942 26,025
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. B A F Bt A BRA ZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
—E-—-fF —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHETT
US Dollar bond linked notes ELEFHBERE = 143,247
Corporate debt securities NP 558 = 119,202
HK Dollar Fund linked note BELTESHIER 20,000 =
Unlisted investment funds FLEMEEES
—|CBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP (Note (a)) —|CBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP
(B 5 (@) 28,827 165,697
- OClI Equities Fund SP —OCI Equities Fund SP 96,917 -
Total financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABZZERMEE
profit or loss 45 145,744 428,146
Note (a): Bt 5% (a)

18.

Subsequent to the reporting period end, the fair value of this
investment further dropped to HK$Nil.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
Pledged bank deposits are pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 22).

18.

RBEMFR % ZRENATEE - TH
ETHIT

PIRPRITER
EEBRTERHER FET U
AEBERZIRITRE RERRHZ
22)
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statements of financial position and cash flows

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

19. RekRESERAE
@) REEMBEHRARERRERERDH
BehBEESEEHRBRERE:

comprise:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Bank deposits, cash at bank and ROFR RORFENR 2
on hand 313,006 88,475
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiGEMBRARBRSRERF
consolidated statements of financial mRekAREFEER
position and cash flows 313,006 88,475
All of bank deposits, cash at bank and on hand are FrAERTER LT LRFENRS

carried at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2021, there were bank balances
and cash denominated in RMB amounting to
approximately HK$2,292,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,385,000). Remittance of funds out of PRC
is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

1) i EESH K R FHE

RZZE-Z_—F+-A=+—8" 1%
ARBFBEZRITEHREEAE Y
72,292,000 T(ZE2FF : 4
1,385,000 7T) - (A EIE L & &
78 38 <7 B B 28 6 B OINEE B
# #5 BI R {1 o
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

ReERBRESERE (&)

2021 Annual Report

Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash b) BRBABEELEXKMSESY
generated from operations: iR :
NOTE 2021 2020
P 5% ZBEZ-F —_ZT_%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Loss before taxation BR % A 5 48 (117,281) (18,366)
Adjustments for: MATIEEELRE:
Depreciation e 6(c) 6,072 6,282
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERIEZ
plant and equipment BB 5 469 -
(Reversal of impairment loss) EWE ZREREM
impairment loss on trade EWERB(REERER
and other receivables o) & 18 & 18 6(c) (577) 238
Impairment loss on debt BERREMEER
investments 6(c) 4,535 16,803
Provision for post-completion ERERRBE
guarantee 24 58,565 -
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEE W g 0 FEE (606) (1,432)
Change in fair value of financial BRRATEFABRRZ
assets at fair value through profit & REERAFEEH
or loss 4(a) 69,502 (2,801)
Finance costs BB ER 6(a) 10,063 29,278
Bank interest income BT R B A 5 (169) (184)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE:
(Increase) decrease in inventories T (% m)m b (1,647) 6,678
Increase in trade receivables fE U & 5 R I8 L A (1,700) (4,627)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, Be ENREREM
prepayments and other J& W BR 1B R A (38 hn)
receivables 16,201 (9,332)
Decrease in debt investments at REHEKATEZES
amortised cost % &R 80,802 65,151
Decrease in financial assets at fair R AFEFABREZ
value through profit or loss EREERD 88,785 97,721
(Decrease) increase in accruals and & 5 Z 1B K& H b fE f+F
other payables AR ORL ) & (3,475) 3,595
Decrease in contract liabilities ERHEERD (3,506) (3,025)
Cash generated from operations KEXBHMBERS 206,033 185,979
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

19. RERRESFERE(AE)
) REBMEFTDHNEEYHK

TRFAVNAEBREBMEEZHZE
EREH(BRRENIFRESED) -

BEmMELIHFMELANABLEER
IRKRRERNRAEELEEBEER
EXRPBEREREEH 2 HENE

in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash BEE-
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Accrued Lease
interests Borrowings liabilities Total
JE RIS BE HEEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR THR TER
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%5-A-H 6,044 341,060 11,450 358,554
Changes from financing cash flows: RERENBEFEES:
Proceeds from new bank loan MROER HERE - - = =
Repayment of bank loan ERETER - (155,000) = (155,000)
Repayment of shareholders' loans BEERREX - (54,250) - (54,250)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ EREAHE 224 EHH - - (6,012) (6,012)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ ERBHHE 2 FIEHH - - (381) (381)
Interest paid on bank and other EXARIREMERTE
borrowings (14,186) - - (14,186)
Totalchanges from financing cash flows BERHRERERBLE (a185) _(oozs0) | 6393) (9829
Exchange adjustments ERdE - 548 11 559
Other changes: 228
Finance costs (Note 6(a) FHER (o) 9,682 - 381 10,063
Increase in lease liabilities from entering % R z] \ ¥ € & £ &)
into new leases during the year BEAEEM - - 705 705
Early termination of a tenancy agreement 12 A &% It 1 & 15 & - - (331) (331)
Decrease in accrued interests and HEBREZAN
borrowings being set off with purchase & & | & R f£ 3R &
consideration (Note 19(e)(i) (Ft & 19(e))) (1,179) (46,590) - (47,769)
Totlotherchanges  AR9EE 8503 .. eson) LI (7.332)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+Z8
EsnelH 361 85,768 5823 91,952
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19. RERBESEBEBE(E)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing c) REMETHINEEHRE)

activities (Continued)

Accrued Lease
interests Borrowings liabilities Tota
fE5H 72 EE HEGRE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FATL FEL TEL
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z%-HF-§ 3,306 542,775 17,058 563,139
Changes from financing cash flows: REBENRLHEED:
Proceeds from new bank loan NETERZMERE = 910,000 = 910,000
Repayment of bank loan BERTER - (955,000) = (955,000)
Repayment of shareholders' loans BERRER - (155,807) - (155,807)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ BHEHRE 2 EXHH - - (5,647) (5,647)
Interest element of lease rentals paid =~ EREAHE 2 H 8 H 5 = = (629) (629)
Interest paid on bank and other EXABRAREBERTE
borrowings (25,952) - - (25,952)
Totd changes from financing cesh flows BEESHREAEZDAE | 5952 (aoogo7) | 6276) (23303
Exchange adjustments EREE | (908) 39 (828)
Other changes: B2
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) FEER (M 6() 28,649 = 629 29,278
Tototherchanges  Ebk®m®  »ew - 69 29218
At 31 December 2020 RZE-BE+CH

Sr=f 6,044 341,060 11,450 358,554
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the statement of cash flows

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

19. RERRESFERE(AE)
d HERESRHAHE
AAHEREREXRNEBEERT

for leases comprise the following: 5| & 18
2021 2020
B85 Z—ZE-_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx % 7T
Within financing cash flows MERESREF 6,393 6,276

These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021,
part of the proceeds from the sales of the
Sale Shares amounted to approximately
HK$47,769,000 was offset by the repayment
of the outstanding shareholder’'s loan and
the accrued interests due to Orient Finance
amounted to HK$47,769,000 (see Notes 22(b)
(iii) and 24).

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the proceeds from the sales of a corporate
debt security amounted to HK$116,250,000
was offset by the fulfillment of the obligations
under repurchase agreements (see Note 21).

ZELREBE_T_—FR_-FT
—EF+ A=+ HILEFEXH
ZHHOBEEE#A-

le)] EXKBEERS

iy NBBzE-—_ZT-_—F+=-7=
T-—HRALEFE - LEHERND
2 B o BT 18 3K I8 £947,769,000
BLTRBEEENRFSBMK
BERRERKEFTIE BH
47,769,000/ 7T AT K 88 (R BT 5%
22(b)(ii) 2. 24) °

iy MNEBEE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFE HEQRBEBEESA
18 X 78116,250,000/8 7T & B 17 B8
[ 15 5% 18 T &) & F A7 38 88 (R B
FE21) o
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20.

21.

T H+-A=+-—HIFE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
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20. [EstRRIBREMEMRIE

2021 2020
—E-—-F Z—T-_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TFE T
Accrued legal and professional fees Btz REXER 3,285 2,368
Accrued interest fET A B 361 6,044
Advisory fee payable FEEAE R 701 4,578
Other accruals Hith fE 5T K IE 1,147 788
Other payables H & 1 BR 18 1,467 890
Financial liabilities measured at BBHEKAGTEZ2EHEE

amortised costs 6,961 14,668
Accrued staff bonus JEst B T b4 = 247
6,961 14,915

OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 21. B0 HFMNE T

As at 31 December 2020, the Group entered into
repurchase agreements with independent third parties
whereby the Group agreed to sell corporate debt
securities as included in the financial assets at amortised
cost with gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$116,085,000 and simultaneously agreed to
repurchase these corporate debt securities at the agreed
date and price. The repurchase prices are fixed and the
Group is still exposed to substantially all the credit risks,
market risks and rewards of those securities sold. These
securities are not derecognised from the consolidated
financial statements but regarded as “collateral” for the
liabilities because the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of these securities.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all
repurchase agreements were fully settled.

R-ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H AK&EH
HBYE=ZFAUBLRRGE BEASE
ERELEREHKATGTENSRE
ETFHAREBEEESF ELAFEEEARY
116,085,000 7T + I [ &5 [A] 2 & # & B
HEERBOZERARBEEESFNXR
S - BOERXRABT BALEBNEE
BABHEERKR THEEBREEAD
EZEEFNOR - ZEFHFITARAER
EMBRERPRLEER HERAAEE
REZEBHFNRBATL D R R K E R -
MERAEEENIEBER]-

REBEE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HIHF
TR EBOHREDRERER -
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22. BORROWINGS

(a)

(b)

The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings
is as follows:

REBEBRZERERAT
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22. &8

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

(a) ERZEEEINAOT :

Note 2021 2020
Bt = —E-—-F i S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTE T FET
Bank borrowing, secured RITER - BEA 22(b)(i) - 155,000
Shareholders’ loans, unsecured % 3 & 3 £ K #
— Cheer Hope Holdings Limited — E 2Kk E R Q 7
("Cheer Hope") (TRZEERKRI 22(b)(ii) 85,768 93,030
— Orient Finance Holdings - RAeRERESR)
(Hong Kong) Limited BR A
("Orient Finance") VK1) 22(b)iii) - 93,030
85,768 186,060
85,768 341,060
All of the borrowings are carried at amortised FIBEBRORBEHEKANGE-

costs.

Significant terms and repayment schedule of
borrowings

(i) Bank borrowing, secured
At 31 December 2020, the bank borrowing bore
interest at the rate of 0.5% per annum over HIBOR,
was secured by the Group’s bank deposits (see Note
18) and was denominated in HK$.

The bank borrowing was fully repaid in 2021.

(ii) Unsecured loan from Cheer Hope
The loan from Cheer Hope bears interest at fixed rate
of 4.15% (2020: 4.15%) and was denominated in US$
and repayable within one year from the end of the
reporting period.

(iii) Unsecured loan from Orient Finance
At 31 December 2020, the loan bore interest at fixed
rate of 5.15% and was denominated in US$.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
loan was fully repaid by cash and offset by the
consideration payable for the Sale Shares by the Group
(see Notes 19(c) and 24).

(b) BERZEE/RRKRERKER

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities:

23. lHEGBE

HER

31 December 2021
ZECZ-F
tZB=+-8

Present value

2021 Annual Report

TRITAEEHEGENRT AT

31 December 2020
—Z-%F
+-A=1+-H

Present value

of the minimum ~ Total minimum of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments

RERE RERE RERE RERE

HRZRE HRAE NHRE e EE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThERL ThEn TET TET
Within 1 year regs 583 596 5807 6179
After 1 year but within 2 years BEIEEAEBF - - 5,643 5,753
D W 5153

5,823 5,936 11,450 11,932

Less: total future interest expenses B ARFERX B8 (113) (482)
Present value of lease liabilities HEREZHE 5,823 11,450

24. PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE 24, SEEREE

HK$'000

FE T

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—H—H -
Provision made IR M BB 58,565
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=HA=+—H 58,565

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the ICBC AMG China
Fund | SPC (the “SPC"), in respect of its segregated
portfolio, ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”)
managed by ICBC Asset Management (Global Company
Limited), pursuant to which the Company subscribed for
the Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount

of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156

million).

BEXT(HE

RZBE-NAFERA-_+=0 KA AHE
ICBC AMG China Fund | SPC ([SPCJ) gt H
HIREE(RH)ERAFEEMNE L
1% & #H A ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP ([ B
PELDIIURBEHE
RERSESFTETBERMD - A 220
R&156 B EBTT) °

31 AR NI/NIC]
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24. PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE

(Continued)

On 23 June 2021, the Company as the Vendor
(the “Vendor”) and Orient Finance Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Orient Finance”) as the Purchaser
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to sell and Orient Finance
conditionally agreed to purchase the Company’s entire
right, title and interest in certain amount of Class
B Shares (“Sale Shares”) in the Sub-Fund of SPC at
the consideration of no more than US$8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) with a
post-completion guarantee clause that in the event that
the SPC redeems the participating shares held by the
Purchaser at the expiry of the investment term of the
Sub-Fund (i.e. 2 June 2022), the sum of entitlement
of the Purchaser as the holder of the Sale Shares
comprising the aggregate of all the returns, distributions,
income, and other payments received or accrued on the
Sale Shares since the completion of the disposal of the
Sale Shares in the Sub-Fund of SPC plus the redemption
proceeds paid or payable to the Purchaser is less than
the consideration of the disposal of the Sale Shares
paid by the Purchaser, the Vendor shall pay to the
Purchaser such shortfall within five business days upon
receipt of written notice from the Purchaser. Proceeds
of the disposal of the Sale Shares will be used to repay
the outstanding loan in the amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,590,000), together
with all accrued interest, owing from the Company
to Orient Finance. In August 2021, 7,900 shares were
sold to Orient Finance at the consideration of US$7.51
million (equivalent to approximately HK$58.21 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
investment in the Sub-Fund was approximately
HK$28.83 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$165.70 million). The fair value of the investment in
the Sub-Fund dropped substantially on the last quarter
of 2021 due to the market value of those bonds issued
by PRC properties developers in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
decreased sharply upon the PRC government’s tightened
control policies over credit.

REEFEZERABRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F--F+-A=t-ALEE

ERERBEE)

RZZE-—FXA=-+=8" A27E
REF) (BFNERFBIZERGEE)
ERAR(IRAE€®) (EAEH)(TE
FDAILEEHZ Bt A2AFK
HRELE MERSFSBREKGRERE
BEARARARRSPCK D ESTFETHERN
BERG(IBERBHNEZHER A
K BT B8,000,0003 Jt(48
B 1 4962,400,000/%8 7T) o MY 7 & & £ R
3R WSPCER D E 2 MEZEHRE
WEA—_E - —_F#XA-RA)ELENEH
FiEmaERn EH1EABEERNH
BEABREEEZRLESPCRDESF
HERMEBIHEE R M WIS EEFT
ERHK Dk - WAREMSRMNEE
SNEENGEEFHERMSRIENRZ
MIPREFINHNEEHERND 2R
B BFAFEERIEFERANEAME
TERAMEASIZERE HEHE
BOMERBEREREERARALERR
7 & B #) kB B 36,000,000% st (A &
7 4946,590,000% T) © & [ FT B FE 51 7
Bo-RZIEZ—FN\H 751848
ERAS8QIBEEBTLINRERR @
B & T 7,900 & B 1n o

RZZEBEZ—F+-_A=+—8B ' RK
DEEZERENRAFEEHN2883HE
BT(ZE_FEF+_A=+T—80: %
16570 B BB T) RKAESZEREW
ARFERZZEZ—FHE—RBREEKNRE
T FRERHRPEBFKRERFEEE
FIBE KO ESREHAEGTHFTBRE
MERBERNZETNZEESFMBEERK
i8R D o
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a=

24.

25.

S FtASt-BLER

PROVISION FOR POST-COMPLETION GUARANTEE
(Continued)

The net asset value (the “NAV") of Class B shares of the
Sub-Fund continued to decreased further as the prices
of those bonds and notes in the Sub-Fund’s portfolio
dropped further in early 2022. The value of Class B
shares turned to zero by 31 Jan 2022 and further cut
loss actions were taken by the Sub-Fund’s manager.
The NAV of the Sub-Fund decreased further. The NAV
of Class B shares as at 28 Feb 2022 is zero. The chance
of regaining value to acquisition value by the expiry
of the Sub-Fund is remote, hence a full provision for
the post-completion guarantee on the 7,900 Class
B shares sold to Orient Finance on their acquisition
value of approximately US$7.51 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$58.57 million is made in 2021.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
managed by the local government authorities. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the defined salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from the above
mentioned retirement plans at their normal retirement
age.

24.

25.

2021 Annual Report

ERERBEE)

MR ESEREHATZSELERE
BHBRA_ZEZ__F9E—F T %
RO ESBERNMEEFE(EER
BEHEERL - BEROHNEENR=-Z
T F—A=+—HE#AT KN E
CRHRBOHDE - IEBREE Ko E
TMEEFEE-— TR - BERMR
ZTEZZF A=+ \BWMEETFHE
AT - RES2ESERAREEZEKRERE
EMAREERDN AERZZTE=Z—FH
RWBEENISIAEEZT(HERY
5857 B & B IL)AIE A €8 & 7,900
BBERMERETIREERIERERE -

{2 8 iR fif 18 il

REMMRBIKREE
RNEBEREEBGRSEQE S EK
IR EBRERBERINDEE A LA KT
BRAETHABRRTENEEEITT A
BEEABeFE((RESFE]) -8
BB —BEHABUSTATENR
EHREBERFE -RERBESTE &
TREEEHEZREBEBRAKNSY
MEBSHEHRT HEREEERIOEH
F AW A &SR 5 A30,000/8 7T ° %5t
BoHRUNEE ASETEFRANR
W R RBEERRAHHRIKE-

A E BT BEEB) KK B
ARZEESMEEMEFERN AT
HHRKBRE - XSHB AT 2R
B A AE R IE %R 4K 4F I 4t bR AR A
B ch 15 5 P (B B IR 50 MR T K
T8 5 Lt 3 H H0 R GBI -
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25.

26.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with those
schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 17 December 2012 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at nil
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company.

On 15 October 2021, the Company granted a total
of 105,000,000 options (the “Share Options”) to its
directors. The Share Options will be vested in five equal
tranches in accordance with the vesting schedule of
the Share Options, subject to the fulfilment of certain
performance targets (the “Vesting Condition”). Where
performance targets have not been met, the share
options of a specific tranche will not vest. The estimated
fair value of the five tranches of the share options using
the polynomial model was approximately HK$1.55,
HK$1.78, HK$1.94, HK$2.07 and HK$2.19 at the grant
date. The share options are exercisable within a period
of 10 years from the date of grant. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

The Group recognises share-based payments expenses
in its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income based on awards ultimately
expected to vest.

REBEBRZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

& SR i t@ ml (&)
RE#FR K BI(F)

B bl F R RSN AR B H A R %
FHEREnNEZeRMNLEEMER
B

MERGESUARDRBRERNRS
ARRARZ-ZFB-—ZF+ AT ELEHESR
—HBREE B ARRESE
BERNBEAEAFASERE(ERAKHE
T RARMNESR)ATREZAERE
ARBARARD

RZEBE-—F+A+HB AAQARMEE
B ER A $£105,000,0001 8 A% # (158
BED BREBZBERENSEB R
MESPHABSTHEEE MAERE T
BEE(EBGRHED WMAEKEEH
B-BHEBHIANERESTITSEBE -1
HEREARLEBHENAFEFRAEN
BRI 4 AB15587L 17887 1.94
P& T 2.078 T %2197 T o BB % RE A
EREBEBRBIOFAITE - BHERE
BYFRBEARBAQRA —REBRAE
- WA BEEE -

AEBERNREAHEBOHRB N HE
EHEGEREMEERERTERURND
REBRONRFAX -
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:

26.

2021 Annual Report

MiEEBELENRNDBERNORA(E)

(a) REMBEAIRGEHEDOT :
Number of Vesting date
instruments (note) Expiry date

ITA%E BEASME JEw A

Options granted to directors on

R-ZF--f+A+EH

15 October 2021 KTEEMERE
— First tranche -F—H 21,000,000 1 April 2022 31 March 2028
—T_C _7_A¢
mA—-H = H =+—H
- Second tranche —-E -1 21,000,000 1 April 2023 31 March 2029
—T_=F _7_H¢
MA—A ZA=+—H
— Third tranche -5=H 21,000,000 1 April 2024 31 March 2030
—T-_mE Z—ZT=F%
MA—HB ZA=1+—H
- Fourth tranche - M 21,000,000 1 April 2025 31 March 2031
“E-nFf Z—E=—-%
MA—HB ZA=1+—H
— Fifth tranche -SHH 21,000,000 1 April 2026 6 June 2031
ZTZRE ZE=—F
mA—H ~NARE
Total share options granted REMERERYE 105,000,000
Note: The number of options to be exercised after each MR EEEBHRESTHEORERE
vesting period is subject to fulfillment of certain HEXHEERUGMEANE TXER
performance targets as set out in the the Vesting IEER TR ©

Condition.

There is no exercising and lapsing of the share
options during the year ended 31 December 2021
after granted.

REWE BE-B= %17
=+ — B L 4 0 P 3 4 B R R
17 58 o8 SR 3 -
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

REBEBRZERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

26, NIERBBREUUARDRERORZ(AE)

(b)

BREHBERMNEFIITEEOT :

2021
—E=-—F

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options

bn # 35
THEE BREHA

Outstanding at the beginning FHERITE

of the year - -

Granted during the year FARD HK$4.53
4.53% T 105,000,000

Outstanding at the end of the year % 7 (4 & 17 {# HK$4.53
4538 T 105,000,000

Exercisable at the end of the year & K a] 17 f# HK$4.53
4.53% T =

The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had
an exercise price of HK$4.53 (2020: not applicable)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 8.3 years (2020: not applicable).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a polynomial model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as
an input into this model. Expectations early exercise
are incorporated into the polynomial model.

(c)

R-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—BK7TF
FEHEBRENITEREAR4S3E (=
TEEF M ERAEMEFEEHT
BEHNFHRIF(ZZE_ZTF: F
#A) -

BREAFERMER

h % H BB A A i 4 BR 1 A& B 3R B9 AR
BRAFESLERLBRENRF
EfE-REBERENRAFEDE
REZBRARE T AL - BREN
BHFHREZEEN —HE AHK
BE-RETENHEEMAAZERN
BRI -
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26. MRS E W NN BEENKZA(E)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFERBRE)

(Continued)

Options

granted on

16 September

2021

R-BZ-—F

Fair value of share options and A+ A

assumptions BREAFERRBR &0 e R E

Share price at the grant date KEBAEOKRE HK$4.15

4.15% 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$4.53

4537 7T

Expected volatility T8 HA R 1R 54%

Option life (expressed as weighted average BEREFH(XRTAZEAEBE T 8.3 years

life used in the modelling under AR AR N T 15 F E) 8.3%F

polynomial model)

Expected dividends T8 B B B 0%

Risk-free interest rate B = b R X 1.36% — 1.60%

Exercise multiple TR B 2.47

The expected volatility of share price is calculated
based on the statistical analysis of historical
volatility of the Company, adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

No expense was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: not applicable) as the directors of the
Company were of the view that the relevant
performance targets under the Vesting Condition
were not satisfied.

s B FEEEETIIBEARQR KA
Al 15 & KA (E {a] T8 B R 2ROK 18 B
QEUQQ%E&EEE&%E‘JMEI‘E &t

CHHBREERELERE - X8
ﬁm]\%ﬂ)ﬂ?‘“ I - NS
BEAEEERTE -

R R D AR B AR A AR AT R T o TR
BRBORFEAFERE LB
BEEZGMH -BEEBRERT
16 B8 T 5 R A o

BE-FT--&+-A=+-AL
FE ARNGARARALRE
PETLE TACFIEE Rt L
BR) RERARAEERAR
BT E TARBI R B R -
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27.

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  27.
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

(a)

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

6 B B ik iR & P B PR S

REVBMRRTRPHOBNEHIRLE

2021 2020
—E-—-F ZTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Tax payable at 1 January R—A—BZEMNBIE 3,121 4,946
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 7 & & & & K| 15 % B &
for the current year 5,341 1,233
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEANEGH (3,200) (3,052)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREBFBBNER 324 -
Exchange adjustment b H 38 B 4 (6)
Tax payable at 31 December R+ A=+—HRZENBHIE 5,590 3,121
Representing: ¥
Hong Kong Profits Tax B MEHR
— Recoverable — A 4 [E - (872)
- Payable — 5,590 3,993
At the end of the year JINEC SN 5,590 3,121
Deferred tax assets [liabilities) not recognised (b) ARERELEHEEE(BE)

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(n), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$366,958,000 (2020:
approximately HK$204,013,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses
do not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group had no other significant potential
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31
December 2021 and 2020.

B E W FE200MT 8 2 5 B’ KR
$‘$lﬁﬂ<?ﬁ,\§+ﬁlﬁfﬂéé’ﬂ
366,958,000 M(ZE T F : 4
zmmamm%mﬂawﬁkmﬁﬁ
E DERBEENBEER RE®
B IKEEE 2 RRERBEF
WA REM TR - BREBRITH L %
MIEBEBEKE TS EH-

HE_ZT-_—FhR_ZFE_FTF+=
A=+—HB A&EBRITEHMERK
BEERCHBEERARE-
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 E_F-_—F+-_RA=+-HLEE

28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a] Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's

2021 Annual Report

28. BN B
(a) #Ez= BB

AREERAEESIONENRE

BRERDEEIRNGEEREDY

/'\id,

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RoARTBERBERBIRFEINZE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the FHRONEHFBFHINAT :
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
(Accumulated
osses) retained
Share capital ~ Share premium earnings Total
(Bt ER)
Company PN k& RHEE REEH @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TEn TEn
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZFZZE-A-RAy&8 10,598 217,190 3732 231,520
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBRRZEAXLER
for the year (17611) (17611
Issuance of shares 11k {3 4,400 281,600 - 286,000
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-F_EE+-R=1-H
L% 14,998 498,790 (13,879) 499,909
Balance at 31 December 2020 and R-E-EET-R=1-REK
1 January 2021 ZEI-F-R-HeER 14,998 498,790 (13,879) 499,909
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBRERZEAXLER
for the year - - (144,830) (144,830)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-F-_-5+-A=+-8
LEB 14,998 498,790 (158,709) 355,079
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

28. ERKREEB(E)

(b) Share capital (b) MR
2021 2020
—E--F —“3°%
Number of Number of
Shares Share capital Shares Share capital
KRG gE Rx R &E k=
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
R TéEn Tk Thn
Authorised: ET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREABIVNATZERR 100,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BRTRARCEAR:
At 1 January R—A-H 1,499,750 14,998 1,059,750 10,598
Issuance of shares 2ORMH - = 440,000 4,400
At 31 December R+=A=+-A 1,499,750 14,998 1,499,750 14,998

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

The Company alloted and issued 440,000,000
ordinary shares during the year ended 31
December 2020 with par value of HK$0.01 for a
total consideration of HK$286,000,000.

EERBFEABREDRTEE IR
BREREEEARARBKRNE LT K
BR—FR-FAEEBEKRHARRANK
TEEFZERFHA-

AR REBEE_ZFT_ZF+=
A=+t —BLFERZERET
440,000,000 /R EI{E0.01 B T 2 & i@
i% - 42X {8 /286,000,000 JT °
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands,
the funds in the Company’s share premium
account are distributable to the equity
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(q).

Other reserve

The other reserve comprises the changes in
equity as a result of change in the Group’s
interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(d).

(iii)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

2021 Annual Report

28. ERKEEE)

(c)

(d)

BENEER AR

(i) RGEE
REFERSREE WMERE
ERREREEBREZ NAA
RERMENERAEXRKER
FRIZER MIARAEZ K
MiEERCEEAIDIK T #EDS
PR o

(i) BEFHE
BERBEREREBINER
MBHRERMELNAINE =
MeERRBHEE20ME S
AABRRERE -

(iii) 1t 45 15
HiREBeERAEE LA X
£ 12 5 T2 — B 2 L
WA T BT A
B o 2 6k 1B T 2 I R 2() P B
&5 R IE -

EXREE
AEEEREANTIEARRRE
AEERBELENREN BBER
K FHEBOERMRSEEE K
MAGENKAESHERE A
BEEBEREZRRREHED R IR
Hip Mz H R E SR -

AEEEHBRILEERELBEAR
B AERFESRED R A LS K
MBS EEKFRBEE NI
TRNEBERREZLANTE X
REBEZEBERNOZEHERARBAE
58 o



2021 3R

28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flow
requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as total
borrowings over equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at
31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was
25% (2020: 87 %).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

OCl Asset Management Company Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Regulated Subsidiary”), is granted licenses by the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC") for the business they operate in. The
Regulated Subsidiary is subject to liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R").
Management of the Group closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the Regulated Subsidiary’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum
liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.
The Regulated Subsidiary has no non-compliance
of capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R
throughout the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Market risk

()

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or
cash flows of an asset, liability or forecast
transaction denominated in foreign
currency (that is, a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
the transactions relate) will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
functional currency of the Hong Kong
subsidiaries is HK$ and the functional currency
of PRC subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from investments and borrowings
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$").
Currency exposure arising from investments
denominated in US$ is mitigated in part by
funding a portion of the investments through
external borrowings in the same currency.
As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HK$ and the US$ to be
insignificant.

29.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

As most of the Group’s financial instruments at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are denominated
in either HK$ or US$, management does not
consider there to be any significant currency risk
associated them.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest-bearing financial
assets and borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate debt securities
and borrowings issued at fixed rates. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk mainly from balances with banks
and borrowings carrying interest at prevailing
market rates.

Management of the Group monitors the
related interest rate exposure closely to
ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HK$
denominated financial instruments. The
Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i EREBLE/M T B2 FE (&)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEEREE)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) F =7 (&
The following table, as reported to the MASEEBREEMZ2®H TX
management of the Group, details the FHIAEERBEHRRNEE
interest rate risk profile of the Group's DEEE KRB R HER ST
interest-bearing financial assets and o
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period:
Note 2021 2020
P &E —EB--F g 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Net fixed rate financial assets EELHEE(EE)
(liabilities): FE
Debt securities measured at REHK A ENED
amortised cost B 5 13 51,638 136,328
US Dollar bond linked notes ENBELFHBEE 17 = 143,247
Corporate debt securities NAEBEF 17 = 119,202
Obligations under repurchase BBz THWEE
agreements 21 - (77,525)
Borrowings — shareholders’ loans ~ f& X~ E & & 22 (85,768) (186,060)
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 (5,823) (11,450)
(39,953) 123,742
Net variable rate financial FEEMEE(BE)
assets (liabilities): HE
Pledged bank deposits EEARTER 18 - 249,535
Cash at bank RITRE 19 313,006 88,475
Borrowings — bank borrowing R —IEITIER 22 = (155,000)
313,006 183,010
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. B RBREENEM I FiE (&)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) mHBEKGE)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) 7= 7@ B (&)

Sensitivity analysis B E DM
The sensitivity analysis below has been RTHERESNMIDERGFER
determined based on the exposure to interest MEEREZBRBEENNXERR
rates for interest-bearing financial assets and B - ZOoMDBERRERSE
financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared HRANWAEBFEEREERS
assuming interest-bearing financial assets and BmEERBEREEEHYREEM
financial liabilities outstanding at the end of RHE -EMAKSEEEERS
respective reporting period were outstanding MEBE R EERAMEENE
for the whole year. When reporting to SOEEEMERIERHZERE D
management of the Group on the interest r-EwERKZAMAEHEMEENR
rate risk, a 50 basis points (“bps”) increase BAEBRATERFEA
or decrease in the relevant interest rates will n‘:lj RHOEBEEZH ARBITHE
be adopted for sensitivity analysis, assuming HAMEERBEKFE BERE
all other variables were held constant, which EBERRTAKE T K
represents a reasonably possible change in R ETEAGRE DT
interest rates. Interest-bearing bank deposits RBEEFERITHER - UTIE
are not included in the sensitivity analysis R T A K BB EEIE Y
for the decrease of interest rate as the bank m-RZINR -

deposit rate is at a low level and management
of the Group considers such downward
adjustment is unlikely. A positive number
below indicates an increase in loss after
taxation of the Group or vice versa.

2021 2020
—E-—F —TF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET FE T
Loss after taxation for the year FARBIEEE
Increase by 50bps EFSOofEE 2 167 131

Decrease by 50bps T B& 50 1 5 24 (167) (131)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, interest receivables and debt
investments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, which the
Group considers to represent low credit risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies
The board of directors delegates to a risk
management team the duties to monitor the
credit risk of the Group. Members of this risk
management team include, inter alia, the chief
executive officer, the chief operating officer,
responsible officers, the chief financial officer
and the head of investment department. This risk
management team is responsible for monitoring,
pre-warning and detecting the credit risk.

Debt investments

The Group focuses on decentralising investments
for the credit-type fixed income securities
investments which are mainly high return products.
The Group pre-controls the exposure of the
credit risk by setting investment position limit,
classifying the sub-investment varieties, sub-credit
rating limits and concentration limits. Moreover,
the Group continuously tracks the bond issuer’s
business conditions and credit rating changes
through monitoring, pre-warning, risk detecting,
etc. At the same time, the Group is highly prudent
in the investment of the asset-based securities
products and strictly evaluates the quality of the
underlying asset pool and the effectiveness of the
credit enhancement.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

—  Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading are due within 120 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from these customers.

—  Fees receivable from asset management
mainly represent regular management fees
based on a predetermined fixed percentage of
the assets value under management and paid
out in the priority of the funds’ distributable
cash flow, the Group assessed that the
balances are fully recoverable.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies
The Group performs individual and collective
impairment assessment on debt investments at
amortised cost and trade receivables.

-  For debt investments at amortised cost,
the Group identifies individual impairment
through methods such as risk classification
and early warning. For assets for which an
allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the Group determines the
allowance amount by assessing the losses of
each debt investment at amortised cost at
the reporting date. During the assessment
stage, the Group generally considers the
financial status of the borrower, the disposal
of collateral, the repayment ability of the
guarantor and related parties to estimate
the recoverable future cash flows and
discounts the recoverable future cash to the
present value of the significant impaired
debt investments at a reasonable discount
rate. The difference between the carrying
value and the estimated present value of the
significant impaired debt investments shall be
provided for as the impairment loss on debt
investments at amortised cost.

- For trade receivables, the Group measures loss
allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer
bases. Expected loss rates are based on actual
loss experience over the past two years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group constructed

a “three-stage” ECL model to manage its financial

assets’ credit risk:

(b)

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

Financial assets have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination and impairment
recognised on the basis of 12 months
expected credit losses.

Financial assets have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime
expected credit losses.

Financial assets that are in default and
considered credit-impaired.

The ECL is the result of the discounted product
of probability of default (PD), exposure at default
(EAD) and loss given default (LGD). The definitions
of these terms are as follows:

- PD represents the likelihood of a borrower
or debt issuer defaulting on its financial

obligation;

- EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

- LGD represents the Group's expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure.
LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral
or other credit support. LGD is expressed as
a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

The ECL allowance is determined by projecting
the PD, LGD and EAD for every six months and for
each individual exposure or collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together
and adjusts their duration (if there is no early
repayment or default). This effectively calculates
an ECL allowance for every six months, which
is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
allowance calculation is the original effective
interest rate.

For debt investments in stage 1, the Group first
calculates the annual 12-month PD and then
transfer it to monthly PD. For debt investments in
stage 2 and 3, the lifetime PDs are developed by
monitoring how defaults develop in a portfolio
from the point of time when a debt experienced
SICR to its lifetime. The lifetime PDs are based on
historical observed data taking into consideration
forward-looking factors. This is supported by
historical analysis.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The lifetime LGDs are determined based on the
factors that affect the recoverable amounts post
default. These vary by product type.

—  For secured debt investments, this is primarily
base on the projected collateral values,
historical discounts to market/book values due
to forced sales and recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured debt investments, the Group
closely monitors their status and it believes
that the Group's credit risk exposure on them
is minimal.

Forward-looking information included in the
expected credit loss model is as follows:

The calculation of expected credit losses involves
forward-looking information. After the historical
analysis, the Group identified the key economic
indicators related to expected credit loss, such as
gross domestic product (GDP), consumer price
index (CPI). The Group forecasts these economic
indicators at least annually and provides the best
estimates of the economic conditions for the
coming year.
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29. MIBERRERRER TR AFEGE)

(b)

SERER(E)
AHEEBRRE (&)
EEFEHNBROBRXRTIREY
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
The following tables provide information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for debt investments at amortised cost
and fees receivable from asset management
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020:

As at 31 December 2021
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29. MHERERRENTIRAZ LA TEGE)

(b)

SERER(E)

BAEEREHO

(i) HBEXRABENBEERER
E=EBENRER
TERREEBEBAAEER T =
—F+_A=+—HERZZE=
TE+ A=+ HEHEHIE

BERAFEZETRERE
EEENEERERANEERR
AIEHEEBEMNER:

R=—FB=-—-%+=-A=+—-H

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BEMER AREE BERE FEEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Debt investments at REHKARGEZ
amortised cost EBRE
— RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEH (Ff7f(@a)  Stage 3FE3IME 107,532 (107,532) -
- SP Note (note (bb)) ~SPEE(M(bb)  Stage 3E3MREE 101,363 (67,892) 33,471
- CFLD Note (note (cc)) ~CFDEE (M3 (cc)) Stage 3FE3IMEE 20,959 (12,928) 8,031
- GL Note —GlE® Stage! £ 10 & 10,136 - 10,136
Tol R 239990 (188352) 51638
Trade receivables B HKRE
- Fees receivable from asset -BETEN Stage 1 1 & &
management fE U & F 9,463 = 9,463
Total Bt 249,453 (188,352) 61,101
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

REEFEZERERAA
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29. MBERERRENTIAZ LA TEGE)
(b) FEREMRE)
RAGGEREMOGE
i) REEMNFENEERER
EEERENRERE)

R=—®-BF+=-B=+-8

Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BERR BEEE BEEER BREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET
Debt investments at REHMARGEZ
amortised cost EBRE
- RD Note (note (aa)) -ROEH (M i(@a)  Stage3 F3IM B 108,144 (90,166) 17,978
- SP Note (note (bb)) —SPEE (K& (bb)  Stage3 E3IWE 100,782 (80,547) 20,235
- CFLD Note (note (cc)) ~CFDEH (M3 (c) Stage3 £33 R E 21,485 (13,073) 8,412
- CAP 2021 Note —CAP2021 E Stage 1 51 B & 7,693 = 7,693
- CAP 2024 Note —CAP20UEE Stage 1 £1 R & 15,503 - 15,503
- GL Note -GLE® Stage 1 &1 & &% 10,032 = 10,032
~ ET Note -ETEH Stage 1 51 B & 6,805 = 6,805
- KWG Note 2 -KWGE &2 Stage 1 £1 R & 3,702 - 3,702
- LP Note —-IPE & Stage 1 51 B & 3,779 - 3,779
- TC Note -TCEH Stage 1 51 B & 11,220 = 11,220
- Receivable under a loan facility ——JBERBMEET Stage 1 £1HE K
i & Y 5078 31,000 (31) 30,969
Total o 320,145 (183,817) 136,328
Trade receivables KB HER
- Fees receivable from asset -BEETEMN Stage 1 1 & &
management EWE F 7,276 = 7,276
Total @t 327,421 (183,817) 143,604
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
Movement in the allowances for impairment
for debt investments at amortised cost is as
follows:

2021 Annual Report
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(b) fEEE K E)

RAGEERE B OGE)

i) REEMNFENEERER
EEERENRERE)
HHEKAGHEZEBTRER
BERE2EHWT

Loss allowance

BERE
HK$'000
TERT
At 1 January 2020 RZTE-_TF—-—H—H 167,014
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAEHRRBEEBRE
(Note 6(c)) (P 5 6(0)) 16,803
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE_ZF+_A=+—BRK
—T-_—-f¥—H—H 183,817
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRNEBRRBREEE 17,221
Impairment losses reversed during the year FREHELREEE (12,686)
4,535
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE_—4$+-HA=+—H 188,352
Notes: P oL -
(aa) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (@aa) ARAE %i AR R BT EE 13(a)(ii)
the RD Note is considered to be credit-impaired Eiéﬂ;g ERER RDRERR

based on the facts and circumstances as detailed
in Note 13(a)(ii).

(bb) In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the SP Note is considered to be credit-impaired
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed
in Note 13(a)(i).

(cc) In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the CFLD Note is considered to
be credit-impaired based on the facts and
circumstances as detailed in Note 13(a)(v).

(bb) ARBEZRA  REMEE 130 FT
HENERERBR SPEERBR

EERE-

(c0 ARAEZRR  BRIEME13a)NV)
Fratiat 0 = B X150 CFLDR &
BREERE-
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
The directors of the Company, with the
assistant from an independent valuer (the
“Independent Valuer”), reviewed and
assessed RD Note, SP Note and CFLD Note for
impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with the
requirement of HKFRS 9. The results of ECL
in respect of RD Note, SP Note and CFLD
Note as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
summarised as follows:
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29. MBERERRENTIAZ LA TEGE)

(b) EERMKE)

BRAGEEERMOE

(i) HBEXRABENBEERER
EEERENRERE)
ARAREEE— BB ILIGER
(T fEERD ) EY 1% Bh T 1R &
BEXEVBRELERNFIFRARTE -
FTREEASRKUEBHEETE
BAARS DA ERME R
REBNTFERDERE - SPERE
NCFDEEMNRE R =
—FRZZEZFTF+ZA=T
—H ' BBRDER  SPEE X
CFIDEBEMEHEEBBEEZR
BENOT:

At 31 December 2021
R-ZB-Z-5+=-ZA=+-—H

PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE

BNBE EHNER EBHOEAR BB
%  HK$'000 %  HK$'000

B2 FERT B FERT

RD Note RDE & 100 107,532 100.00 107,532
SP Note SPE & 100 103,363 66.98 67,892
CFLD Note CFLDZE & 100 20,959 61.70 12,928
At 31 December 2020

R-—E-_FEFE+-_H=+—H
PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE
EABE  BAORR BUOEBRB &8
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
AL FATT AL FATT
RD Note RDE & 100 108,144 83.38 90,166
SP Note SPE & 100 100,782 79.92 80,547
CFLD Note CFLDE & 100 20,966 62.35 13,073
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
In respect of LGD of CFLD Note, the
Independent Valuer has made reference to
reports by major credit rating agencies.

In respect of LGD of RD Note and SP Note,
valuations are based on residual method,
which is essentially a means of valuing the
collaterals held against the RD Note and SP
Note. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value
of collaterals held against RD Note and SP
Note that are assessed for lifetime expected
credit losses amounted to approximately
HK$47,815,000 (2020: fair value of collaterals
held against RD Note and SP Note assessed
for lifetime expected credit losses amounted
to approximately HK$76,660,000). The
collaterals mainly include listed shares in
Hong Kong. The fair value of collaterals were
estimated by the Group based on the market
price of the collaterals, adjusted in light
of disposal experience and current market
conditions, by reference to the valuation
report issued by an independent valuer.
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(b) FEREMRE)
RAGGEREMOGE

(i)

REEMAGTENEBERER
EEERENRERE)
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EAHENRE -
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EEL ZEEEEAERA
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——F4+-_A=+—8 T
HBEEHANEEHEEEED
ROEBEMSPEEMF A 2 &
@A FEL A47,815000
BL( T _ZTF R GEEE
HANBBEBHEEEBEEBNHRDE
BRSPEEMBEZEARH
N F B 4 576,660,000 7T ) °
KEREFERREEALTR
Z - HMEYVHRTFEAAEE
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BRAHERRAOTEETH
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Debt investments at amortised cost and fees
receivable from asset management (Continued)
The table below summarises the information
about the fair value measurements of the
collaterals held against RD Note and SP Note.
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29. MIBERRERRER TR AFEGE)

(b) 5 B LB ()
BACEABRMO(E
) RBEARAENEERER
AEEEEKEME)
%5 7 B 5 RD I 48 % SP
EEFBERY DT EEE
ZER

Significant Relationship of
Valuation method  unobservable inputs Value of input unobservable inputs
TAEE
(EREDRS EXTUBERAE BAEEE WABEZHE
RD Note Adjusted quoted Discount for lack of 30% (2020: 30%) The higher the discount,
prices marketability the lower the fair value
RDE & REBRE REZMBEZE  30%(ZT_TF: hEde ATESE
30%)
SP Note Adjusted quoted Discount for lack of 30% (2020: 30%) The higher the discount,
prices marketability the lower the fair value
SPEE RABRE RzmsHzE 30%(ZT_FTF: e ATFESE
30%)

Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group did not recognise any loss
allowance (2020: Nil) on trade receivables
in respect of wines and beverage trading.
The loss allowance was recognised on an
individual basis to receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties.

(i) EREDBRNREECENR
BRKRIA
HE-_ZE-_—F+-RA=+—
BEFE AEETEREE
BRBMBEECEKE 5 KE
BMRARENEEREBE(ZZT_F
FE) - HREANTFTEYBR
ENEPZEKREZRIENE
BRERENEERER -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(ii) Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading (Continued)
Movement in the allowances for impairment
for trade receivables in respect of wines and

2021 Annual Report
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(b) fEEE K E)
RAGGEREMOGE
lii) ERAAABRRREE ZEK
BRRIA(E)
FHAABERSImEREZEW
ESRBERERBZE M

beverage trading is as follows: T
Allowance for
doubtful debts
ARBE
HK$'000
TERT
At 1 January 2020 RZTE-_ZTF—-—H—H 555
Amounts written off during the year FAME S E (207)

Reversal of impairment losses recognised 4 A % 528l (B /&5 18 % @

during the year (348)
At 31 December 2020 RZTEZZTF+ZA=+—H =

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury
and finance departments. They are responsible for
ensuring that the Group has adequate liquidity
for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix
is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches.
The Group manages liquidity risk by holding
sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to
ensure that short-term funding requirements are
covered within prudent limits.

) RBEZRAR
NBDECEBRAEHR LM BEE
B-REAERRAEEEE R
MRBESETHERL BERE
THARE #RIINYPAHEEL K
SEZERERTRENRYDEE
XKERRDESRAR UHERES
ENESREATABNEHRNE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)
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29. MFEREEBREMTIB 2L FEE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELEARKE)
The following tables show the remaining THREJINRBRAEBENRE PRI
contractual maturity at the end of the reporting EHNARUBBRRREB(EERED
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial MEFER(WMBZHAR)IZRE
liabilities, which are based on contractual BHARMRTHMEXFENFE NI
undiscounted cash flows (including interest RAEEAEHREREFNNN&TFH
payments computed using contractual rates or, if HitErmETEem I AEEBENES
floating, based on rates current at the end of the #) ) #h F 2B o
reporting period) and the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.
Liquidity risk tables W BB R R %
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_F-_—F+-A=t+—A81L
FE
After
On demand 1 year but Total Carrying
or within within 2 undiscounted amount at
1 year years cash flows 31/12/2021
i
—E--—&F
AER +=A8
RERKR HB1FAE RemE =t-H
R THB2F B ZEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TET TERT
Financial liabilities ERAR
Accruals and other payables FEET SR R E A
JE BRI 6,961 - 6,961 6,961
Borrowings f& & 87,172 - 87,172 85,768
Lease liabilities HEERE 5,936 - 5,936 5,823
100,069 - 100,069 98,552
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RRBEENREM I B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBESLRERE)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) B E LR & (&
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE-_ZT-_FTF+-A=+—8H1
G
On demand After Total Carrying
or within 1 yearbut  undiscounted amount at
1year within 2 years cash flows 31/12/2020
i
—E-FF
AEH +=AH
RERBR HBBIFE Heng =+—H
—FR T2 BE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
Financial liabilities EWARE
Accruals and other payables e FIE R E A
BN RE 14,668 - 14,668 14,668
Obligations under BOHETMEL
repurchase agreements 81,939 - 81,939 77,525
Borrowings R 342,690 - 342,690 341,060
Lease liabilities HEAR 6,179 5,753 11,932 11,450
445,476 5,753 451,229 444,703
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurement

(d)

()

Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the
financial instruments, including corporate
debt securities, US Dollar bond linked
notes, and unlisted investment funds. The
team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

REBEBRZERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 ¥R % B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+t_A=T—HLEE

29. MIBERRERRER TR AFEGE)

) RFEME

(i)

u%¥ﬁ#5ﬁ$ﬂﬁé
nF¥EER
T%WTKEIEW
M EMNS T A
BREMBREE
FEFERREZ
(EIN Wﬁ%ﬁ°ﬁ

>
s

-

I 3

m

m

o

oF 3 8 > of
W

S ¥ S

=

XA ot f S A
N

\]
/

35 0l 5

CB

. M—F@%ﬁ EFEHE
Z Mg AMBE(BIMER 2
§Fiﬁﬁ<ﬁ§ﬂ%ﬁ
TERERTB ZHE(R

/

ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁi NF{E
e F_EAMBKE:ERAE—
EHa AME(NRERNE
F-EBERZUABERH A
@'Hiﬁﬁﬁéﬁ$ﬂ

(=1
%H%ﬁ%%ﬁz%kﬁ

e F-ZEAMBE:FERAEX
THBEERBABAEZR
FE

AEEA—EaMBAEERS

MER ST ABRER

AEBES FTEFHBERE

BERIFLEMREESR)ETH

B - ZEBFEERAEFNBEE

RBEZEBERE ZEBKE

EPHEREFRERES B HmE —

oM FEAEESNMGE

BE YTHERMBEERLRK

B - BERITMREFE Y

EREGFZBEImAEEBARE

MER BHREAH -

261



262

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 ¥5 ¥k 2% Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RRBEENREM I B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d DAFEFTEGE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URFEIEHNZHEEE
(Continued)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
measurements 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 hierarchy and key input(s)

R-B--% R-B-FF
t=A=+-8 +t=-A=+-"H

KEMDTETE ZDTE ZDTE DVERRN H#EIERIESH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER

Assets:

BE:

) Corporate debt securities - 119,201 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial
institutions

) RAEKEF - 119,201 £ RELL/CREBNRE

I)  US Dollar bond linked notes - 143,248 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial
institutions

) XTEFEBHRE - 143,248 £=8 REBL/CREBNEE

Il) HK Dollar Fund linked note 20,000 - Level 2 Referenced to recent
transaction price

N BErEEHBAERE 20,000 - Bl BERBIHBHR

[V) ICBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP 28,827 165,697 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial
institutions

IV) 1CBC US Dollar Debt Fund SP 28,827 165,697 F_#§ RERE/SREENRE

V) OCl Equities Fund SP 96,917 - Level 3 Discounted cash flows model
adjusted for fund specific
credit risk

V) OCl Equities Fund SP 96,917 - F=R REBERERE(BES

BEEERRAEHEER)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of financial instruments that
are mainly traded in over-the-counter are
determined by using market observable
broker quotes or valuation techniques with
observable market data as key parameter
inputs without management judgment.

&
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29. i RRBEENREM I B2 A FEE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d DAFEFTEGE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URFEIEHNZHEEE
(Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value BEHEE-—"RRFEFTENEH
measurements
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
techniques unobservable inputs Range input to fair value
TUBEBAER
it B B9l EXTABEEBAE BE AYEZEHBE
Investment fund Discounted cash flows Discount rate taking into  5.58%-6.10% The higher the discount rate,
model account the credit risk of the lower the fair value
the fund
REE® BERERERTY KRESEERRMEEER 558%6.10% HRXHs AATLHE

As at 31 December 2021, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant,
a decrease/increase in discount rate by
2% would have decreased/increased the
Group's loss for the year by HK$3,800,000
or HK$3,600,000 respectively (2020: not
applicable).

BIE

RZE-Z—F+-_A=+—
B-EMAEEMEELDRE
TEHBERLAT BRERD/
Mm%ttt e SR A& HE
ZEREFEEERES R E M
3,800,000/ 7T 3k3,600,000;8
T(ZE_FF:TEMA) -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

The movements during the period in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87 5 ¥ 2 Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
29. MKEEARSEREMTIE 2R FEE)

(d 2FEFEHE)
(i) ULXFEFEHNEHEE(E

ZEE=RRAFEFELESRR
HENEFHWT :

2021

—_E_-_—F

HK$'000

TERT

At 1 January m—H—H -

Additions nE 95,000
Unrealised gains recognised in profit or ~ F AR 18z A ER M

loss during the year NI 1,917

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 96,917

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(i) B R-FEUIF TR 2 A
EEREELAFE
7N £ B 4R BK AN oK 8 SH AR AR B BR
MemEERABREAERA
RZEZ—FRZZEZFF+
ZA=Z+—HMATFEIES
KEERE-
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30. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

30. NABRBZMBMRRNE

2021 Annual Report

POSITION
31 December 31 December
Note 2021 2020
—E-— —E-TE
s +t=ZB=1+- +-ZA=+-H
s 00 HK$'000
TER TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ESRW- YT 5,162 10,599
Investments in subsidiaries RBLRA 2K E 12 1 1
Rental deposits Heke - 2,116
5,163 12,716
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 7o EAREREMEKERE 3,860 1,424
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT B ﬂ % 324,835 399,026
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &2 T8 5t A 18 RILREE 28,827 165,697
Pledged bank deposits BEBEEAER - 249,535
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEER 154,004 38,376
SIS 854,058
Current liabilities REBAaE
Accruals and other payables JEE Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁlﬁ 2,185 3,625
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN LIENGIE S 9,561 11,163
Borrowings BE 85,768 341,060
Provision for post-completion guarantee EGBRER 58,565 -
Lease liabilities HERE 5,531 5,485
o eteT0 361,333
Net current assets RBEEFE 349,916 492,725
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERE 355,079 505,441
Non-current liability k¥RBERE
Lease liabilities HERE = 5,532
Net assets EERE 355,079 499,909
Capital and reserves BER@E
Share capital A 14,998 14,998
Reserves f# 340,081 484,911
Total equity BRAH 355,079 499,909
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZEZZF=ZRA=+—HBEZEZEei

directors on 31 March 2022:

Wu Guangze R &2

Director & %

o e 15 HE T %

Wei Bin i 3&
Director & %
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31.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year.

(a) Transaction with key management personnel
The Company’s directors are key management
personnel of the Group whose remunerations are
disclosed in Note 8.

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

267

3. EAMBAXS
BERaMBRREMBOMABENRS
Mg NREBERANFEEEIRBES
ETTIHNERXRS

(a) BFEEBABETZRE
ARAEZTAAEENETEEIE A
B HEMWEAKESHEE -

The remuneration of directors of the Company is RRAREZTZHFHBEFMEER Eﬁ%
determined by the remuneration committee having BREAXRREMSBERERT
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

(b) Balance and transaction with a related party (b) BEAIEHREBETETZIRS
Name of related party Relationship
A AB RS

CCB International Asset Management Limited

EREBKEEEEEFRAA

A wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder

of the Company

ARBETERRZEZEWME QT

2021 2020
—E2=Z-—-F S 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Transaction: X5
Fund sub-advisory services expenses* & & 7 & i 3 f 15 B - 1,398

*

The above transactions were conducted on mutually
agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.

* AR BTN
@ % & <2 1§

—MEKE
AiETT°

EaL i s
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. S AMBAXZ(E)

(Continued)
(b) Balance and transaction with a related party b) BEMAEHRNEBBHIETZIRS
(Continued) (&
Name of related party Relationship
B S AR RS
Orient Securities (Hong Kong) Limited A wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder
RAEBHREB)ERAA of the Company
ARAAEERRZEZEMRB A A
2021 2020
—E--F —E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Transaction: R5:
Fund sub-advisory services expenses* % & % B i A R 15 B A * 580 296
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Balance: R
Payables for fund sub-advisory BRNE2HDEBARBRE
services 29 296
Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited A wholly owned subsidiary of a major shareholder
RATemER(FEE)ERAA of the Company
RAARFERRZEZEMB R A
2021 2020
—_sE-—& —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Transaction: R5:

Sales of financial assets HESMEE 58,211 =
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. S AMBAXZ(E)
(Continued)
(b) Balance and transaction with a related party (b) EAEB( A &ZE &R R EHEE TX5 (&)

(Continued)

Capital Ally Holdings Limited

Capital Ally Holdings Limited

A company whose major shareholder is Mr.
Jiao Shuge, the non-executive director and
chairman of the Company

—BHXARAAIPITEESRIFEEHBLEER
EFEXTEBRRNAF

2021 2020
—EB--F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Transaction: B
Income from termination of a RERIEFBERE ZBRA
memorandum of understanding
— Interest income from refundable — R B AIREZR 2 F BWA
deposit 2,310 -
— Break-fee income —BRIEBIRA 891 -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, RBE_ZT_—F+_A=+—
the Company entered into a memorandum of B It & & 2 & HCapital Ally

understanding (the “MOU") with Capital Ally
Holdings Limited (the “Seller” or “Capital Ally")
for a proposed acquisition of 51% of the issued
share capital of Rising Phoenix Investments Limited
(the "Target Company”) which is a subsidiary
of Capital Ally (the “Proposed transaction”).
The consideration for the Proposed Transaction is
proposed to be US$330,000,000.

Mr. Jiao Shuge is a director and major shareholder
of Capital Ally and acts as the Seller’s guarantor
(the “Seller Guarantor”) that shall unconditionally
and irrecoverably agree and undertake to procure
the due and punctual performance by the Seller
of all of its obligations under and in the definitive
transaction documents.

Holdings Limited ([ & 7 ] 3k [ Capital
Ally]) 5t 32 3% W B8 Capital Ally 2 B
E & TA]Rising Phoenix Investments
Limited((BEEARDEBITRAD
S1% (BRR B LR E S &
((FHREBES&E]) BEE2XH52RKE
#% F /330,000,000 7T °

£ 15 B L & JhCapital Ally 2 & = 3
FTERF TETESFNERATE
FEARAD BEKHERTTHE
WRERABERTEEFZE RER
BITEREERZIXHET RAH
ZFBEEME-
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Balance and transaction with a related party
(Continued)

The Seller, the Company and the Target Company
are collectively referred to as the Parties.

The MOU merely serves to record the intention of
the Parties as at the date of the MOU.

As stipulated in the MOU, the Company will
pay US$11,500,000 as refundable deposit (the
“Deposit”) to the Seller on or before 9 July 2021
for purposes of costs and expenses incurred by the
Seller in entering into the MOU with the Company
and co-operating with the Company in respect of
due diligence investigations in connection with the
Proposed Transaction.

Upon termination of the MOU, the Seller and the
Seller Guarantor shall jointly and severally return
to the Company the Deposit together with interest
(6.5% per annum) and a break-fee in the amount
of 1% of the Deposit within 5 days following the
termination of the MOU.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Proposed Transaction was terminated upon mutual
agreement between the Company and the Seller.
Deposit of US$11,500,000 paid by the Company
was refunded from the Seller and interest and
break-fee of approximately HK$2,310,000 and
HK$891,000 respectively were paid by the Seller
upon the refund of the Deposit.

31.

2021 Annual Report

EAEBAXRS(E)
(b) BELIEHREBEBIETZIRS

(%)
EN ARAKBEBRRAARBEAE
Eo

AT E
HEBZTE

E R ER SR R w8 A
1] o

BB ESEAMEIA XRRAH
RZEZ—F+tANLBHZARE
7 X 411,500,000 JT £ & 0] R &
Ze((&R&]) BEEFEEXRQA
FURBESBEREERIZRH
BATEHAQRAEGHEMELENKR
kEBR-

RBEZRKRILEE BARER
ERAERSBESHERIERSK
RERKER A ARQRRERS
ERAEB(FFAE65%) K% AEH1%
BREREIEE-

REBEE-_ZT=-_—F+=_A=+—8H
LtFEE BREXRIEAQRAHRER
HEBKRLE-BEFEREAQAX
B ¥ £11,500,0005 T BE&E A
ERRERSEINMNERKILE
% Bl 472,310,00078 T &% 891,000 %
=
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32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a
new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

REBEBRZERERAT
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BT -_—F+-_A=+—HLEE

2. EHEBRB&Z_F_—F+_H=

T—BLEFRERERNIES - #HET
HARERNBEERE

BELSEMBRRNNERAY FBEG
fMAECEEMEIBET R — BT E
A - EEMBRELERNE175% /R
BEX ZEEITRFITLEARBE_ZT
T A=t HLEFERKRE
Mo BRUEERBHRERRLEARRD &% F

BRERATAEEASERBENAR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT A H

HZBEBEREN

BHHBEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the ERAMBMELENEIRETR) # 1 January 2022

conceptual framework BMIERES I =

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and BEGHEANE1R(BIR) Y% 1 January 2022

equipment: Proceeds before intended use BERZE RIEREFAEHZHFE —T-__F—H—H
HE

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — EBEHEREIIRBIN) FE 1 January 2022

cost of fulfilling a contract Ma#—ETTE #I 0B &K e =
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 EEIBREE —E—-NFE 2 1 January 2022
cycle _“@Eiﬁﬁgﬂiﬁ*ﬁﬁ?‘é i =
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of BEAECHERNEIRUBIN) TE 2 1 January 2023
liabilities as current or non-current FRBRESKE —ET-=f—-—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice BREEHENEI1RREBUBRER 1 January 2023
Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies AERRESE2R(BIAN) 85 _—T-_=F—H—H
ERE
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting BREGHEANESRUBIR)  Birfd 1 January 2023
estimates iEE —E-=%—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related ER e ENENFE({BIAR) HAE 1 January 2023
to assets and liabilities arising from a single —XREGELMEEREEFFHE —E-=%—-H—H
transaction EHE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

AEBEEIFEZEERNERERHE
BHMELE T E 25 BEKR Pﬁ%%
EREUGEAMBEHRRIBERENTE
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B 75 18 2
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-B=+-HLFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZT-%F ZT-NEF ZZF-N\F ZT—LtF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTAT FTAT TAT FTAT
RESULTS E
Revenue I 2= 73,232 126,834 101,521 124,614 113,427
(Loss) profit before tax Bl (&8 & F (117,281) (18,366) (93,024) (60,413) 42,996
Income tax expense P 15 5 2 (5,341) (1,233) (4,404) (419) (412)
(Loss) profit for the year AEF(EER) M (122,622) (19,599) (97,428) (60,832) 42,584
Attributable to: FE 14 :
Equity holders of the parent NEER
BB A (122,622) (19,556) (96,897) (60,792) 42,584
Non-controlling interests FERER - (43) (531) (40) -
(122,622) (19,599) (97,428) (60,832) 42,584
As at 31 December
R+=—R=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EZ-F ZZE-TF ZT-NF ZE-N\F ZFT—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET TET FHT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 544,669 956,622 923,412 805,412 633,497
Total liabilities maf (171,876)  (461,618)  (694,259)  (478,551)  (245,809)
372,793 495,004 229,153 326,861 387,688
Fquity attributable to equity AHBEEZFH A
holders of the period FElLHE = 372,793 495,004 229,863 327,040 387,827
Non-controlling interests IF 12 IR HE 2 - - (710) (179) (139)
372,793 495,004 229,153 326,861 387,688
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